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to file such reports),  and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for
the past 90 days. Yes /X / No / /

Check if there is no disclosure of delinquent  filers in response to Item 405 of
Regulation  S-B is not  contained  in  this  form,  and no  disclosure  will  be
contained,  to the best of  registrant's  knowledge in the  definitive  proxy or
information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-KSB
or any amendment to this Form 10-KSB. / /

State issuer's revenues for its most recent fiscal year: $ 89,716

State the aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held
by non-affiliates  computed by reference to the price at which the common equity
was sold,  or the  average  bid and asked  price of such  common  equity as of a
specified date within the past 60 days. The aggregate market value of our common
stock  held  by  non-affiliates  as  of  December  29,  2006  was  approximately
$1,503,307.  State  the  number of shares  outstanding  of each of the  issuer's
classes of common equity as of the latest  practicable  date. As of December 29,
2006, there were approximately  92,580,102 shares of our common stock issued and
outstanding.

     Transitional Small Business Disclosure Format: Yes / / No / X /

CERTAIN CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain  statements in this annual report on Form 10-KSB  contain or may contain
forward-looking  statements  that  are  subject  to  known  and  unknown  risks,
uncertainties  and other factors which may cause actual results,  performance or
achievements to be materially different from any future results,  performance or
achievements  expressed  or implied by such  forward-looking  statements.  These
forward-looking  statements  were  based on  various  factors  and were  derived
utilizing  numerous  assumptions  and other  factors that could cause our actual
results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements. These
factors include, but are not limited to, our ability to raise capital, integrate
our  acquisitions,  obtain and retain  customers,  to provide our  products  and
services  at  competitive  rates,  execute  our  business  strategy  in  a  very
competitive environment, our degree of financial leverage, risks associated with
our acquiring and  integrating  companies  into our own, risks related to market
acceptance and demand for our services, and other factors. Most of these factors
are difficult to predict  accurately and are generally  beyond our control.  You
should  consider  the areas of risk  described in  connection  with any forward-
looking  statements that may be made herein.  Readers are cautioned not to place
undue reliance on these  forward-looking  statements.  Readers should  carefully
review  this Form  10-KSB in its  entirety,  including  but not  limited  to our
financial  statements and the notes thereto and the risks  described in "Item 6.
Business--Risk Factors." Except for our ongoing obligations to disclose material
information  under the Federal  securities  laws,  we undertake no obligation to
release  publicly any  revisions to any  forward-looking  statements,  to report
events or to report the  occurrence of  unanticipated  events.  For any forward-
cooking  statements  contained in any document,  we claim the  protection of the
safe harbor for forward-looking  statements  contained in the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995.

When used in this Annual  Report,  the terms the  "Company,"  "Urban  Television
Network",  "UATV  Network",  "UATV",  "we",  "our",  and  "us"  refers  to Urban
Television Network Corporation, a Nevada corporation.

================================================================================
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                                     PART I

This Annual Report on Form 10-KSB contains forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The words "expect",  "estimate",
"anticipate",  "predict",  "believe",  and similar  expressions  and  variations
thereof  are  intended  to  identify  forward-looking   statements.   For  these
statements,  the Company  claims the  protection of the safe harbor for forward-
looking statements contained in the Private Securities  Litigation Reform Act of
1995. These statements appear in a number of places in this document and include
statements regarding the intent, belief, or current expectations of the Company,
its  directors or its  officers  with  respect to,  among other  things,  trends
affecting the Company's financial condition or results of operations.The readers
of this document are cautioned that any such forward-looking  statements are not
guarantees of future  performance and involve risks and  uncertainties  and that
actual  results  could differ  materially  from those  projected in the forward-
looking  statements.  This report also identifies other factors that could cause
such  differences.  No assurance  can be given that these are all of the factors
that could cause  actual  results to vary  materially  from the  forward-looking
statements.  The Company  does not  ordinarily  make  projections  of its future
operating  results and undertakes no obligation to publicly update or revise any
forward-looking  statements,  whether  as a result  of new  information,  future
events or otherwise,  except as required by law. This section  should be read in
conjunction with the audited  consolidated  financial  statements of the Company
and related notes set forth elsewhere herein.

Item 1.   Business

Overview

Urban  Television  Network  Corporation  ("Urban  Television",   "The  Company")
operates  a U.S.  based,  broadcast  television  network  (as  opposed  to cable
networks discussed in the competition  section) focused primarily on serving the
African-American  and Hispanic  populations and other ethnic  populations in the
urban markets.  The Company has branded the broadcast  television  network,  for
marketing purposes, as UATV.

Urban  Television plans to provide free  over-the-air  programming to television
viewing  audiences in the communities  served by its local affiliate  television
stations.  The  Company  has  denoted  this as an unwired  network -a network of
broad- cast affiliates who are untied except for the network.  This differs from
a wired  network,  in that it does not  require  affiliates  to  follow  network
protocol;  allows  affiliates  more freedom to air programming on their own time
schedule  instead of that  dictated  by the  national  network,  and thus allows
independent broadcast stations to maintain their basic freedom to react to their
local markets. The UATV Network plans to deliver its programming 24 hours a day,
seven days a week, which will allow the affiliates to have access to programming
continuously  throughout  the day.  At the same  time,  Nielsen  Media  Services
("Nielsen")  ratings disregard whether the programming airs at the same time, as
is common on wired networks  (adjusting  only for time zones).  Thus, an unwired
network  gets the same  benefit  of  accumulation  of  ratings as does the wired
network for purposes of calculating  household ratings,  coverage,  and cost per
thousand  ("CPM") for national  advertising  sales.  When the Company was airing
programming to affiliates, we had approximately 70 affiliates located in over 60
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markets and with a household  coverage of approximately  22 million  households.
The affiliates were comprised of broadcast  stations with  approximately  35% of
them being on cable in their local markets.

Our primary  source of revenue is expected to be the sale of commercial  airtime
to  advertisers.  Our  objectives  are to  meet  the  needs  of our  advertising
customers and to increase our  advertiser  base by delivering  mass audiences in
key demographics,  primarily in the top 75 U.S. markets. We will seek to attract
our television audience by providing  compelling network and syndicated programs
at each of our affiliate stations. In addition to offering advertising customers
commercial  air time,  we plan to work with the  affiliate  stations  to offer a
variety of marketing  programs,  including  community  events,  sponsorships and
advertising opportunities on our and the affiliate stations' Internet sites.

We also believe that capitalizing on the  opportunities  afforded the television
industry by digital media, such as digital multi-casting, streaming on broadband
and  video-on-demand,  is  important  to our future  success.  We plan to devote
substantial energy and resources to integrating such media into our business.

                                       4

We plan to transmit the programming to the affiliates in such a manner that they
will have the  ability  to air all or a portion  of the daily  program  schedule
provided by the Company.  Generally,  our affiliate agreements will request that
an affiliate  broadcast a minimum of 2 hours of our  programming  during a must-
carry time period each day, but also give them the  opportunity to carry all the
24-hour  program  grid, as long as they provide  weekly  affidavits of what UATV
programs  they air.  Past  results  from  previous  periods when the Company was
airing  programming to the affiliates  indicates that  approximately  20% of the
affiliates  broadcasted 12 hours or more per day of the UATV  programming,  with
the remaining  affiliates airing 6 hours or less. Generally the UATV advertising
rates are expected to be calculated  based on the Nielsen  ratings  obtained for
UATV programming aired on the affiliate stations.

We have  access to a variety  of sports  and  entertainment  programming.  Urban
Television  plans to  broadcasts  a variety of other shows,  including,  sports,
movies, news,  entertainment,  variety, and family programming.  Our programming
will come from a variety of sources,  including  the sources that have  supplied
programming in previous years.

We are  targeting  the  minority  markets,  primarily  the African  American and
English-speaking Hispanic Markets, because we believe that they present numerous
marketing opportunities and that are currently under-served by our competition.

According   to   Census   Bureau    statistics,    approximately   35+   million
African-American  and 35+ million Hispanic citizens living in the United States,
or approximately 27% (approximately 13% each) of the total U.S.  population with
a spending power in excess of $600 billion each.  These two  populations  have a
combined  $1+  Trillion  dollar  urban  spending  power and would rival the 11th
richest nation in the world. The income of this group has increased by 170% over
the last 17 years and exceeds the growth  rate of 112% for other  ethnic  groups
over that same period.  According to the Selig Center for Economic Growth at the
University  of  Georgia,  African-  American  and  Hispanic  buying  power - the
personal  income  available  after taxes for  spending  on goods and  services -
stands at over $1.3 trillion and will increase to over $1.6 trillion in 2007.

With few competitors in broadcast  television  that are  exclusively  devoted to
programming  to  the  minority  markets,  we  feel  that  there  are  attractive
opportunities to provide a quality  broadcasting service to the African-American
and Hispanic  especially  bi-lingual and English speaking Hispanic  programming)
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populations that together make up in excess of 25% of the U.S. population.

On July 10,  2004,  the Company  received a  certificate  from  Nevada  Minority
Business Council,  an affiliate of the National  Minority  Supplier  Development
Council,  indicating that the Company  qualifies as a Minority Owned and Managed
Company,  which has met the certification  criteria  established by the National
Minority Supplier Development Council. The certification was renewed on February
1, 2005 for a one-year  period.  On January 31,  2006,  the Company  renewed its
certification  with the Dallas/Fort Worth Minority Business Council,  Inc. for a
one-year period ending January 31, 2007.

Urban Television Network

We plan to broadcast  our  programming  to a  combination  of full power and low
power  stations,  the  latter of which  are  generally  located  close to or are
directed at urban areas.

Programming

The Company's mission is "to chronicle the beauty, depth and breadth of African-
American,  English-speaking  Hispanic  and other  ethnic  groups'  cultures  and
histories from yesterday to today and into the future." There are  approximately
36 million  African-American and 19 million  English-speaking  Hispanic citizens
living  in the  United  States,  or  12.8%  and  6.7% of the  total  population,
respectively.  These two groups  have a total  estimated  spending  power of $1+
billion.

UATV  Network's   programming   will  be  suitable  for   African-American   and
English-speaking  Hispanic  families,  as well as other ethnic  demographics and
will not include  adult-only  programming.  UATV  Network's  goal is to give the
African-American  and  English-speaking  Hispanic urban communities  programming
that will demonstrate more of their traditional cultures and heritages. As a new
network,  UATV will not currently have sufficient capital to allow it to develop
more than a fraction of it's  programming  and thus will rely on outside sources
of programming for the  foreseeable  future.  As cash flow allows,  UATV Network
will look to  develop a larger  percentage  of its  programming.  To insure  the
quality of our  programming,  we have  decided  that we will limit the airing of
"infomercials," or program-like commercials on our program schedule.
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UATV Network will seek to develop a library of content for its  African-American
and  English-speaking   Hispanic  markets  that  includes  talk  shows,  women's
programming;  biographies;  comedies;  kids  programming;  music;  dramas;  film
shorts;  animation;  international  lifestyle;  and  news.  A sample of the UATV
Network's  proposed  weekly  programming  schedule  can be at  www.uatvn.com  by
clicking the "Programming" link.

The  Company's  goal  in  developing  its  program  schedule  is to  target  the
"trendsetter"   marketing  demographic  (young,   urban,   African-American  and
English-speaking  Hispanic teens),  women and families that major companies such
as Seven Eleven, Southwest Airlines,  Blockbuster,  Citibank, Nike, Coke, Pepsi,
Proctor and Gamble,  General Electric,  Dell, Microsoft,  Apple, General Motors,
Ford, Chrysler,  Nissan,  Exxon-Mobil,  Texaco,  Prudential Securities,  Merrill
Lynch,  American  Airlines,  Delta Airlines,  and music companies  pursue as the
major focal point for our network affiliates,  during pivotal prime time viewing
hours.  The UATV Network  will only have a small amount of original  programming
from its inception but plans to increase its original  programming going forward
to set it apart  from  other  minority  focused  networks.  Samples  of the UATV
Network's proposed initial programming  schedule can be seen at www.uatvn.com by
clicking the "Programming" link.
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Urban  Television  believes that there is adequate  programming  available  from
program  syndicators  like  FOX,  Universal,  Sony,  Paramount  and  independent
companies.  The UATV Network plans to broad 24 hours daily,  seven days per week
with a diversified programming schedule that will be continually revised for new
programming coming to the Network.

     Programming Costs

Urban Television has, in the past and plans to in the future, obtained virtually
all of the its  programming  from  outside  sources in exchange for allowing the
program provider to fill a portion of the advertising  slots). See the Licensing
Rights section below for a discussion of how the  advertising  time is generally
expected to be divided  between the Company,  program  providers  and  broadcast
station affiliates.

     Programming Distribution

There are a number of mediums available for distribution of the Urban Television
Network  programming  to viewing  audiences.  Generally,  the three  largest are
traditional  broadcast television stations,  cable television systems and direct
satellite broadcasters such as DirectTV and Dish Network.  Previously,  when the
UATV  network  was  airing  programming,   it  had  approximately  70  broadcast
television  station  affiliates  of which a number  were  also on cable in their
local markets.

The  Company's  goal is to negotiate  affiliate  agreements  with the owners and
operators of none Nielsen rated Full Power television  stations that are already
on cable  systems and  satellite  channel  space,  noting that the network has a
minority  focused  programming  grid. The Company  believes that, with access to
Nielsen ratings and  programming  addressed to the African-  American,  English-
peaking  Hispanics and other minority  viewers,  many of these  operators may be
willing to accept  terms  favorable to the UATV  Network.  Because none of these
arrangements  have yet been  negotiated,  there can be no  assurance  that these
goals will come to fruition.

     The Broadcast Facilities and Satellite Signal.

In November  2005,  the Company  extended for 5 years its agreement  with Westar
Satellite  Services LP for uplink  services of the Company's  digital  signal to
Intelsat 5  satellite.  The cost to the  Company is $8,800 per month plus taxes,
during  the term of the  agreement.  Westar  Satellite  Services  LP has filed a
lawsuit against the Company for nonpayment of past due amounts.

In December 2005, the Company  extended for 5 years its agreement with Intelsat,
Inc. for 6 MHZ C-Band  Non-Preemptible  bandwidth on its Intelsat 5 satellite at
the monthly rate of $17,850.  In May of 2006, Intelsat terminated this agreement
due to nonpayment by the Company.

     Licensing Rights.

Our  basic  form of  licensing  rights  agreement  with  program  suppliers  has
contained terms pursuant to which the Company  obtained  broadcasting  rights to
certain  identified  programming  and  in  exchange,  we  allowed  the  licensor
advertising time during the broadcast of such programs. Generally speaking, in a
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thirty (30) minute  program with seven (7) minutes of commercial  time, the time
is allocated as follows:
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     o    two and one-half (2.5) minutes to the licensor;

     o    two (2) minutes to our affiliate station; and

     o    two and one-half (2.5) minutes to Urban Television Network.

The licensor can then sell this  advertising  time to outside  parties,  thereby
earning income on the licensing of their program.  Our licensing agreements were
generally for a term of 26 to 52 weeks and were  cancelable by either party upon
thirty (30) days  written  notice.  We also had the right to refuse any program,
without prior notice, if the content,  subject matter, or production quality did
not meet our  standards.  The  Company's  policy  is to  recognize  the  revenue
associated  with  these  sources  of  revenue  at the time that it  inserts  the
short-form  advertising  spots or airs the  long-form  program at the network or
local level.

     Affiliates

Generally,  our affiliate  agreements will request that an affiliate broadcast a
minimum of 2 hours of our programming during a must- carry time period each day,
but also give them the  opportunity  to carry all the 24-hour  program  grid, as
long as they provide  weekly  affidavits  of what UATV  programs  they air. Past
results from  previous  periods when the Company was airing  programming  to the
affiliates  indicates that  approximately  20% of the affiliates  broadcasted 12
hours or more per day of the UATV  programming,  with the  remaining  affiliates
airing 6 hours or less.  Generally the UATV advertising rates are expected to be
calculated based on the Nielsen ratings  obtained for UATV programming  aired on
the affiliate stations.

Why would a station become an affiliate of an Unwired Network?

         -Affiliates  gain strength in advertiser  revenue by attracting  large,
          national and regional advertisers they would never sell to as a single
          station

         -Free programming with commercials  imbedded in programs.  Stations are
          able to offer X amount of local and regional advertising sales as part
          of  their   established   barter  deal.   Many  programs,   with  tied
          commercials, are offered this way through the broadcast industry.

         -Unwired  networks  DO NOT COST THE LOCAL  STAIONS  ANY MONEY.  Today's
          cable multiple  system  operator  giants ("MSO's) such as Time Warner,
          Cox, and Comcast,  require  local  stations to pay money to be part of
          their  cable  distribution  systems  if they are not part of the "must
          carry" exempted local stations.  The "must carry" rules allow MSO's to
          avoid  carrying  signals of stations with  duplicative  programming in
          their local markets, thus placing a premium on stations with desirable
          programming.  Many smaller  stations,  without the financial  means to
          improve  their  programming,  cannot  compete  in this  world of cable
          dynasties.  Unwired networks,  such as Urban Television Network,  have
          the promise to allow these stations to compete, by offering attractive
          programming,  or  bypassing  the cable MSO's  altogether  as part of a
          national network. We will discuss them momentarily.

In April of 2006 when the UATV Network  stopped the airing of programming to its
affiliates, we had approximately 70 affiliates located in over 60 markets with a
household coverage of approximately 22 million households,  we were granting the
affiliates a limited license pursuant to an affiliate  license  agreement.  This
limited license permitted the affiliates to receive the UATV Network programming
via satellite  transmissions  and to exhibit and  rebroadcast  our  programming.
Additionally,  we requested the affiliates' to submit monthly  broadcast logs in
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order to monitor compliance with these requirements.  The affiliates agreed that
they would not  preempt,  cover or in any way  disrupt  national  advertisements
contained  in any  program or portion  thereof  that they  broadcasted  with the
exception  of two (2)  two-minute  spots  per hour the were  allowed  for  local
commercial  insertions,  as well as two (2) ten-second  station breaks per hour.
The  affiliate  agreement  also  allowed the UATV Network or the  affiliate  the
ability to cancel the  affiliate  agreement  at any time with  thirty  (30) days
written notice.

     Revenues and Marketing

Management  has  developed  a  revenue  generation  plan that  includes  program
syndication,  securing network advertising at the best available rate, uplinking
other party's signals to the satellite,  plus  implementing a technology plan to
assist its  affiliates  with sale of their local  advertising  time.  Management
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intends to increase  rates as affiliate  stations are added to the network.  The
implementation of this  comprehensive plan is expected to have a positive affect
upon sales  revenues.  In  addition,  the Company has added a focus to negotiate
affiliate  agreements  with the owners and  operators of none Nielsen rated full
power television stations who are already on cable systems and satellite channel
space,  noting that the network has a minority  focused  programming  grid.  The
Company believes that, with access to Nielsen ratings and programming  addressed
to the African American,  English-peaking  Hispanics and other minority viewers,
many of these  operators  may be willing to accept  terms  favorable to the UATV
Network. Because none of these arrangements have yet been negotiated,  there can
be no assurance that these goals will come to fruition.

The Company  plans to use  (although  it has none hired at this time)  marketing
professionals,   known  as  account   executives,   to  target  advertisers  and
advertising agencies that are interested in the Urban market demographics.  They
will consist of network and  national  spot  account  executives  and local spot
account executives for markets where the Company by agreement has control of the
stations operations. Account executives targeting network advertisers will serve
a dual role as  national  spot  sellers.  These  sales  personnel  will have the
flexibility of offering a network wide sales package or a market  specific sales
package.  Generally, the majority of network and national spot advertising sales
is generated from the same advertising  agencies.  This efficiency will allow us
to generate  greater profits while  controlling  our own sales efforts.  Account
executives  responsible  for local  spot  sales  will be  located in each of the
operated station markets. They will target advertising agencies,  businesses and
service providers in their individual markets.

The Company's  business plan includes  multiple sources of revenues that are now
available  to  companies  that  have  the  ability  to  reach  viewers   through
television,  the Internet and wireless  devices that are delivering  programming
and  messages  viewers  that  have  access  to  these  sources.  Following  is a
discussion of these revenue sources;

     1.  Advertising  spots  and  programming  time  on the  network  and  local
stations.  Our revenues will be affected primarily by the advertising rates that
we are able to  charge  for  national  advertising  commercials  on the Urban TV
Network and local spots that the Company may obtain on local  stations,  as well
as  the  overall  demand  for  African-American  and  English-speaking  Hispanic
television advertising time by advertisers.

     National Spot Advertising. National advertisers have the opportunity to buy
"spot" advertising on a network-wide basis or in specific markets.  For example,
an advertising agency in New York could purchase  advertising spots on a program
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airing in a  particular  time period on all the  affiliate  stations or purchase
advertising  spots for a program  airing on  affiliate  stations  in  particular
markets where the Network has an affiliate station.

The Company's plan is to have yet to be established  sales personnel  located in
all of the major markets that have a large concentration of advertising agencies
targeting the African-American and English-speaking  Hispanic markets. The sales
of the local spot advertising would then be generated by these local sales staff
personnel.

     Local Spot  Advertising.  Advertising  agencies and  businesses  located in
specific markets will buy commercial  air-time in their respective market.  This
commercial  time  will be sold in the  market  by a local  sales  force  or as a
specific buy from a national client.  Local spot advertising also includes event
marketing.  In conjunction with a spot buy, the station incorporates events that
may be held on the  premise  of a  business  or  advertiser  for the  purpose of
driving traffic to that place of business.

     Program  Time  Sales.  Also  known as  long-form  programs  are sold on the
network and on locally  managed  stations to  companies  wanting to purchase the
television time and air their own programs.

     Advertising rates in general are determined primarily by:

     o    the markets covered by broadcast television affiliates,

     o    the number of competing  African-American  television  stations in the
          same market as our affiliate stations,

     o    the television  audience shares in the demographic  groups targeted by
          advertisers, and

     o    the supply and demand for African-American advertising time.
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Seasonal  fluctuations  are also common to the  broadcast  industry  and are due
primarily to  fluctuations  in  advertising  expenditures  by national and local
advertisers.  The first calendar quarter typically produces the lowest broadcast
revenues  for  the  year  because  of  the  normal  post-holiday   decreases  in
advertising.

Historically  most of our network  advertising  has been sold to direct response
and  per  inquiry  advertisers.  Going  forward,  we plan to  deploy  a  network
advertising team consisting of account executives that will solicit  advertising
directly  from  national  advertisers  as well as  soliciting  advertising  from
national advertising  agencies.  Locally managed stations will also have account
executives  that will  solicit  local and  national  advertising  directly  from
advertisers and from advertising agencies in the local markets.

We will market our advertising time on the Urban Television network to:

     o    Advertising  agencies  and  independent  advertisers.  We will  market
          commercial time to advertising  agencies and independent  advertisers.
          The monetary  value of this time is based upon the  estimated  size of
          the viewing audience; the larger the audience, the more we are able to
          charge for the advertising time.

          To  measure  the size of a viewing  audience,  networks  and  stations
          generally subscribe to nationally recognized rating services,  such as
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          Nielsen.  We have executed an agreement with Nielsen Media Research to
          measure the viewing  audience of certain of our programs  that will be
          aired in the must carry  programming on potential  affiliate  network.
          This  agreement  will  allow us to  approach  the  larger  advertising
          agencies.   Currently,   a  number  of  potential  Urban  Television's
          affiliate  stations  are  located in the smaller  market  areas of the
          country,  which is also not as  desirable  to the  larger  advertising
          clients.  Our goal is to enter  into  affiliate  agreements  with none
          Nielsen  rated  full-  power  television  stations  located in the top
          demographic market areas. Urban Television  believes that it can offer
          these  stations a proposal  that will give them the benefit of Nielsen
          ratings on a local basis while  giving the UATV Network the ability to
          cumulate  local  ratings  into a  national  rating  for  its  national
          advertisers.

     o    Affiliate  Stations.   In  exchange  for  providing   programming  and
          advertising time to affiliate stations,  we plan to retain advertising
          time  and  gain  access  to  the  affiliate  stations'  markets.  In a
          traditional  broadcasting  contract, an affiliate station would retain
          all available  advertising  time,  which it would then sell to outside
          advertisers,  and the network  would  receive a fee from the affiliate
          station.  As mentioned above, our goal is to move our network from its
          predominate  low-power  station  affiliates to a full-power  affiliate
          base. The basic plan would  continue to share to  advertising  time in
          return for providing the  programming.  By aggregating a number of the
          affiliate  stations and accumulating a large household  coverage base,
          Urban Television will be able to sell its national  advertising  spots
          for the best rate possible.

     o    Program   Owners:   In  exchange  for   licensing   rights  to  select
          programming,  the program owner generally  retains a portion  (usually
          half) of the available  advertising time in each program and we as the
          network would get the other half of the available  advertising time in
          each program.  The program owner is then able to sell the  advertising
          time  he  retains  to  outside  agencies  and  corporate  advertisers.
          Initially,  we plan to obtain  programming by contracting with program
          owners  at the  annual  National  Association  of  Television  Program
          Executives  convention  and by  contracting  with  program  owners who
          during the year  approach  the UATV Network  looking for  distribution
          sources.  In the future,  to acquire  certain  exclusive,  original or
          first-run  usage and licenses for  programming,  we may be required to
          incur upfront programming expenses.

     2.  Syndication:  The Company also plans to become a leading  syndicator to
independent  stations  outside  the Urban  Television  Network  and  advertising
agencies of television programming targeting African-American,  English-speaking
Hispanics,  and  Asian  urban  households.  The  Company's  long-term  strategic
objective  is to be the dominant  integrated  urban media  company;  developing,
producing,  and distributing  entertainment  content in the television and other
media  channels  that  target the wide  audience  of  consumers  who enjoy urban
entertainment content, including African-Americans,  English-speaking Hispanics,
Asian,  suburban  and urban  consumers.  The  Company  believes  that it is well
positioned  to achieve  this  objective,  given the  strength of its  management
leadership, operating discipline,  long-standing relationships, product mix, and
executional capabilities.

                                       9

The size of the syndication  television market is currently estimated to be $2.6
billion.  (1)  African-American  households  represent  13,171,160  of the total
household  universe of  109,600,000  or roughly  12%.(2) The value of  Company's
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market segment,  focused on African-American  household  television  advertising
dollars,  is thus  conservatively  estimated  by the  Company  at $312  million,
representing  12% of the  aforementioned  $2.6 billion in  advertising  sales in
broadcast syndication. The Company believes that a similar size market is on the
horizon    for    English    speaking    Hispanic-Americans.     According    to
HispanIntelligence,(3)   a  national  media  organization  focused  on  Hispanic
advertising,  the  overall  size  of the  market  for  advertising  directed  to
Hispanics is $2.8 billion per year.  Ninety  percent  (90%) of these dollars are
dedicated  to  Spanish-language  programming,  leaving  the size of the  English
speaking market at 10%, or approximately $279 million per year. However,  52% of
Hispanics surveyed by HispanIntelligence,  with the results reported in the same
publication,  indicated that they prefer English as the communication medium for
advertisements across a broad base of programming, including the Internet. Thus,
HMG believes that this segment is poised to experience  explosive  growth in the
near future.

     3. Multi-Platform Strategy in Wireless and other Digital Applications

After over five years of operation of the Urban Television Network,  the Company
believes  upon  successfully  obtaining  new  financing  that it has assembled a
seasoned  management  team with the  experience  to develop the  Company  into a
diversified  multi-platform  distribution media company generating multiple cash
flow streams  from  produced and acquired  urban  focused  content.  The Company
believes that this platform would extend the Company's offerings to its targeted
urban  consumers by enabling  those  consumers  to access UATV  content  through
alternative  distribution  channels. To achieve this end, the Company intends to
expand its  distribution  to other  media  platforms  such as cable  television,
video-on-demand  ("VOD"),  wireless,  broadband  internet,  internet protocol TV
("IPTV"),  home video,  personal digital  appliances  ("PDA's),  cellular phones
utilizing G-3 broadband streaming infrastructure,  and like digital and wireless
applications now known and hereinafter  conceived  and/or invented.  The Company
intends to create equity value by monetizing cost- efficiently  produced content
across multiple distribution channels generating multiple revenue streams, while
building a library of content assets that will have annuity value.

These marketing  efforts will be enhanced through the use of research  developed
by an in-house  research  department  (which is yet to be established)  and from
data  obtained  through the Company  agreements  with  Nielsen  Market  Research
utilizing both  qualitative  and  quantitative  information.  This research will
allow  the  sales  departments  to better  negotiate  and  price our  commercial
inventory.  The  research  department  will  further  help our sales  efforts by
identifying and targeting advertisers in this utilized market.

As the Company grows,  its goal is to have national and network sales offices in
the major media markets such as Los Angeles,  New York,  Miami/Atlanta,  Chicago
and Dallas/Houston.

     Competition

The network television broadcasting business is highly competitive.  As a result
of the wide  range of  programming  available  in both the  broadcast  and cable
formats;  the Network will compete  with a large  number of  competitors  in the
television,  cable and direct television  markets.  The Network will compete for
available airtime, channel capacity,  advertiser revenues,  revenue from license
fees, number of viewing households,  and programming  material.  Competition for
sales of broadcast  advertising  time is based  primarily on the anticipated and
delivered  size and  demographic  characteristics  of audiences as determined by
various rating services that price the time of day when the advertising is to be
broadcast.  Other factors include  competition  from other  broadcast  networks;
cable  television  systems;  DBS services;  and other media and general economic
conditions.  Competition  for  audiences is based  primarily on the selection of
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programming, the acceptance of which is dependent on the reaction of the viewing
public that is often difficult to predict.

-----------------------------
1    Television  Week,  March  7,  2006,  p.  30,  citing  to data  provided  by
     Syndicated National Television Association
2    Black  Hispanic  DMA  Market  Demographic  Rank,  Nielsen  Media  Research,
     September 2004, p.40.
3    Volume 4, #68, April 27, 2004.
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The Company believes that its strongest competitive  advantages will be: (1) its
ability to give the affiliates access to Nielsen rating  information that can be
used to increase the affiliates  advertising  spot revenues;  (2) the quality of
and  vision of its  African  American  and  English-speaking  Hispanic  oriented
programming; (3) its competitive advertising rates; (4) the African-American and
English-speaking  Hispanic nature of the Network's  broadcasts and  programming;
(5) cross  promotional and advertising  opportunities  with other media; (6) its
technology  plan that gives its affiliates  the tools to manage their  stations;
(7) its success in becoming a publicly traded  majority  minority owned Minority
Business  Enterprise  that  enables  it to access  diversity  spending  by major
advertisers;  (8) synergistic  entertainment  opportunities in film, television,
music, the Internet and intellectual property.

In  its  operations,   Urban  Television   expects  to  experience   substantial
competition  from other  entities  with  greater  financial  resources.  Current
networks targeting the African-American/Hispanic urban market are cable networks
with little or no Broadcast station distribution. There is no assurance that the
Company will be able to compete successfully.

Some of the competition in our market niche are:

     Black  Entertainment  Television  (BET):  BET,  formed  and  headed  by Bob
Johnson,  and now  owned by  Viacom,  has  been in  business  for 20  years  and
currently reaches  approximately  55+ million homes.  BET's annual revenues have
hover at around $160+ million.  BETs programming  basically  consists of no-cost
music videos,  low-cost  standup comic shows,  infomercials and some talk shows.
Programming has always been a sore spot for BET and its  relationships  with the
Multiple Systems Operators (MSOs) and the African-American  Community.  The sore
spot comes from the fact that the  African-American  Community  does not believe
that BET's  programming  depicts the true  culture and  lifestyle of this ethnic
group. Bob Johnson's, and now Viacom's,  retort has been over the years, "We are
a business first and a black network second." This is clear to many and provides
Urban TV with a great opportunity to provide a different programming  philosophy
that will depict the culture and  lifestyle of the  African-American  Community,
allowing it to take pride in and support the Urban TV programming.  BET will try
to obtain  more  channel  space on cable  networks  to thwart  the  competition,
including the Company's Urban Television  network.  BET.com, a great website and
venture with major media entities as partners, has been launched.

     TV One: a new cable  channel was launched in January  2004.  Its  investors
include  Radio One, the nation's  seventh  largest radio  broadcasting  company;
Comcast  Corporation,  a  leading  cable  television  company  in  the  country;
Constellation Ventures;  Syndicated  Communications;  Pacesetters Capital Group;
and Opportunity  Capital  Partners.  On its launch date, TV One was available to
2.2 million subscribers in Comcast markets. "We have worked very hard to make TV
One a television  home that will serve African  American  adults'  entertainment
interest  and show the rest of society the depth,  variety  and  vitality of our
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lifestyle and culture," said TV One President and CEO Jonathan Rodgers.

     Black Family Channel (formerly Major Broadcasting Corporation): launched in
1999 as a cable network but has not acquired the  distribution it expected.  Our
estimate  is that BFC has cable  subscriber  service  of less than ten  million.
Headed by celebrities:  Evander  Holyfield,  Marlon  Jackson,  Cecil Fielder and
attorney Willie Gary, BFC has chosen to go after the African-American, Christian
family  audience.  The "esprit de corps" and corporate  culture are two of BFC's
assets.

Overall, UATV expects strong competition from all of the above competitors.  BET
will likely  attempt to launch  additional  BET channels for Family,  Movies and
Jazz. BET, as part of Viacom, has significant  financial resources.  TV One with
its  partnership  with Comcast will have a strong  competitive  edge in securing
cable channel space. BFC, being a cable channel, is not an immediate threat, but
poses a threat if each  successive  MSO that airs BFC will not then  carry  UATV
Network. In addition, there are and always have been other entities,  attempting
to launch networks focusing on the African American and Hispanic populations.

Urban Television's  response to the competition  includes (1) We are a broadcast
Network -free over the air TV, (2) We control our own distribution,  (3) being a
certified  minority company that will allow it to qualify for diversity  dollars
set aside by the  Fortune  500  companies  (4)  Developing  a  Partnership  with
corporate  America  program  (5)  developing  a network  grid format with family
oriented  programs that both segments of the urban minority  community  (African
American and English speaking Hispanics) will endorse and support (6) producing,
owning and programming  quality shows to make the UATV Network more appealing to
the broadcast  television  stations,  the direct to home broadcast systems,  the
MSOs and the African American and Hispanic television  consumer;  (7) developing
an interactivity  technology  component designed around an Internet  application
that will distinguish the Network and its affiliates.

                                       11

For the UATV Network to develop and continue to grow, particular emphasis has to
be placed on (1)  Maintaining  its agreement  with Nielsen Media  Research which
provides media research measures its audience(2) securing affiliations with full
power independent  broadcast  television  stations in the major African American
and  English-speaking  Hispanic  demographic  markets,  (3) implementation of an
effective sales force and (4) developing and acquiring innovative programming to
attract  advertisers,  sponsors and viewers and (5)  maintaining its status as a
certified  Minority  Business  Enterprise  which will  allow it to  qualify  for
diversity dollars set aside by the major corporations.

     Competitive Strategy

Urban  Television's  goal  is to  become  the  best  managed,  highest  quality,
multimedia  company  that  focuses  on  the  African-American,  English-speaking
Hispanic and other  minority  ethnic  markets.  Led,  initially,  by a broadcast
television  station  network and later with the addition of cable and direct-to-
home systems, Urban Television plans to build a network that will make it one of
the predominate  television programming networks focusing on the depth, breadth,
history and beauty of African-American and English-speaking  Hispanic people and
their  cultures.  Urban  Television  will pursue a strategy  of  differentiation
within the broadcast television, cable and direct to home industry.

Urban Television's competitive strategy consists of the following key points:

     o    Hire and retain a strong management team. Develop a Board of Directors
          and Advisory Board who will help lead and advise Urban Television,  in
          addition to bringing in valuable resources and relationships.
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     o    Produce  (or  partner  with  producers)  and  broadcast  as many high-
          concept,  quality original  programs and series as it can economically
          and prudently  afford to do each year. Such original  productions will
          enable Urban  Television to build brand loyalty,  attract  advertisers
          and  sponsors  and  build a  library  of  media  copyrights  worldwide
          distribution.

     o    Execute on our agreement  with Nielsen Media  Research that will allow
          Nielsen to measure the emerging  majority and UATV.  This will enhance
          our ability to attract full-power  broadcast stations and Fortune 1000
          advertisers.

     o    In regards to cost and risk management,  Urban Television will seek to
          minimize overhead;  obtain no-cost,  low-cost and barter  programming,
          and establish strong financial relationships with strategic partners;

     o    Pursue parallel  strategies of distribution  for the network with MSOs
          for  analog  and  digital  cable  carriage,   satellite  systems,  and
          broadcast television stations where the demographics  indicate a large
          percentage of African-American and English speaking Hispanics;

     o    Establish a relationship with multiple  advertising agencies that have
          clients  that have a desire to gain a material and  profitable  market
          share  among the 80 million  urban  consumers  with a buying  power in
          excess of $1.5 trillion.

     o    Feature prominent stars and  writer-producers  for Urban  Television's
          programming;

     o    Use corporate sponsors; especially other media entities, to co-finance
          and co-promote Urban Television programming;

     o    Develop  "franchise"   intellectual  properties  in-house  to  develop
          revenue streams in all media;

     o    Develop a  merchandising/licensing  arm to create revenue  streams for
          Urban Television's intellectual properties;

     o    Develop a record label and music division at the  appropriate  time to
          take  advantage  of  opportunities,  when they  arise in the future to
          brand Urban Television products;

     o    Develop and nurture strong community relations through the use of fund
          raisers, scholarships,  tie-ins to national and local groups, contests
          for  viewers,  awards  shows,  programming,  use  of  the  web  sites,
          education and information, etc.

                                       12

The  affiliate  stations  will  also  face  competition  from  direct  broadcast
satellite services,  which transmit  programming directly to homes equipped with
special  receiving  antennas and from video  signals  delivered  over  telephone
lines. Satellites may be used not only to distribute  non-broadcast  programming
and distant  broadcasting  signals but also to deliver  certain local  broadcast
programming which otherwise may not be available to a station's audience.

The broadcasting  industry is continuously faced with  technological  change and
innovation  and the possible rise in popularity of competing  entertainment  and
communications  media.  The rules  and the  policies  of the FCC also  encourage
increased  competition  among different  electronic  communications  media. As a
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result, we may experience  increased  competition from other free or pay systems
that deliver  entertainment  programming  directly to  consumers  and this could
possibly  have a material  adverse  effect on our  operations  and results.  For
example,  commercial  television  broadcasting may face future  competition from
interactive  video and data  services  that  provide  two-way  interaction  with
commercial video programming,  along with information and data services that may
be  delivered  by  commercial  television  stations,  cable  television,  direct
broadcast   satellites,    multi-point   distribution   systems,   multi-channel
multi-point distribution systems, Class A low-power television stations, digital
television and radio technologies, or other video delivery systems.

In addition, actions by the FCC, Congress and the courts all presage significant
future  involvement in the provision of video  services by telephone  companies.
The  Telecommunications  Act of 1996 lifts the  prohibition  on the provision of
cable  television  services by telephone  companies in their own telephone areas
subject to regulatory  safeguards and permits  telephone  companies to own cable
systems under certain circumstances. It is not possible to predict the effect on
our television  stations of any future relaxation or elimination of the existing
limitations  on the  ownership  of cable  systems by  telephone  companies.  The
elimination or further  relaxation of the restriction,  however,  could increase
competition  that our affiliate  stations face from other  distributors of video
programming.

Factors that are material to a television station's competitive position include
signal  coverage,  local  program  acceptance,  network  affiliation,   audience
characteristics,  assigned frequency and strength of local competition. Although
there is competition  for our target market,  we believe that we possess certain
competitive advantages over our competitors, including:

     Contractual  Relationship  with  Nielsen  Media  Research.  The Company has
     negotiated a contractual  relationship  with Nielsen Media Research to have
     certain  of its UATV  programs  rated,  which  will  allow the  Company  to
     increase its affiliate base with full power broadcast  television  stations
     that can not afford Nielsen  ratings and charge for  advertising  spots and
     program sponsorships based on the Nielsen ratings.

     Our Management Team Reflects our Target Audience.  From CEO, Jacob R. Miles
     III, to Kevin Wiley and Alfred Baker,  former  executives with the Heritage
     Network, our team is expected to be comprised of many African-Americans and
     other minorities.  We believe that the best way to understand the needs and
     wants of our  target  market  is to  include  people  that  share a similar
     cultural  background to our target  audience.  The nature of our management
     team is also  reflective  of our  dedication  to the  creation  of an urban
     network  that  focuses  on  the   African-American   and  English  speaking
     Hispanics.

     Our Ability to Broadcast in Digital.  Unlike many television  networks,  we
     will broadcast our  programming  in a digital  format from a  fully-digital
     earth station.  We chose this format in  anticipation  of an FCC regulation
     requiring  all  television  stations to broadcast  in digital by 2009.  The
     operation  of a digital  control room  requires  much less input and effort
     than a  traditional  analog  station.  Although,  not all of our  affiliate
     stations  will have the  ability to  broadcast  in  digital,  sending out a
     digital  signal will help reduce our operating  costs because the cost of a
     digital  signal is less than  leasing  an  analog  signal on the  satellite
     transponder.

In the course of its business, our Network will use various trademarks including
its logo in its  advertising  and  promotions.  We believe the  strengths of our
trademarks  are  important to our business and intend to continue to protect and
promote our marks as  appropriate.  Currently,  we have  applied  for  trademark
protection on Urban Television and certain other brand identification. There can
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be no assurance that we will receive each of these trademarks.  Other than these
pending  trademarks,  we do  not  hold  or  depend  upon  any  material  patent,
government license, franchise or concession.

                                       13

The Commercial Television Broadcasting Industry

General.  Commercial  television  broadcasting  began on a regular  basis in the
1940s.  The  Communications  Act permits the operation of  television  broadcast
stations only in accordance with a license issued by the FCC upon a finding that
grant of the license would serve the public interest, convenience and necessity.
Currently  a  limited   number  of  channels  are  available  for   over-the-air
broadcasting  in any one geographic  area, and a license to operate a television
station must be granted by the FCC. All  television  stations in the country are
grouped by Nielsen into 210  generally  recognized  television  markets that are
ranked in size based upon actual or potential  audience.  Each of these markets,
called  "Designated  Market  Areas" or "DMAs",  is  designated  as an  exclusive
geographic  area consisting of all counties whose largest viewing share is given
to  stations of that same  market  area.  Nielsen  regularly  publishes  data on
estimated  audiences for the  television  stations in each DMA,  which data is a
significant factor in determining our advertising rates.

Revenue.  Television  station revenue is generally derived primarily from local,
regional and national  advertising  and, to a much lesser  extent,  from network
compensation,  retransmission  revenue and other sources.  Advertising rates are
set based upon a variety of factors, including

          o    a program's  popularity among the viewers an advertiser wishes to
               attract;

          o    the number of advertisers competing for the available time;

          o    the size and  demographic  makeup  of the  market  served  by the
               station; and

          o    the availability of alternative advertising media in the market.

Also, advertising rates are determined by a station's ratings and audience share
among particular demographic groups.

Competition

     General.  Competition  in the  television  industry  takes  place  on three
primary levels:

          o    competition for audience;

          o    competition for programming; and

          o    competition for advertisers.

Competition for Audience.  Affiliate stations compete for audiences on the basis
of program popularity,  which generally consists  locally-produced  news, public
affairs and  entertainment  programming and syndicated and network  programming.
The popularity of the programming we will provide to the affiliates has a direct
effect on the  rates we will be able to charge  our  advertisers.  In  addition,
although the commercial  television  broadcast  industry  historically  has been
dominated by the broadcast  networks ABC, NBC, CBS and FOX, other newer networks
and programming originated to air solely via subscription systems, such as cable
and satellite  systems,  have become  significant  competitors for the broadcast
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television audience.  Currently,  broadcast-originated  programming accounts for
about half of all television viewing.

     Other sources of competition for audience include;

          o    home  entertainment and recording systems  (including VCRs, DVDs,
               DVRs and playback systems);

          o    video-on-demand and pay-per-view;

          o    television game devices;

          o    the Internet;

          o    portable  digital  devices (such as video iPods and cell phones);
               and

          o    other sources of home entertainment.

     Competition  for  Programming.   Competition  for  non-network  programming
involves  negotiating  with national  program  distributors or syndicators  that
own/sell first-run and off-network packages of programming. We will compete with
other program providers for exclusive access to first-run and re-run product.

                                       14

     Competition for  Advertisers.  Broadcast  television  stations  compete for
advertising  revenue and marketing  sponsorship with other broadcast  television
stations,  and a station's  competitive  edge is in large part determined by the
success of its  programming.  Broadcast  television  stations  also  compete for
advertising  revenue with a variety of other media,  such as  newspapers,  radio
stations,  magazines,  outdoor  advertising,  transit  advertising,  yellow page
directories,  direct mail,  the Internet  and local cable and  satellite  system
operators serving the same market.

     Additional factors relevant to a television station's  competitive position
include  signal  strength  and coverage  within a  geographic  area and assigned
frequency or channel position.  Television  stations that broadcast over the VHF
band  (channels  2-13)  of the  spectrum  historically  have  had a  competitive
advantage  over  television  stations that broadcast over the UHF band (channels
above 13) of the spectrum because the former usually have better signal coverage
and  operate at a lower  transmission  cost.  However,  the  improvement  of UHF
transmitters  and receivers,  the complete  elimination  from the marketplace of
VHF-only  receivers,  the expansion of cable  television and satellite  delivery
systems  and the  commencement  of digital  broadcasting  have  reduced  the VHF
signal's competitive advantage.

Federal Regulation of Television Broadcasting

     General.  Broadcasting is subject to the  jurisdiction of the FCC under the
Communications  Act  of  1934,  as  amended  (the  "Communications   Act").  The
Communications Act requires the FCC to regulate broadcasting so as to serve "the
public interest,  convenience and necessity." The  Communications  Act prohibits
the operation of broadcast  stations  except  pursuant to licenses issued by the
FCC and empowers the FCC,  among other things,  to; o issue,  renew,  revoke and
modify broadcasting licenses;

          o    assign frequency bands;

          o    determine stations' frequencies, locations and power; and
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          o    regulate the equipment used by stations.

The  Communications Act prohibits the assignment of a license or the transfer of
control of a license  without the FCC's prior  approval.  The FCC also regulates
certain aspects of the operation of cable television  systems,  direct broadcast
satellite ("DBS") systems and other electronic media that compete with broadcast
stations. In addition,  although the FCC has reduced its regulation of broadcast
stations,  the FCC  continues  to regulate  matters such as  television  station
ownership,  network-affiliate  relations,  cable and DBS  systems'  carriage  of
television  station signals,  carriage of syndicated and network  programming on
distant  stations,  political  advertising  practices  and obscene and  indecent
programming.  In recent years,  the FCC has increased  its  regulatory  focus on
indecency, which may impact certain of our programming decisions.

The  following  discussion  summarizes  the  federal  statutes  and  regulations
material  to the  television  broadcast  industry,  but does not purport to be a
complete  summary of all the  provisions of the  Communications  Act or of other
current or proposed statutes,  regulations, and policies affecting our business.
The summaries  which follow should be read in  conjunction  with the text of the
statutes, rules, regulations, orders, and decisions described herein.

     License Renewals. Under the Communications Act, the FCC generally may grant
and renew  broadcast  licenses for terms of eight years,  though licenses may be
renewed for a shorter period under certain circumstances. The Communications Act
requires  the FCC to renew a  broadcast  license  if the FCC finds  that (i) the
station has served the public  interest,  convenience and necessity;  (ii) there
have been no serious  violations of either the  Communications  Act or the FCC's
rules  and  regulations  by the  licensee;  and (iii)  there  have been no other
serious violations that taken together  constitute a pattern of abuse. In making
its  determination,  the FCC may consider  petitions to deny but cannot consider
whether the public  interest  would be better served by issuing the license to a
person other than the renewal applicant. In addition, competing applications for
the same  frequency may be accepted only after the FCC has denied an incumbent's
application for license renewal.

     Ownership  Regulation.  The  Communications  Act and FCC  rules  limit  the
ability of  individuals  and  entities to have certain  ownership or  positional
interests in certain  combinations of broadcast stations and other media. During
2003, the FCC conducted a comprehensive review of all of its broadcast ownership
rules,  including  the local  television  ownership  rule,  national  television
ownership rule, local radio ownership rule, newspaper/broadcast  cross-ownership

                                       15

rule, and radio/television  cross-ownership  rule. In June 2003, the FCC adopted
an order  liberalizing  most of the ownership rules , which would have permitted
station owners to acquire television  stations in certain markets where they are
currently prohibited from acquiring new stations.  Shortly thereafter,  however,
Congress adopted legislation to overturn and modify the FCC's  liberalization of
its  national   television   ownership  rule,  and  the  FCC's  other  ownership
regulations  were  challenged in the courts.  The U.S.  Court of Appeals for the
Third Circuit  affirmed  certain of the rules but rejected those affecting local
television  ownership  and local cross-  ownership of  newspapers  and broadcast
stations and remanded the matter to the FCC for further proceedings. On June 13,
2005,  the United States  Supreme Court  declined to review the Third  Circuit's
decision.  During the  pendency of the FCC's  review of the  ownership  rules on
remand, the FCC's pre-June 2003 broadcast  ownership rules remain in effect. The
FCC's current ownership rules that are material to our operations are summarized
below:

     o Local  Television  Ownership.  Under the FCC's current  local  television
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ownership  (or  "duopoly")  rule, a party may own multiple  television  stations
without regard to signal contour  overlap  provided they are located in separate
Nielsen DMAs. In addition, the rules permit parties to own up to two TV stations
in the same DMA so long as (1) at least one of the two stations is not among the
top  four-ranked  stations in the market based on audience  share at the time an
application  for approval of the  acquisition  is filed with the FCC, and (2) at
least eight  independently  owned and operating  full-power  commercial and non-
commercial television stations would remain in the market after the acquisition.
In addition,  without regard to the number of remaining or  independently  owned
television  stations,  the FCC will permit television  duopolies within the same
DMA so long as the  Grade B signal  contours  of the  stations  involved  do not
overlap. Stations designated by the FCC as "satellite" stations, which are full-
power stations that typically rebroadcast the programming of a "parent" station,
are exempt from the local  television  ownership rule. Also, the FCC may grant a
waiver  of the  local  television  ownership  rule if one of the two  television
stations is a "failed" or "failing" station or if the proposed transaction would
result in the construction of a new television station.

Common  ownership of multiple  television  stations in a market could  adversely
affect the Company's  future  affiliate  possibilities,  if the larger  networks
control most of the television stations in given markets.

Cable and Satellite Carriage of Local Television Signals.  Pursuant to the Cable
Television  Consumer  Protection and  Competition Act of 1992 ("1992 Cable Act")
and the FCC's "must carry"  regulations,  cable operators are generally required
to devote up to one-third of their activated channel capacity to the carriage of
the analog signals of local commercial  television stations.  The 1992 Cable Act
also  prohibits  cable  operators  and  other  multi-channel  video  programming
distributors  from  retransmitting  a broadcast  signal  without  obtaining  the
station's consent. On a cable  system-by-cable  system basis, a local television
broadcast  station must make a choice once every three years  whether to proceed
under  the  "must  carry"  rules  or  to  waive  the  right  to  mandatory,  but
uncompensated,  carriage and,  instead,  to negotiate a grant of  retransmission
consent to permit the cable system to carry the station's  signal, in most cases
in exchange for some form of  consideration  from the cable  operator.  Stations
were required to make cable carriage elections for the period January 1, 2006 to
December 31, 2008, by October 1, 2005.

The  Satellite  Home Viewer  Improvement  Act of 1999  ("SHVIA")  established  a
compulsory  copyright  licensing system for the distribution of local television
station signals by direct  broadcast  satellite  systems to viewers in each DMA.
Under  SHVIA,  a direct  broadcast  satellite  system  generally  is required to
retransmit  the analog signal of all local  television  stations in a DMA if the
system chooses to retransmit the signal of any local television  station in that
DMA. Television stations located in markets in which satellite carriage of local
stations is offered may elect  mandatory  carriage  or  retransmission  consent.
Stations  were  required to make  satellite  carriage  elections  for the period
January 1, 2006 to December 31, 2008, by October 1, 2005.

Cable and  satellite  systems  generally  will be  required  under the FCC "must
carry"  rules to carry a single  programming  stream  transmitted  by each local
digital  television  station at the end of the  digital  television  transition.
During the  transition  period,  cable  operators are required to carry either a
station's  analog or digital  signals,  but not both.  After the conversation to
digital,  cable  operators  will be required  to carry only a station's  primary
video programming channel.  Therefore,  the FCC does not require cable operators
to carry  additional  channels  that we may create  using our digital  spectrum.
Petitions filed by the broadcast industry  requesting the FCC to reconsider that
decision are pending.  Nonetheless,  we have  retransmission  consent agreements
with a number of cable operators and satellite carriers that require carriage of
the analog and certain digital signals of our stations.
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In December  2004,  Congress  enacted the  Satellite  Home Viewer  Extension and
Reauthorization Act of 2004 ("SHVERA"). SHVERA extended until December 31, 2009,
the separate  compulsory  copyright license that permits  satellite  carriers to
retransmit   distant  network  signals  to  unserved   households  (i.e.,  those
households  that do not  receive  a  signal  of Grade B  intensity  from a local
network  affiliate).  SHVERA also  created a compulsory  copyright  license that
permits satellite  carriers to retransmit a station's signal out of its DMA into
communities  in which the  station is  "significantly  viewed"  (as that term is
defined by the FCC).

     Digital  Television  Service.  The  Communications  Act and the FCC require
television  stations to  transition  from analog  television  service to digital
television  service.  Recently,  Congress  passed and the  President  signed new
legislation  that  establishes a hard transition  deadline of February 17, 2009.
Until the end of the  transition,  in general,  stations are required to operate
both analog and digital facilities.

     Indecency  Regulation.  Federal  law  and  the  FCC's  rules  prohibit  the
broadcast  of obscene  material at any time,  and the  broadcast  of indecent or
profane  material  during the period from 6 a.m.  through 10 p.m. The Commission
defines "indecent"  content as "language that, in context,  depicts or describes
sexual or excretory activities or organs in terms patently offensive as measured
by contemporary community standards for the broadcast medium." "Profane" content
has been recently defined by the FCC as "vulgar, irreverent, or coarse language"
which includes  language that "denote[s]  certain of those  personally  reviling
epithets naturally tending to provoke violent resentment or denoting language so
grossly  offensive to members of the public who actually hear it as to amount to
a  nuisance."  In  recent  years,  the FCC and its  indecency  prohibition  have
received  much  attention.  Failure to observe these or other rules and policies
can  result  in  the  imposition  of  various   sanctions,   including  monetary
forfeitures,  the granting of short or less than the maximum  renewal terms,  or
for  particularly  egregious  violations,   the  denial  of  a  license  renewal
application  or the revocation of a license.  Congress is currently  considering
legislation that would, among other things, raise the maximum amount of existing
indecency fines from $32,500 to $500,000.

     Restrictions on Broadcast Advertising

Advertising  of  cigarette  and certain  other  tobacco  products  on  broadcast
stations  has been  banned for many years.  Various  states  also  restrict  the
advertising of alcoholic beverages and certain members of Congress are currently
contemplating  legislation to place  restrictions on the  advertisement  of such
alcoholic  beverage  products.  FCC rules also  restrict  the amount and type of
advertising, which can appear in programming broadcast primarily for an audience
of children twelve years old and younger.

The Communications Act and FCC rules also place restrictions on the broadcasting
of  advertisements by legally  qualified  candidates for elective office.  Among
other things,

     o    stations must provide  "reasonable access" for the purchase of time by
          legally qualified candidates for federal office,

     o    stations  must  provide  "equal  opportunities"  for the  purchase  of
          equivalent amounts of comparable broadcast time by opposing candidates
          for the same elective office, and

     o    during the 45 days preceding a primary or primary run-off election and
          during the 60 days  preceding a general or special  election,  legally
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          qualified  candidates for elective  office may be charged no more than
          the   station's   "lowest   unit   charge"   for  the  same  class  of
          advertisement, length of advertisement, and daypart.

The foregoing summary of FCC and other governmental  regulations is not intended
to be comprehensive. For further information concerning the nature and extent of
federal regulation of broadcast stations, you should refer to the Communications
Act, the  Telecommunications  Act, other  Congressional  acts, FCC rules and the
public notices and rulings of the FCC.

                                       17

Facilities

We currently lease our principal offices and production studios of approximately
6,000  square feet located at 2707 South Cooper  Street,  Suite 119,  Arlington,
Texas  76015.  The Company  pays $2,569 per month and the term of the lease goes
through  February 28, 2007 with an option to extend on a year to year basis with
the monthly rental rate increasing 5% on each renewal. We use this space for our
general  office and  administrative  purposes,  master  control  and  production
studio.  When  broadcasting,  we fibered  our  programming  to Westar  Satellite
Services LP uplinking  facilities in Cedar Hill, Texas,  which then uplinked the
programming to the satellite,  which then  broadcasted it to affiliates  located
throughout the country.

Employees

As of  September  30,  2006,  we had 3 full  time  employees.  The  Company  has
contractual  relationships  with its Chief Executive  Officer and Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer.  Our employees are not represented by any
collective  bargaining  organization,  and  we  have  never  experienced  a work
stoppage. We believe that our relations with our employees are satisfactory.

Item 2.   Properties

A description of the Company's  properties is included in Item 1, Business,  and
is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 3.   Legal Proceedings and Administrative Matters

The  Company's  motion to dismiss was granted on February 23, 2006 by the United
States District Court, Central District of California, Los Angeles Division in a
legal  action  styled  Walter  E.  Morgan,  Jr.  vs.  Urban  Television  Network
Corporation  et al. The Company  claimed that the  Plaintiff  claims should have
been brought in a previous case wherein the Company took a judgment  against Mr.
Morgan in excess of $1,500,000 in June 2004 in the U.S.  District  Court for the
Northern  District of Texas,  Fort Worth  Division.  Mr.  Morgan and his related
companies  appealed the  judgment,  which was  dismissed  sua sponte by the U.S.
Court of Appeals for the Fifth Circuit. The Company has made the decision not to
record the default  judgment  as an asset until at such time as it is  confident
that asset value can be recovered from the defendants.

The Company is party to legal action pending in the United States District Court
for the Northern  District of Texas.  The Company has been served with a summons
in a civil case styled  Michael J. Quilling,  Receiver For MegaFund  Corporation
and Stanley A. Leitner vs.Urban Television Network Corporation. The Receiver has
filed  complaint  against  the  Company  to  recover  advances  in the amount of
$665,000 to the Company by Mega Fund  Corporation on behalf of Dove Media Group,
Inc. related to its stock subscription agreement. The Company has recorded these
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advances  as a liability  on its  financial  statements  and  believes  that the
ultimate  disposition  will not have a material  adverse effect on the Company's
consolidated  financial  position,  results  of  operations  and  liquidity.  On
December 6th, 2006 the United  States  District  Court signed an Agreed Order of
Dismissal of the law suit without prejudice.

The  Company  is party to legal  action  pending  in the 162nd  District  Court,
Dallas, Texas. The Company has been served with a summons in a civil case styled
Westar Satellite Services,  L.P. vs. Urban Television Network  Corporation.  The
Plaintiff  has filed  complaint  against  the  Company  to recover  amounts  due
Plaintiff under a promissory note and Master Service Agreement.  The Company has
recorded the related  liabilities  for the  promissory  note and master  service
agreement on its financial statements and believes that the ultimate disposition
will not have a material adverse effect on the Company's  consolidated financial
position, results of operations and liquidity.

Item 4.   Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

No matter was submitted  during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by
this  report to a vote of our  security  holders,  through the  solicitation  of
proxies or otherwise.
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                                     PART II

Item 5.   Market for Company's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters:

There was no active market for the Company's  common stock. The stock was traded
on a very limited basis in limited volumes on the  over-the-counter  market.  It
was included in the NASD's OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol, "WSCY" until the
Company changed its name in June 2002 to Urban Television Network Corporation at
which time the symbol was changed to "UNTV." The Company  effectuated  a 1 to 20
reverse stock split on November 28, 2002 at which time the NASD gave the Company
the new symbol  "URBT".  Prices for the common stock were also  published in the
National Quotation Bureau, Inc.'s Pink Sheets.

A range of high and low quotations for the Company's Common Stock for fiscal
years 2006 and 2005 are listed below. The information was obtained from the
NASDAQ web site (www.nasdaq.com). The prices reported may not be indicative of
the value of the Common Stock or the existence of an active trading market. The
Company does not know whether these quotations reflect inter-dealer prices
without retail mark-up, markdown or commissions. These quotations may not
represent actual transactions.

                                        2006                      2005
                                  Low          High         Low          High
                                  ---          ----         ---          ----

     First Quarter              $0.160        $0.030      $0.130        $1.150
     Second Quarter             $0.090        $0.030      $0.015        $0.640
     Third Quarter              $0.040        $0.020      $0.150        $0.290
     Fourth Quarter             $0.030        $0.020      $0.090        $0.210

The Company common stock  commenced  trading on the NASD's OTC Bulletin Board in
August of 2002.

At September 30, 2006 there were 850 holders of record.  No dividends  have been
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paid to date and it is not  anticipated  that dividends will be paid in the near
future.  We currently  intend to retain future earnings to finance the growth of
our  business.  Therefore,  it is unlikely  that you will receive any funds from
your  investment  in our common stock  without  selling  your shares.  We cannot
assure you that you will  receive a gain on your  investment  when you sell your
shares or that you will not lose the entire amount of your investment.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

During the period  July 1 through  September  30,  2006,  we sold the  following
securities in exempt transactions not requiring registration:

     None

Item 6.   Management's  Discussion  and  Analysis  of  Financial  Condition  and
          Results of Operations

          STATEMENT ON FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain  information  included herein contains statements that may be considered
forward-looking  statements  within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities
Act and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, or the Exchange Act,
such  as  statements   relating  to  plans  for  revenue   generation,   network
development,  capital  spending  and  financing  sources.  Such  forward-looking
information  involves important risks and uncertainties that could significantly
affect  anticipated  results in the future and,  accordingly,  such  results may
differ from those expressed in any forward-looking statements made herein. These
risks and uncertainties  include,  but are not limited to, those relating to our
liquidity  requirements,  our ability to locate necessary  sources of capital to
sustain our operations, the continued growth of the gaming industry, the success
of our product  development  activities,  the  acceptance of our products in the
marketplace,  vigorous  competition  in the gaming  industry,  our dependence on
existing management,  changes in gaming laws and regulations  (including actions
affecting  licensing),  our leverage and debt service (including  sensitivity to
fluctuations in interest rates) and domestic or global economic conditions.
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     Background

Urban Television  Network  Corporation  (the "Company")  formerly known as Waste
Conversion Systems,  Inc. was incorporated under the laws of the state of Nevada
on October 21, 1986.  The principal  offices of the  corporation  are located at
2707 South Cooper Street, Suite 119, Arlington, Texas 76015.

In January 2002, the Company underwent a change of control with the directors of
the Company  appointing the directors and officers of Urban  Television  Network
Corporation,  a  Texas  corporation,  (Urban-Texas)  as the  new  directors  and
officers of the Company, and at the same time resigning their board positions.

On May 1, 2002,  the Company  entered  into an  agreement  with  Urban-Texas  to
acquire  the rights to the  Urban-Texas  affiliate  network  signal  space which
included  the  assignment  of  the  Urban-Texas   broadcast  television  station
affiliates for 16,000,0000  shares of common stock,  which became 800,000 shares
after the 1 for 20 reverse split in November 2002.

On February 7, 2003, the Company  entered into a Stock  Exchange  Agreement with
the majority  shareholders  of Urban-Texas to acquire  approximately  90% of the
issued and  outstanding  capital stock of Urban-Texas  (13,248,000 of 14,759,000
shares) in  exchange  for the  Company's  issuance of  13,248,000  shares of its
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authorized but unissued common stock,  $.0001 par value (the "Exchange Shares"),
to the majority shareholders of Urban-Texas.  In June 2003, the remaining 10% of
Urban-Texas was acquired by the Company.

Urban-Texas  is  considered  the  accounting  acquirer,   and  the  accompanying
financial  statements  include the operations of  Urban-Texas  from the earliest
period  presented.  The May 1, 2002 and February 7, 2003  transactions  with the
Company are presented as a recapitalization of Urban-Texas.

The consideration  exchanged in Stock Exchange  Agreement was negotiated between
the Company and Urban-Texas in a transaction with management.  The management of
the Company and Urban- Texas,  were the same  individuals.  The transaction does
not represent an arms-length transaction.

The Company is engaged in the business of supplying  programming  to independent
broadcast television stations and cable systems. Formerly the Company's business
had been the marketing of thermal  burner  systems that utilize  industrial  and
agricultural   waste  products  as  fuel  to  produce  steam,   which  generates
electricity, air-conditioning or heat.

The  Company  acquired  a  television   network  affiliate  base  from  Hispanic
Television  Network,  Inc. (HTVN).  This television network provides  television
programming   serving   ethnic   minority    programming    interests   of   the
African-American  and English- speaking Hispanic  populations  across the United
States.  When the UATV Network  stopped airing  programming to its affiliates in
April of 2006, it had approximately 70 broadcast  television  station affiliates
in various parts of the country.

We are  targeting  the  minority  markets,  primarily  the African  American and
English-speaking  Hispanic  Markets,  because we believe  that they present vast
marketing  opportunities and that are currently under-served by our competition.
The African American market,  composes  approximately 13% of the U.S. population
with a spending power in excess of $600 billion. The Hispanic population is also
approximately  13% of the U.S.  total  with a  spending  power also in the $600+
billion range. With few competitors in broadcast television that are exclusively
devoted  to  programming  to the  minority  markets,  we  feel  that  there  are
attractive  opportunities  to  provide a  quality  broadcasting  service  to the
African  American  and  Hispanic  (especially  bi-lingual  and English  speaking
Hispanic programming)  populations that together make up in excess of 25% of the
U.S. population.

On July 10,  2004,  the Company  received a  certificate  from  Nevada  Minority
Business Council,  an affiliate of the National  Minority  Supplier  Development
Council,  indicating that the Company  qualifies as a Minority Owned and Managed
Company,  which has met the certification  criteria  established by the National
Minority Supplier Development Council. The certification was renewed on February
1, 2006 for twelve months.

Our financial  results depend on a number of factors,  including the strength of
the national economy and the local economies  served by our affiliate  stations,
total  advertising  dollars  dedicated  to the markets  served by our  affiliate
stations,  advertising  dollars  dedicated to the African  American and Hispanic
consumers  in the  markets  served  by our  affiliate  stations,  our  affiliate
stations' audience ratings,  our ability to provide interesting minority focused
programming,  local market competition from other television  stations and other
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media, and government  regulations and policies,  such as the multiple ownership
rules, the ability of Class A affiliate stations to be considered must carry for
cable systems to increase  their  distribution  and the deadlines for television
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stations converting to digital signals.

Management  has  developed  a  revenue  generation  plan that  includes  program
Syndication, securing network advertising at the best available rates, uplinking
other parties' signals to the satellite,  plus implementing a technology plan to
assist its affiliates with the sale of their local advertising time.  Management
intends to increase  advertising  rates as  affiliate  stations are added to the
network and Nielsen ratings  increase for its programs.  The  implementation  of
this  comprehensive  plan is  expected  to have a  positive  affect  upon  sales
revenues.  In addition  the Company has added a focus (using the benefits of its
Nielsen Market Research agreements) to secure affiliations with independent full
power  stations  that  have must  carry  privileges  with the cable and  digital
distribution companies,  but yet do not have the financial means to subscribe to
Nielsen ratings.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

     Use of Estimates

The discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations
are based on the  financial  statements,  which have been prepared in accordance
with accounting  principles  generally accepted in the United States of America.
Note 1 of the Notes describes the significant  accounting  policies essential to
the financial statements. The preparation of these financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in
the  financial  statements  and  accompanying  notes,  some of which may require
revision in future  periods.  Actual results could differ  materially from those
estimates.

We believe the following to be critical accounting policies and estimates.  That
is,  they  are  both  important  to the  portrayal  of the  Company's  financial
condition  and results,  and they require  significant  management  judgment and
estimates about matters that are inherently  uncertain.  As a result of inherent
uncertainty,  there is a likelihood that materially  different  amounts would be
reported under different conditions or using different assumptions.  Although we
believe  that our  judgments  and  estimates  are  reasonable,  appropriate  and
correct, actual future results may differ materially from our estimates.

     Revenue Recognition

The Company's  sources of revenues  include the sale of short-form  national and
local spot advertising and long-form program time slots. The Company's policy is
to recognize  the revenue  associated  with these sources of revenue at the time
that it inserts the short-form  advertising  spots or airs the long-form program
at the network or local level.

     Non Goodwill Intangible Assets

Intangible  assets other than  goodwill  consist of network  assets  acquired by
purchase.  They are being amortized over their expected lives of 5 years and are
reviewed for potential impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that
carrying  amounts may not be  recoverable.  No  impairment  loss was  recognized
during the reporting periods.  On January 1, 2002, the Company adopted Statement
of Financial  Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Intangible Assets. This
provides that a recognized intangible shall be amortized over its useful life to
the reporting entity unless that life is determined to be indefinite. The amount
of an intangible asset to be amortized shall be the amount initially assigned to
that asset less any residual value.

     Impairment of Long Lived Assets
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Impairment losses on long-lived assets, such as coal reserves and equipment, are
recognized   when  events  or  changes  in   circumstances   indicate  that  the
undiscounted  cash flows  estimated to be generated by such assets are less than
their carrying value and,  accordingly,  all or a portion of such carrying value
may not be  recoverable.  Impairment  losses are then  measured by comparing the
fair value of assets to their carrying amounts.
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     Stock Based Compensation

The Company  accounts for equity  instruments  issued to employees  for services
based on the fair value of the equity instruments issued and accounts for equity
instruments  issued  to other  than  employees  based  on the fair  value of the
consideration received or the fair value of the equity instruments, whichever is
more reliably  measurable.  The determined  value is recognized as an expense in
the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

     Contingencies

In the normal course of business,  the Company is subject to certain  claims and
legal  proceedings.  The Company records an accrued  liability for these matters
when an adverse outcome is probable and the amount of the potential liability is
reasonably estimable.  The Company does not believe that the resolution of these
matters will have a material  effect upon its  financial  condition,  results of
operations or cash flows for an interim or annual period.

     Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

Recently issued accounting  pronouncements  and their effect on us are discussed
in the notes to the  financial  statements  in our  September  30, 2006  audited
financial statements.

     Financial Condition

Our ability to continue as a going concern and achieve profitability, if at all,
will depend  upon a number of factors,  including,  among other  things,  market
acceptance  of our gaming  machine  products,  reliability  of our  products and
services, customer support and satisfaction,  sufficient capital to fund ongoing
research and development and adequate capital to expand our business.  There can
be no assurance that any of the foregoing will be  accomplished  or that we will
achieve profitability on an ongoing basis. As with all developing companies,  we
are subject to risks such as uncertainty of revenues, markets, profitability and
the need for  additional  funding.  All of these  factors  could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

     Revenues

The Company's  business plan includes  multiple sources of revenues that are now
available  to  companies  that  have  the  ability  to  reach  viewers   through
television,  the Internet and wireless  devices that are delivering  programming
and  messages  viewers  that  have  access  to  these  sources.  Following  is a
discussion of these revenue sources;

     1.  Advertising  spots  and  programming  time  on the  network  and  local
stations.  Our revenues are affected  primarily by the advertising rates that we
are able to charge for national advertising  commercials on the Urban TV network
and local spots that the Company  may obtain on local  stations,  as well as the
overall demand for  African-American  and  English-speaking  Hispanic television
advertising time by advertisers.
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     National Spot Advertising. National advertisers have the opportunity to buy
"spot" advertising on a network wide basis or in specific markets.  For example,
an advertising agency in New York could purchase  advertising spots on a program
airing in a  particular  time period on all the  affiliate  stations or purchase
advertising  spots for a program  airing on  affiliate  stations  in  particular
markets where the Network has an affiliate station.

The Company's plan is to have yet to be established  sales personnel  located in
all of the major markets that have a large concentration of advertising agencies
targeting the African-American and English-speaking  Hispanic markets. The sales
of the local spot advertising would them be generated by these local sales staff
personnel.

     Local Spot  Advertising.  Advertising  agencies and  businesses  located in
specific markets will buy commercial  air-time in their respective market.  This
commercial  time  will be sold in the  market  by a local  sales  force  or as a
specific buy from a national client.  Local spot advertising also includes event
marketing.  In conjunction with a spot buy, the station incorporates events that
may be held on the  premise  of a  business  or  advertiser  for the  purpose of
driving traffic to that place of business.

     Program  Time  Sales.  Also  known as  long-form  programs  are sold on the
network and on locally  managed  stations to  companies  wanting to purchase the
television time and air their own programs.
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     Advertising rates in general are determined primarily by:

     o    the markets covered by broadcast television affiliates,

     o    the number of competing  African-American  television  stations in the
          same market as our affiliate stations,

     o    the television  audience share in the  demographic  groups targeted by
          advertisers, and

     o    the supply and demand for African-American advertising time.

Seasonal  fluctuations  are also common to the  broadcast  industry  and are due
primarily to  fluctuations  in  advertising  expenditures  by national and local
advertisers.  The first calendar quarter typically produces the lowest broadcast
revenues  for  the  year  because  of  the  normal  post-holiday   decreases  in
advertising.

Historically  most of our network  advertising has being sold to direct response
and  per  inquiry  advertisers.  Going  forward,  we plan to  deploy  a  network
advertising team consisting of account executives that will solicit  advertising
directly  from  national  advertisers  as well as  soliciting  advertising  from
national advertising  agencies.  Locally managed stations will also have account
executives  that will  solicit  local and  national  advertising  directly  from
advertisers and from advertising agencies in the local markets.

We will market our advertising time on the Urban Television network to:

     o    Advertising  agencies and independent  advertisers.  We plan to market
          commercial time to advertising  agencies and independent  advertisers.
          The monetary  value of this time is based upon the  estimated  size of
          the viewing audience; the larger the audience, the more we are able to
          charge for the advertising time.
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          To  measure  the size of a viewing  audience,  networks  and  stations
          generally subscribe to nationally recognized rating services,  such as
          Nielsen.  We have executed an agreement with Nielsen Media Research to
          measure the viewing audience of certain of our programs that are aired
          in the must carry programming on our affiliate network. This Agreement
          will allow us to approach the larger advertising agencies.  Currently,
          a number of Urban  Television's  affiliate stations are located in the
          smaller market areas of the country, which is also not as desirable to
          the larger  advertising  clients.  Our goal is to enter into affiliate
          agreements   full-power   television   stations  located  in  the  top
          demographic  market  areas do not have the  ability to obtain  Nielsen
          ratings for their individual  station.  Urban Television believes that
          it can offer these stations a proposal that will give them the benefit
          of Nielsen  ratings on a local basis while giving the UATV Network the
          ability to  cumulate  local  ratings  into a  national  rating for its
          national advertisers.

     o    Affiliate  Stations.   In  exchange  for  providing   programming  and
          advertising time to affiliate stations,  we plan to retain advertising
          time  and  gain  access  to  the  affiliate  stations'  markets.  In a
          traditional  broadcasting  contract, an affiliate station would retain
          all available  advertising  time,  which it would then sell to outside
          advertisers,  and the network  would  receive a fee from the affiliate
          station.  As mentioned above, our goal is to move our network from its
          predominate  low-power  station  affiliates to a full-power  affiliate
          base.  The basic  plan would  continue  to share  advertising  time in
          return for providing the  programming.  By aggregating a number of the
          affiliate  stations and accumulating a large household  coverage base,
          Urban Television will be able to sell its national  advertising  spots
          for the best rate possible.

     o    Program   Owners:   In  exchange  for   licensing   rights  to  select
          programming, the program owner retains a portion (usually half) of the
          available  advertising  time in each program and we as the network get
          the other half of the available  advertising time in each program. The
          program owner is then able to sell the advertising  time he retains to
          outside agencies and corporate  advertisers.  We obtain programming by
          contracting with program owners at the annual National  Association of
          Television  Program  Executives  convention  and by  contracting  with
          program  owners  who  during  the year are  looking  for  distribution
          sources.  In the future,  to acquire  certain  exclusive,  original or
          first-run  usage and licenses for  programming,  we may be required to
          incur upfront programming expenses.
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     2.  Syndication:  The Company also plans to become a leading  syndicator to
independent  stations  outside  the Urban  Television  Network  and  advertising
agencies of television programming targeting African-American,  English-speaking
Hispanics,  and  Asian  urban  households.  The  Company's  long-term  strategic
objective  is to be the dominant  integrated  urban media  company;  developing,
producing,  and distributing  entertainment  content in the television and other
media  channels  that  target the wide  audience  of  consumers  who enjoy urban
entertainment content, including African-Americans,  English-speaking Hispanics,
Asian,  suburban  and urban  consumers.  The  Company  believes  that it is well
positioned  to achieve  this  objective,  given the  strength of its  management
leadership, operating discipline,  long-standing relationships, product mix, and
executional capabilities.

The size of the syndication  television market is currently estimated to be $2.6
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billion.  (1)  African-American  households  represent  13,171,160  of the total
household  universe of  109,600,000  or roughly  12%.(2) The value of  Company's
market segment,  focused on African-American  household  television  advertising
dollars,  is thus  conservatively  estimated  by the  Company  at $312  million,
representing  12% of the  aforementioned  $2.6 billion in  advertising  sales in
broadcast syndication. The Company believes that a similar size market is on the
horizon    for    English    speaking    Hispanic-Americans.     According    to
HispanIntelligence,(3)   a  national  media  organization  focused  on  Hispanic
advertising,  the  overall  size  of the  market  for  advertising  directed  to
Hispanics is $2.8 billion per year.  Ninety  percent  (90%) of these dollars are
dedicated  to  Spanish-language  programming,  leaving  the size of the  English
speaking market at 10%, or approximately $279 million per year. However,  52% of
Hispanics surveyed by HispanIntelligence,  with the results reported in the same
publication,  indicated that they prefer English as the communication medium for
advertisements across a broad base of programming, including the Internet. Thus,
HMG believes that this segment is poised to experience  explosive  growth in the
near future.

After over five years of operation of the Urban Television Network,  the Company
believes that upon successfully  obtaining new financing that it has assembled a
seasoned  management  team with the  experience  to develop the  Company  into a
diversified  multi-platform  distribution media company generating multiple cash
flow streams  from  produced and acquired  urban  focused  content.  The Company
believes that this platform would extend the Company's offerings to its targeted
urban  viewers  by  enabling  those  viewers  to  access  UATV  content  through
alternative  distribution  channels. To achieve this end, the Company intends to
expand its  distribution  to other  media  platforms  such as cable  television,
video-on-demand  ("VOD"),  wireless,  broadband  internet,  internet protocol TV
("IPTV"),  home video,  personal digital  appliances  ("PDA's),  cellular phones
utilizing G-3 broadband streaming infrastructure,  and like digital and wireless
applications now known and hereinafter  conceived  and/or invented.  The Company
intends to create equity value by monetizing cost- efficiently  produced content
across multiple distribution channels generating multiple revenue streams, while
building a library of content assets that will have annuity value.

These marketing  efforts will be enhanced through the use of research  developed
by an in-house  research  department  (which is yet to be established)  and from
data  obtained  through the Company  agreements  with  Nielsen  Market  Research
utilizing both  qualitative  and  quantitative  information.  This research will
allow  the  sales  departments  to better  negotiate  and  price our  commercial
inventory.  The  research  department  will  further  help our sales  efforts by
identifying and targeting advertisers in this utilized market.

As the Company grows,  its goal is to have national and network sales offices in
the major media markets such as Los Angeles,  New York,  Miami/Atlanta,  Chicago
and Dallas/Houston.

     Expenses

Our  most   significant   operating   expenses  will  be  satellite  and  uplink
transmission  costs,  master  control  costs,   technology  expenses,   employee
compensation,   advertising  and  promotional   expenses,   and  production  and
programming  expenses.  In  cases,  where  we may in the  future  incur  upfront
programming  expenses  to procure  exclusive  programming  usages and  licenses,
upfront payments will, in most cases, be amortized over the applicable  contract

-----------------------------
1    Television  Week,  March  7,  2006,  p.  30,  citing  to data  provided  by
     Syndicated National Television Association
2    Black  Hispanic  DMA  Market  Demographic  Rank,  Nielsen  Media  Research,
     September 2004, p.40.
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3    Volume 4, #68, April 27, 2004.
     3. Multi-Platform Strategy in Wireless and other Digital Applications
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term. Until cash flow permits, we do not expect to acquire exclusive programming
usages and licenses that require up front costs. We will maintain tight controls
over our  operating  expenses by  contracting  master  control and  centralizing
network programming,  finance, human resources and management information system
functions.  Depreciation of fixed assets and  amortization  of costs  associated
with the  acquisition of additional  stations are also  significant  elements in
determining our total expense level.

As a result of attracting key officers and personnel to Urban Television, we may
offer stock grants or options as an alternate form of compensation. In the event
that the strike  price of the stock option is less than the fair market value of
the stock on the date of grant, any difference will be amortized as compensation
expense over the vesting period of the stock options.

At such time as the Company begins airing its  programming to an affiliate base,
the monthly  operating  expense level may vary from month to month due primarily
to the timing of significant  advertising and promotion expenses.  We anticipate
incurring  significant  advertising and promotion  expenses  associated with the
growth of the  Company.  Increased  advertising  revenue  associated  with these
advertising and promotional expenses will typically lag behind the incurrence of
these expenses.

Results of Operations

Urban  Television  Network  Corporation - Historical  Results of Operations Year
ended September 30, 2006 compared to the year ended September 30, 2005.

     Revenues.  Revenues are  primarily  derived from sales of  advertising  and
programming time. Revenues for fiscal 2006 were $89,716 compared to $297,954 for
fiscal  2005,  a decrease of  $208,238.  The  decrease in revenues is  primarily
attributable  to decreases in revenues from the  production of events and uplink
services. The decrease in revenues is attributable to the Company not yet having
implemented  its revenue  generation  plan built  around  Nielsen  ratings  that
includes national and local advertising sales,  uplinking other parties' signals
to the satellite,  plus  implementing a technology plan to assist its affiliates
with sale of their local  advertising time. Before the Company ceased airing its
signal in April of 2006, it had maintained an affiliate base of approximately 70
broadcast stations with a household coverage of approximately 22 million.

     Cost of Operations.  Costs of operations  were $765,717 for the 2006 fiscal
year and $1,382,714  for the 2005 fiscal year.  The major  components of cost of
operations for the years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005 were as follows:

                                                        2006         2005
                                                     ----------   ----------

     Satellite and uplink services                   $  486,488   $  360,254
     Master control and production                       98,047      267,254
     Programming costs                                   19,997      215,835
     Affiliate relations                                 36,271       69,048
     Station operating costs                                 -       255,255
     Technology expenses                                124,914      215,068
                                                     ----------   ----------
           Total Cost of Operations                  $  765,717   $1,382,714
                                                     ----------   ----------
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Certain prior year amounts have been  reclassified  to conform with current year
presentation.

The cost of satellite and uplink services  increased by $126,234 during the year
ended  September  30, 2006 as compared  to 2005  primarily  as the result of the
Intelsat  assessing  a  termination  fee of  $216,000  in April of 2006  when it
terminated the Company's satellite transponder space for nonpayment.

The cost of master control and  production  decreased by $169,207 for year ended
September  30, 2006,  primarily  as the result of the  reduction of personnel in
master control and production departments due to the Company's lack of operating
capital.

Programming  costs  decreased by $195,838 for the year ended September 30, 2006,
primarily as the result  reduction in programming  personnel during the year due
to the Company's lack of operating capital.

Affiliate  relations costs decreased by $32,777 for the year ended September 30,
2006,  primarily as the result of the  reduction  of personnel in the  affiliate
relations department due to the Company's lack of operating capital.
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The costs of  operations  for stations  decreased by $255,255 for the year ended
September  30,  2006,  as  the  result  of the  Company  canceling  its  station
management  agreements  for stations in Dallas and Oklahoma  City in fiscal year
2006.

The technology  expenses  decreased by $90,154 for the year ended  September 30,
2006, primarily to a decrease in the technology  consulting services incurred by
the Company due to the Company's lack of operating capital.

General and Administrative.  General and administrative  expenses for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2006 were $949,627  compared to $1,619,574 for the 2005
fiscal year.

Following is a comparative of the general  administrative expense categories for
the periods ended September 30, 2006 and 2005.

                                                         2006         2005
                                                      ---------    ---------
     Administrative personnel                         $ 302,220    $ 300,000
     Stock based compensation                           190,780      368,674
     Nielsen Market Research                             85,292           -
     Consulting                                          18,950       30,015
     Contract labor                                       4,600        6,935
     Travel, conventions                                139,554       50,337
     Legal fees                                          15,000      119,784
     Las Vegas office expenses                               -       473,129
     Commissions                                             -        14,111
     Accounting fees                                     15,637       11,577
     Public relations costs                               3,559        5,050
     Transfer Agent, permit fees                          9,728       21,701
     Rent expenses                                       58,320       53,084
     Internet and service bureau costs                   17,477       23,596
     Supplies - digital operations                           -        36,671
     Supplies                                             8,407        6,493
     Payroll taxes                                        8,990       13,069
     Taxes -other                                        18,561       13,143
     Telephone                                           29,194       22,227
     Postage and shipping                                 4,241        9,051
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     Marketing,printing,promotions                           -         9,294
     Utilities                                           14,760       18,995
     Other                                                4,357       12,638
                                                      ---------   ----------
        TOTAL                                         $ 949,627   $1,619,574
                                                      ---------   ----------

Certain  prior year  amounts have been  reclassified  to conform to current year
presentation.

The  decrease  of  $177,894  in stock  based  compensation  for the  year  ended
September  30, 2006 is due  primarily  to a decrease in the number  shares being
issued to management and board members.

The  Nielsen  Market  Research  expenses  increased  by  $85,292  for year ended
September 30, 2006 as compared to the same periods for 2005 as the result of the
Company's contract with Nielsen beginning January 1, 2006.

The  decreases in  consulting  fees of $11,065 for the year ended  September 30,
2006 as  compared  to the same  period for 2005,  is due the  Company  replacing
consultants with additional management personnel.

The increase of $89,217 in travel and  conventions  for the year ended September
30,  2006 as compared  to the same  period in 2005 is  primarily  related to the
Company's recognizing $110,495 in travel expenses of R.J. Halden Holdings,  Inc.
to be added to its bridge loan with the Company.

Legal  expenses  decreased by $104,784 for the year ended  September 30, 2006 as
Compared to the same period in 2005,  primarily due to the Company's legal costs
Related to the search for capital and minority  investors and with the continued
legal requirements  regarding the permanent  injunction  obtained by the Company
against Walter E. Morgan, Jr. and his appeals.

The  decrease of $473,129 in expenses  associated  with the Las Vegas office for
the year ended  September  30, 2006 as compare to the same period in fiscal 2005
is due to the  resignation  of Lonnie G. Wright as Chairman and Chief  Executive
Officer and the  termination  of the stock  subscription  agreement  with Wright
Entertainment LLC. The $473,129 is made up of $307,500 in cash and note payable,
$140,000  value  assigned to  1,200,000  shares of common stock issued to Wright
Entertainment LLC and $25,629 for office rent and telephones.
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Commissions  decreased  by  $14,111  in the year  ended  September  30,  2006 as
compared  to the same  period in fiscal  2005 due to the  Company not having any
advertising or programming revenues produced by commissioned sales people during
the year ended September 30, 2006.

Transfer  agent  and  permit  costs  decreased  by  $11,973  for the year  ended
September  30, 2006 as compared to the same fiscal period for 2005 due primarily
to the Company not incurring the expenses for issuance of stock certificates for
the conversion of bridge loans in fiscal 2006 that were incurred in fiscal 2005.

Rent  expense  increased  by $5,236 for the year  ended  September  30,  2006 as
compared  to the same  fiscal  period for 2005 due to the  Company  having  rent
expense for the  production  facilities 7 months in fiscal 2006 as compared to 5
months in fiscal 2005.

Supplies  for  digital  operations  decreased  by  $36,671  for the  year  ended
September  30,  2006 as  compared  to the same  fiscal  period  for 2005 due the
Company  having  completed  its basic  conversion  from a tape format to digital
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format in fiscal 2005 and also due the Company's  lack of operating  capital for
any expansions.

Payroll  taxes  decreased  by $4,079 for the year ended  September  30,  2006 as
compared To the same fiscal  period for 2005 due to the  Company's  reducing the
number of Employees due to the lack of necessary operating capital.

Taxes - other  increased  by $5,418 for the year  ended  September  30,  2006 as
compared  to the same  period for fiscal  2005 due  increased  state and federal
taxes related to uplink services.

Telephone  expenses increased by $6,967 for the year ended September 30, 2006 as
compared  to the same  fiscal  period  for 2005  primarily  as the result of the
Company securing its own high-speed  internet services as opposed to outsourcing
it in previous years.

Marketing,  Printing and Promotions  expenses in fiscal year ended September 30,
2006 was $0 as compared to $9,294 in the same fiscal  period for 2005 because of
the lack of operating capital.

Interest  expense for the fiscal  year 2006 was $46,791  compared to $45,032 for
fiscal year 2005.

     Operating  Results.  We had a net operating  loss of $6,354,726  for fiscal
year ended September 30, 2006 compared to a net operating loss of $2,841,559 for
the fiscal year ended  September 30, 2005.  The increased loss of $3,513,167 for
2006 was primarily  attributed to the  $4,600,000  impairment  expense  recorded
against the coal reserves,  a $670,122  decrease in  administrative  expenses of
which $177,894 was  attributable  to a decrease in stock based  compensation,  a
$104,784  decrease in legal expenses and a $473,129 decrease in Las Vegas office
expenses.

     Earnings  Per Share of Common  Stock.  Income  (loss) per  common  share is
calculated  in  accordance  with  Statement  of Financial  Accounting  Standards
("SFAS")  No.  128,  "Earnings  per  Share."  Basic  Income  (loss) per share is
computed by dividing  the net income  (loss) by the weighted  average  number of
common  shares  outstanding.  Diluted  net income  (loss) per share is  computed
similar to basic net income  (loss) per share,  except that the  denominator  is
increased  to include  the number of  additional  common  shares that would have
outstanding if the potential common shares had been issued and if the additional
common shares were dilutive.  Stock options and warrants are anti-dilutive,  and
accordingly, are not included in the calculation of income (loss) per share. The
basic and diluted net loss per share of common stock was $0.08 and $0.03 for the
years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We  have  financed  our   operations   through  a  combination   of  loans  from
stockholders,  proceeds from convertible promissory notes and revenues generated
from operations.  The Company has incurred cumulative losses of $24,786,553 from
the inception of the Company through September 30, 2006.

Current liabilities at September 30, 2006 were $3,182,755 which exceeded current
assets of $3,523 by  $3,179,232.  The  Company's  cash position at September 30,
2006 was $3,523,  a decrease of $36,846 from the position at September 30, 2005.
As discussed  below,  the Company's  ability to continue its growth will require
additional  funds from various  sources.  If adequate funds are not available on
acceptable  terms, our business,  results of operations and financial  condition
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could be materially adversely affected.  In a worse case scenario, we would have
to scale back or cease  operations,  and we might not be able to remain a viable
entity. Amounts due to stockholders increased from $488,382 at September 30,2005
to $863,092 at September 30, 2006 as the result of an additional net of $374,710
being loaned by  stockholders  during the fiscal year ended  September 30, 2006.
Accrued  compensation  is the result of management  deferring a portion of their
annual compensation until the Company has funds available.

Due to the lack of necessary capital  resources,  the Company is not able to pay
for its satellite space and uplinking services which in turn has resulted in the
Company's  ceasing the airing  programming to its affiliates,  which in turn has
resulted in the  affiliates  having to seek other  sources of  programming.  The
Company has laid-off its master control employees while it seek financing.

The Company has made several  concerted efforts to enlist support from its major
shareholder  groups.  However,  notwithstanding  significant  commitment,  these
efforts have been successful only in raising modest amounts to maintain marginal
operations.  The Company is  continuing  to work with certain  investors to help
meet immediate  short-term  liquidity needs estimated to be  approximately  $500
thousand and the funds to execute on its plan of developing an affiliate base of
predominately  full power stations with  associated  Nielsen ratings which would
lead to advertising  revenue from major  corporations.  As of December 27, 2006,
the Company had cash on hand of  approximately  $1,000 and as of  September  30,
2006,  a net  working  capital  deficit  of  $3,179,232.  The  Company  has loan
agreements with "certain  lenders"  totaling  approximately  $500,000 secured by
blanket  liens upon the Company's  assets that matured in April 2006,  which are
now  callable at anytime and  entitled  the lenders upon default to foreclose on
the Company's assets. The total outstanding indebtedness as of December 27, 2006
is  approximately  $3,300,000  million.  The  Company's  ability to continue its
operations  and execute on its  business  plan  requires  additional  funds from
various  sources.  If adequate  funds are not available on acceptable  terms our
business future as a viable entity is in severe jeopardy.

Our continued growth, will require additional funds that may come from a variety
of  sources,  including  the  stock  subscription  agreement  with  R.J.  Halden
Holdings,  Inc.,  shareholder loans, equity or debt issuances,  bank borrowings,
capital lease  financings,  and the sale of the Company's coal reserves,  should
Geotec  Thermal  Generators,  Inc., the seller,  perform in accordance  with the
Agreement  and  process,  sell and remit the net  proceeds  to the  Company.  As
discussed in Note 4 to the Consolidated  Financial  Statements,  the Company has
established an impairment reserve against the coal Assets due to the Company not
having the financial  ability to clean the coal and Geotec  Thermal  Generators,
Inc.  declining to perform.  Also the coal reserves have related  federal income
tax credits resulting from the Super Fund established by The Federal  Government
that can be sold to other  companies at such time as the coal is  processed  and
sold. We currently  intend to use any funds raised through these sources to fund
various  aspects  of our  continued  growth,  including  paying  past due  notes
payable,   funding  our  working   capital   needs,   funding  key   programming
acquisitions,  funding sales and marketing, securing cable connections,  funding
master control/ network equipment upgrades, making strategic investments.

The  Company's  expects  licensing  agreements  with  program  suppliers  to  be
generally  for a term of 13 to 52 weeks and be  cancelable  by either party upon
thirty (30) days  written  notice.  These  license  agreements  will provide the
Company  with a  source  of  revenue  by the  Company's  right  to  share in the
commercial spots during the programs.  The Company's policy will be to recognize
the revenue associated with these sources of revenue at the time that it inserts
the  advertising  spots or airs the  long-form  program at the  network or local
level.  The  cancelable  feature of these  license  agreements  could effect the
Company's  source of  revenue  generation  should a program  be  cancelled  by a
licensor  and the  Company not be able to replace it within the 30 day notice of
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cancellation period.

In  summary,  until we  generate  sufficient  cash from the sale of  advertising
revenue, we will need to rely upon private and institutional sources of debt and
equity financing. We will require additional cash from the issuance of equity or
debt  securities  in the year ending  September  30, 2007 to finance our ongoing
operations  and strategic  objectives.  No assurances  can be given that we will
successfully  obtain  liquidity  sources  necessary  to fund our  operations  to
profitability and beyond.

     Going Concern

Due to our continuing to be a development stage company and not having generated
revenues,  in  their  Notes  to our  financial  statements  for the  year  ended
September 30, 2006, our independent  auditors included an explanatory  paragraph
regarding concerns about our ability to continue as a going concern.
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We have  historically  incurred  losses,  and  through  September  30, 2006 have
incurred losses of $24,786,553  from our inception.  Because of these historical
losses,  we will  require  additional  working  capital to develop our  business
operations.  We intend  to raise  additional  working  capital  through  private
placements, public offerings, and/or bank financing.

The continuation of our business is dependent upon obtaining  further  financing
and achieving a break even or profitable  level of  operations.  The issuance of
additional equity securities by us could result in a significant dilution in the
equity interests of our current or future stockholders.

There are no  assurances  that we will be able to either (1)  achieve a level of
revenues  adequate  to generate  sufficient  cash flow from  operations;  or (2)
obtain additional financing through either private placements,  public offerings
and/or bank financing necessary to support our working capital requirements.  To
the extent that funds  generated  from  operations  and any private  placements,
public offerings and/or bank financing are  insufficient,  we will have to raise
additional working capital. No assurance can be given that additional  financing
will be  available,  or if  available,  will be on terms  acceptable  to us.  If
adequate working capital is not available we may not increase our operations.

These  conditions  raise  substantial  doubt  about our ability to continue as a
going concern.  The financial statements do not include any adjustments relating
to the recoverability and classification of asset carrying amounts or the amount
and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should we be unable to
continue as a going concern.

We had net losses  $6,354,726  in 2006 and  $2,841,559  in 2005. We expect these
losses to continue as we incur operating expenses in the growth of the Company's
television  network and its affiliate  base and convert them to an Urban format,
including  African  American  and  English-speaking  Hispanic  programming.   We
currently  anticipate,  assuming  that we obtain  capital from new financing and
equity  sales,  that our funds from equity sales will be  sufficient  to satisfy
operating  expenses for fiscal year 2007. We may need to raise additional funds,
however,  if by fiscal 2008 the Company is not  generating  enough  revenue from
advertising  sales to satisfy  operating  expenses.  If  adequate  funds are not
available on acceptable terms, our business, results of operations and financial
condition could be materially adversely affected.

Contractual Obligations
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Future payments due on the Company's contractual obligations as of September 30,
2006 are as follows:

                                                Total         2007    2008-2010
                                                -----         ----    ---------
 Operating lease -office space            $    32,400   $   32,400           --
 Advances by shareholders                     120,565      120,565           --
 Loans from shareholders                      679,016      321,000      358,016
 Loans from vendors                            75,000       75,000           --
 Contractual obligations                      665,000      665,000
 Contractual obligations                    2,319,004    1,529,004      790,000
 Total                                    $ 3,890,985   $2,742,969   $1,148,016

We do not believe that  inflation  has had a material  impact on our business or
operations.

We are not a party to any off-balance  sheet  arrangements  and do not engage in
trading activities involving non-exchange traded contracts. In addition, we have
no financial  guarantees,  debt or lease agreements or other  arrangements  that
could trigger a requirement  for an early payment or that could change the value
of our assets.
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                                  RISK FACTORS

Much of the information included in this annual report includes or is based upon
estimates,    projections   or   other   "forward-looking    statements".   Such
forward-looking  statements  include any projections or estimates made by us and
our  management  in  connection  with  our  business  operations.   While  these
forward-looking  statements,  and any assumptions upon which they are based, are
made in good faith and reflect our current  judgment  regarding the direction of
our business, actual results will almost always vary, sometimes materially, from
any  estimates,   predictions,   projections,   assumptions,   or  other  future
performance  suggested  herein.  We undertake no obligation  to update  forward-
looking  statements to reflect events or circumstances  occurring after the date
of such statements.

Such  estimates,  projections  or  other  "forward-looking  statements"  involve
various risks and  uncertainties  as outlined  below. We caution readers of this
transitional  annual report that  important  factors in some cases have affected
and, in the future,  could  materially  affect  actual  results and cause actual
results to differ  materially from the results  expressed in any such estimates,
projections  or  other  "forward-looking  statements".  In  evaluating  us,  our
business and any investment in our business,  readers should carefully  consider
the following factors.

              RISKS RELATED TO URBAN TELEVISION NETWORK CORPORATION

     We face risks in executing our business plan and achieving revenues. We are
subject to a high degree of risk as we are considered to be in unsound financial
condition. The following risks, if any one or more occurs, could materially harm
our  business  financial  condition  or future  results of  operations.  If that
occurs, the trading price of our common stock could further decline.

     We have a history of significant  operating  losses,  anticipate  continued
operating losses and we may be unable to achieve profitability.

We have a history of significant operating losses. For the years ended September
30,  2006  and  2005,  we have  incurred  operating  losses  of  $6,354,726  and
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$2,841,559,  respectively,  and our operations have used $561,146 and $1,232,115
of cash,  respectively.  As of September 30, 2006, we had an accumulated deficit
of $24,786,553 and stockholders' deficit of $3,100,586.  We anticipate realizing
operating  losses  for the  foreseeable  future  until  such time as we  realize
revenues from the sale of advertising  commercial spots sufficient to offset our
operating expenses.

Due to the lack of necessary capital  resources,  the Company is not able to pay
for its satellite space and uplinking services which in turn has resulted in the
Company  not  being  able to air the UATV  programming  to its  affiliates.  The
Company has laid-off its master control employees while it seek financing.

The Company has made several  concerted efforts to enlist support from its major
shareholder  groups.  However,  notwithstanding  significant  commitment,  these
efforts have been successful only in raising modest amounts to maintain marginal
operations.  The Company is  continuing  to work with certain  investors to help
meet immediate  short-term  liquidity needs estimated to be  approximately  $500
thousand and the funds to execute on its plan of developing an affiliate base of
predominately  full power stations with  associated  Nielsen ratings which would
lead to advertising revenue from major corporations.

Our ability to continue as a going concern and achieve profitability will depend
upon a number of factors,  including,  among other things,  acquiring additional
working capital,  the airing of programming on affiliate television stations and
the  generation  of  advertising  revenues  through  the  airing of  advertising
commercials  in the  programming.  There can be no assurance  that the foregoing
will be accomplished or that we will achieve  profitability on an ongoing basis.
These factors could have a material  adverse  effect on our business,  financial
condition and results of operations.

     We  face  considerable  competition  from  established  networks  and  such
Networks generally have substantially  greater capital ,programming  development
and marketing resources than we possess.

The industry in which we compete is a rapidly evolving,  highly  competitive and
Fragmented  market,   which  is  based  on  consumer  preferences  and  requires
substantial human and capital  resources.  We expect competition to intensify in
the  future.  There  can be no  assurance  that  we  will  be  able  to  compete
effectively.  We believe that the main competitive factors in the television and
media  distribution  industries  include  effective  marketing and sales,  brand
recognition,   product  quality,  product  placement  and  availability,   niche
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marketing and segmentation and value propositions. They also include benefits of
one's company, product and services, features and functionality,  and cost. Many
of our competitors  are  established,  profitable and have strong  attributes in
many,  most or all of these areas.  They may be able to leverage  their existing
relationships  to offer  alternative  products or  services  at more  attractive
pricing or with better  customer  support.  Other  companies  may also enter our
markets with better products or services,  greater financial and human resources
and/or greater brand recognition.  Competitors may continue to improve or expand
current  products and introduce new products.  We may be perceived as relatively
too small or untested to be awarded business relative to the competition.  To be
competitive,   we  will  have  to  invest  significant   resources  in  business
development,  advertising  and marketing.  We may also have to rely on strategic
partnerships for critical branding and relationship leverage, which partnerships
may or may not be available or  sufficient.  We cannot  assure that it will have
sufficient  resources to make these  investments or that we will be able to make
the advances  necessary to be competitive.  Increased  competition may result in
price  reductions,  reduced  gross margin and loss of market  share.  Failure to
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compete successfully against current or future competitors could have a material
adverse  effect on the  Company's  business,  operating  results  and  financial
condition.

     Our  capitalization  is  limited  and we  will  likely  require  additional
funding.

A limiting factor on our growth,  including our ability to make  acquisitions in
The future, is our limited  capitalization.  We had cash in the amount of $3,523
and a working  capital  deficit of $3,100,585 as of our year ended September 30,
2006. We currently do not generate  revenues from our  operations.  Our business
plan  calls  for  substantial   investment  and  cost  in  connection  with  the
development  of a television  network of full-power  and  low-power  independent
television  stations.  We will require additional  financing for working capital
purposes.  There  can be no  assurance,  however,  that such  financing  will be
available to us, and if so on reasonable  terms.  If we do not procure  adequate
financing  when  required,  our  business,  financial  condition  and results of
operations may suffer and our investors could lose their  investment.  Obtaining
additional  financing would be subject to a number of factors,  including market
prices  for  resources,  investor  acceptance  of  business  plan  and  investor
sentiment.  These  factors may make the timing,  amount,  terms or conditions of
additional  financing  unavailable to us. The most likely source of future funds
presently  available to us is through the sale of equity capital and loans.  Any
new sales of share capital will result in dilution to existing shareholders.

     Our independent  certified  public  accounting  firm, in their Notes to the
audited  financial  statements for the year ended September 30, 2006 states that
there  is a  substantial  doubt  that we will  be  able to  continue  as a going
concern.

Our independent  certified public accounting firm, The Hall Group CPAs, state in
their notes to the audited financial statements for the year ended September 30,
2006,  that  our  history  of  recurring  losses  and  lack  of  revenues  raise
substantial doubt regarding our ability to continue as a going concern.

     Our  Failure  to  Manage  our  Growth  effectively  could  Prevent  us from
achieving our Goals.

Our strategy  envisions a period of rapid  growth that may impose a  significant
burden  on our  administrative  and  operational  resources.  The  growth of our
business,  and  in  particular,  the  expansion  of  the  affiliate  network  of
independent  television  stations and  production of  programming,  will require
significant  investments of capital and  management's  close  attention over the
next 12 months.  Our ability to effectively manage our growth will require us to
substantially  expand the  capabilities  of our  administrative  and operational
resources  and to  attract,  train,  manage  and  retain  qualified  management,
technicians  and other  personnel.  We may be unable to do so. In addition,  our
failure to  successfully  manage our growth could result in our potential  sales
not increasing commensurately with our capital investments.  If we are unable to
successfully manage our growth, we may be unable to achieve our goals.

     If we acquire or invest in other  businesses,  we will face  certain  risks
inherent in such transactions.

We may acquire,  make investments in, or enter into strategic alliances or joint
ventures with, companies engaged in businesses that are similar or complementary
to ours. If we make such  acquisitions  or  investments  or enter into strategic
alliances,  we will  face  certain  risks  inherent  in such  transactions.  For
example,  we could face  difficulties in managing and integrating newly acquired
operations.
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Additionally,  such transactions  would divert management  resources.  We cannot
assure  you  that if we make any  future  acquisitions,  investments,  strategic
alliances or joint ventures that they will be completed in a timely manner, that
they  will  be   structured   or  financed  in  a  way  that  will  enhance  our
creditworthiness or that they will meet our strategic objectives or otherwise be
successful. Failure to effectively manage any of these transactions could result
in material increases in costs or reductions in expected revenues, or both.

     We May be exposed to potential risks relating to our internal controls over
financial  reporting and our ability to have those  controls  attested to by our
independent auditors.

As directed by Section 404 of the  Sarbanes-Oxley  Act of 2002 ("SOX 404"),  the
Securities and Exchange  Commission  adopted rules requiring public companies to
include a report of management on the company's internal controls over financial
reporting in their annual  reports,  including  Form  10-KSB.  In addition,  the
independent  registered  public  accounting firm auditing a company's  financial
statements  must also  attest to and report on  management's  assessment  of the
effectiveness  of the company's  internal  controls over financial  reporting as
well as the operating  effectiveness of the company's internal controls. We were
not subject to these  requirements for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006.
We  will  evaluate  our  internal  control  systems  depending  on the  ultimate
resolution of the applicability of the SOX 404 Rules to our Company.

Should we become  subject to the final SOX 404 Rules we may  expend  significant
resources in  developing  the  necessary  documentation  and testing  procedures
required by SOX 404, and there is a risk that we will not comply with all of the
requirements  imposed thereby. At present,  there is no precedent available with
which to measure  compliance  adequacy.  Accordingly,  there can be no  positive
assurance  that we will  receive a  positive  attestation  from our  independent
auditors  (if  that  is  required).   In  the  event  we  identify   significant
deficiencies  or material  weaknesses  in our internal  controls  that we cannot
remediate in a timely manner or we are unable to receive a positive  attestation
from our independent  auditors with respect to our internal controls,  investors
and others may lose  confidence in the  reliability of our financial  statements
and our ability to obtain equity or debt financing could suffer.

                        RISKS RELATED TO OUR COMMON STOCK

     Trading on the OTC Bulletin Board may be volatile and sporadic, which could
depress  the market  price of our  common  stock and make it  difficult  for our
stockholders to resell their shares.

Our common  stock is quoted on the OTC  Bulletin  Board  service of the National
Association of Securities  Dealers.  Trading in stock quoted on the OTC Bulletin
Board is often thin and  characterized  by wide  fluctuations in trading prices,
due to many factors that may have little to do with our  operations  or business
prospects.  This  volatility  could depress the market price of our common stock
for reasons unrelated to operating performance. Moreover, the OTC Bulletin Board
is not a stock exchange,  and trading of securities on the OTC Bulletin Board is
often more sporadic than the trading of securities  listed on a quotation system
like Nasdaq or a stock exchange like Amex.  Accordingly,  shareholders  may have
difficulty reselling any of the shares.

The market price of our common shares has experienced  significant  fluctuations
and may  continue to fluctuate  significantly  due to various  factors,  some of
which  are  beyond  our  control,  such as  market  acceptance  of  programming,
technological innovation by our competitors, quarterly variations in our revenue
and  results of  operations,  general  market  conditions  or market  conditions
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specific to particular industries, including the television and media sector. In
addition,  given the  extremely  limited  trading  volume in our  common  stock,
stockholders  seeking to liquidate all or some of their  holdings may experience
difficulty in doing so.

     Our common stock is deemed to be "penny stock". Trading of our stock may be
restricted by the SEC's penny stock  regulations  and the NADSD's sales practice
requirements,  which may limit a stockholder's ability to buy and sell our stock
due to suitability requirements.

     Historically,  our common stock has been deemed to be "penny stock" as that
term is defined in Rule 3a51-1  promulgated  under the Exchange Act. Penny stock
may be more difficult for investors to resell. Penny stocks are stocks:

     [_]  Having a price of less than $5.00 per share

     [_]  Not traded on a "recognized" national exchange
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     [_]  Not quoted on the Nasdaq  automated  quotation  system  (Nasdaq-listed
          stock must still have a price of not less than $5.00 per share); or

     [_]  Of issuers  with net  tangible  assets less than $2.0  million (if the
          issuer has been in  continuous  operation for at least three years) or
          $5.0 million (if in  continuous  operation for less than three years),
          or with average  revenues of less than $6.0 million for the last three
          years.

The closing bid price for our common stock on the OTC Bulletin Board on December
18, 2006, was $0.024.

Under the penny stock regulations, a broker-dealer selling penny stock to anyone
other than an  established  customer or  "accredited  investor,"  generally,  an
individual  with  net  worth in  excess  of  US$1,000,000  or an  annual  income
exceeding US$200,000, or US$300,000 together with his or her spouse, must make a
special  suitability  determination  for the  purchaser  and  must  receive  the
purchaser's  written  consent  to the  transaction  prior  to sale,  unless  the
broker-dealer  or the transaction is otherwise  exempt.  In addition,  the penny
stock regulations require the broker-dealer to deliver, prior to any transaction
involving a penny  stock,  a  disclosure  schedule  prepared  by the  Commission
relating to the penny stock market, unless the broker- dealer or the transaction
is otherwise  exempt. A broker-dealer  is also required to disclose  commissions
payable to the  broker-dealer  and the  registered  representative  and  current
quotations for the  securities.  Finally,  a  broker-dealer  is required to send
monthly statements disclosing recent price information with respect to the penny
stock held in a customer's  account and information  with respect to the limited
market in penny stocks.

In  addition  to the "penny  stock"  rules  promulgated  by the  Securities  and
Exchange   Commission,   the  NASD  has  adopted  rules  that  require  that  in
recommending an investment to a customer,  a broker-dealer  must have reasonable
grounds for believing that the  investment is suitable for that customer.  Prior
to  recommending  speculative low priced  securities to their  non-institutional
customers,  broker-dealers  must make reasonable  efforts to obtain  information
about the customer's  financial status,  tax status,  investment  objectives and
other information.  Under interpretations of these rules, the NASD believes that
there is a high probability  that speculative low priced  securities will not be
suitable  for at  least  some  customers.  The  NASD  requirements  make it more
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difficult for  broker-dealers  to recommend that their  customers buy our common
stock,  which may limit  your  ability to buy and sell our  stock.  Rather  than
having to comply with these rules, some broker-dealers will refuse to attempt to
sell a penny stock.

     Future sales of common stock by our existing  stockholders  could cause our
stock price to decline.

As of September 30, 2006, we had 77,822,277  outstanding shares of common stock.
Approximately  58,993,366 of those shares are freely  tradable  without  further
registration  under  the  Securities  Act of 1933.  Furthermore,  an  additional
136,104,486  shares of our common stock that are issuable upon the completion of
performance of a stock  subscription  agreement with R.J. Halden Holdings,  Inc.
These shares will be  "restricted  securities,"  as that term is defined by Rule
144 under the Securities Act, and may be sold in the public market only if their
resale is registered or if they qualify for an exemption from registration under
the Securities Act. Furthermore, any shares of common stock that are held by our
"affiliates,"  as that term is defined in Rule 144, may be publicly sold only if
the  sale is  registered  under  the  Securities  Act or if the  sale is made in
compliance  with certain volume  limitations and other  restrictions  imposed by
Rule 144, regardless as to whether the issuance of such shares to our affiliates
was registered under the Securities Act.

The release into the public market of a large number of freely  tradable  shares
and restricted  securities that are now eligible or subsequently become eligible
for  public  resale  under Rule 144 could  cause the market  price of our common
stock to decline.  The  perception  among  investors  that these sales may occur
could produce the same adverse effect on our market price.

     We do not anticipate issuing dividends to our stockholders.

We do not anticipate  issuing  dividends to our  stockholders in the foreseeable
future.  In the event we achieve  profitability  in the future,  the issuance of
dividends  will be at the  discretion  of our board of directors and will depend
on, among other things, our earnings, financial condition, capital requirements,
level of indebtedness,  statutory and contractual  restrictions  applying to the
payment of dividends, and other considerations that our board of directors deems
relevant. Accordingly, stockholders may have to sell some or all of their common
stock in order to generate cash flow from their investment.
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     R.J. Halden Holdings,  Inc.  currently has a stock  subscription  agreement
with the Company that if fulfilled  will give it a controlling  60+% interest in
our voting stock and investors may not have any voice in our management.

R.J. Halden Holdings,  Inc. will have the ability to control  substantially  all
matters submitted to our stockholders for approval, including:

     .    election of our board of directors;
     .    removal of any of our directors;
     .    amendment of our certificate of incorporation or bylaws; and
     .    adoption of  measures  that could delay or prevent a change in control
          or impede a merger,  takeover or other business combination  involving
          us.

As a result of their ownership and positions,  R. J. Halden  Holdings,  Inc. and
our  directors  and executive  officers  collectively  are able to influence all
matters requiring stockholder approval,  including the election of directors and
approval  of  significant  corporate   transactions.   In  addition,   sales  of
significant amounts of shares held by R.J. Halden Holdings,  Inc., our directors
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and executive  officers,  or the prospect of these sales, could adversely affect
the  market  price  of our  common  stock.  R.  J.  Halden  Holdings,  Inc.  and
management's  stock ownership may discourage a potential  acquirer from making a
tender  offer or  otherwise  attempting  to obtain  control of us, which in turn
could  reduce our stock  price or prevent  our  stockholders  from  realizing  a
premium over our stock price.

     Substantial dilution - future issuance of shares

The Company has no significant  tangible assets and the book value of its common
stock is substantially  less than the purchase price and upon acquisition of the
underlying  securities,  the  investors  will incur  substantial  dilution.  The
Company most likely will issue a significant  number of additional shares in the
future to raise additional working capital in order to fund operations,  recruit
and retain an effective management team,  compensate our officers and directors,
engage industry consultants and for other business development  activities.  The
investors  may  face  substantial  additional  dilution  resulting  from  future
issuances of its securities.

                                   Other Risks

     Trends, Risks and Uncertainties

We have sought to identify what we believe to be the most  significant  risks to
our business,  but we cannot  predict  whether,  or to what extent,  any of such
risks may be realized nor can we guarantee that we have  identified all possible
risks that might arise.  Investors  should  carefully  consider all of such risk
factors before making an investment decision with respect to our common stock.

Impact of inflation

Management  does not  believe  that  general  inflation  has had or will  have a
material effect on operations.

Item 7.   Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The Financial  Statements  and Financial  Statement  Schedule filed as a part of
This  Annual  Report on Form  10-KSB  are  listed  on the Index to  Consolidated
Financial Statements on page 45.

Item 8.   Changes  in and  Disagreements  with  Accountants  on  Accounting  and
          Financial Disclosure

On May 31, 2006, Comiskey & Company LP,  ("Comiskey"),  the independent auditors
of the  Registrant,  notified the Registrant  that Comiskey was resigning due to
their  decision  to reduce the number of Public  Company  clients  for whom they
provide audit  services.  The  accountant's  report of Comiskey on the financial
statements of the Registrant for the years ended September 30, 2005 and 2004 did
not contain any adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion,  and was not qualified
or modified as to uncertainty (other than a going concern modification  relating
to the report for the years ended 2005 and 2004),  audit  scope,  or  accounting
principles. Comiskey's decision to resign was not approved or recommended by the
Registrant's  Board of Directors,  audit  committee or similar  committee of the
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Board of Directors. During the two years ended September 30, 2005 and subsequent
period  through May 31, 2006, (a) there were no  disagreements  with Comiskey on
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any  matter  of  accounting   principles  or  practices,   financial   statement
disclosure, or auditing scope or procedures, which disagreements if not resolved
to  Comiskey's  satisfaction  would have caused  Comiskey to make  reference  in
connection  with its report to the subject matter of the  disagreement,  and (b)
Comiskey had not advised the Registrant of any  reportable  events as defined in
paragraphs (1) through (3) of Regulation S-B, Item 304(a)(1)(iv)(B).

Engagement of New Accountants

On June 16,  2006,  the  Registrant  engaged  the firm of The Hall  Group,  CPAs
("Hall") as its new independent  accountants.  Hall was not consulted  regarding
the application of accounting principles to a specific completed or contemplated
transaction;  or the type of audit  opinion to be  rendered  with  regard to the
Registrant's financial statements;  or any disagreements or reportable events as
such terms are used in Regulation S-B, Item 304(a)(2). The change in accountants
from  Comiskey  to Hall was the  subject  of a report on Form 8-K dated  June 7,
2006.

Item 8A.  Controls and Procedures.

As required by Rule 13a-15  under the  Securities  Exchange  Act of 1934,  as of
September 30, 2006,  the end of the period  covered by this Annual  Report,  our
management  concluded  its  evaluation  of the  effectiveness  of the design and
operation of our disclosure  controls and  procedures.  Disclosure  controls and
procedures  are  controls  and  procedures  designed to  reasonably  assure that
information  required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the  Securities
Exchange  Act of 1934,  such as this  Annual  Report,  is  recorded,  processed,
summarized  and  reported  within the time periods  prescribed  by SEC rules and
regulations,  and to reasonably  assure that such information is accumulated and
communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and acting
Chief  Financial   Officer,   to  allow  timely  decisions   regarding  required
disclosure.

Our  management,  including  our Chief  Executive  Officer  and Chief  Financial
Officer,  do not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures will prevent
all error and all  fraud.  A control  system,  no matter how well  designed  and
operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute,  assurance that the control
system's  objectives will be met.  Further,  the design of a control system must
reflect  the fact that  there are  resource  constraints,  and the  benefits  of
controls  must be  considered  relative to their costs.  Because of the inherent
limitations  in all control  systems,  no  evaluation  of  controls  can provide
absolute  assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have
been detected.  These inherent  limitations include the realities that judgments
in  decision-making  can be faulty,  and that  breakdowns  can occur  because of
simple  error or mistake.  The design of any system of controls is based in part
upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be
no assurance  that any design will  succeed in achieving  its stated goals under
all potential future conditions.

As of the  evaluation  date,  our Chief  Executive  Officer and Chief  Financial
Officer concluded that we maintain  disclosure  controls and procedures that are
effective in providing  reasonable  assurance  that  information  required to be
disclosed in our reports under the Securities  Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded,
processed,  summarized  and reported  within the time periods  prescribed by SEC
rules and regulations, and that such information is accumulated and communicated
to our management,  including the Chief  Executive  Officer and the acting Chief
Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

There have been no  significant  changes in our  internal  controls  or in other
factors  that  could  significantly  affect  these  controls  subsequent  to the
evaluation date.
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Item 8B.  Other Information

     Not Applicable.
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                                    PART III

Item 9.   Directors,   Executive   Officers,   Promoters  and  Control  Persons:
          Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act

The directors and executive  officers of the Company as of December 29, 2006 are
as follows:

                Name              Age                Position
                ----              ---                --------
Jacob R. Miles III............    52      Chairman of the Board and Chief
                                          Executive Officer

Randy Moseley ................    59      Executive Vice President, Chief
                                          Financial Officer, Director

Dr. Ajibike O. Akinkoye ......    52      Director

Marc Pace.....................    49      Director

Stanley Woods ................    52      Director, Secretary

The term of office for each director is one (1) year, or until his/her successor
is elected at the Company's annual meeting and is qualified.  The term of office
for each  officer of the Company is at the  pleasure of the board of  directors,
except for Randy Moseley. - See Item 10 - Executive Compensation.

Jacob R. Miles III, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board. Mr. Miles
is  also  currently   President  of  Grapevine  Star   Entertainment,   Inc.  an
entertainment development and production company, a company he founded. Prior to
2002,  Mr. Miles served as President  and CEO of Urban Cool  Network,  Inc.,  an
Internet Portal targeted at the Urban Community from 1997 to 2002. Mr. Miles has
also  served as  President  of the  Dallas-Fort  Worth  chapter of the  National
Association of Minorities in Cable.  He is a past  executive with Hasbro,  Tonka
and General Mills Entertainment Group.

Randy Moseley,  Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Director. Mr.
Moseley was  co-founder  of the Company in October  2001 and was the  President,
Chief  Executive  Officer  and  Chief  Financial  Officer  until  the  Company's
management  was  reorganized  In  October  of 2003  to  accommodate  the  Wright
Entertainment,  LLC purchased 51% of the  Company's  common stock.  Prior to the
founding of Urban  Television  Network  Corporation in October 2001, Mr. Moseley
was Executive Vice President and Chief Financial  Officer of Tensor  Information
Systems,  Inc., a custom software development company based in Fort Worth, Texas
from November  1999.  Prior to joining  Tensor,  Mr. Moseley served as Executive
Vice President and Chief  Financial  Officer for American  Independent  Network,
Inc. ("AIN"), a network for independent  broadcast television stations and cable
operators.  AIN merged with Hispanic Television  Network,  Inc. in November 1999
and its name  changed to  Hispanic  Television  Network,  Inc.  Previously,  Mr.
Moseley held positions with Jerry Lancaster & Associates Inc. and Ernst & Young.
Moseley received a bachelor's  degree in business  administration  from Southern
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Methodist  University  and is a certified  public  accountant.  Mr.  Moseley has
affiliations with the Texas Society of CPAs and the American Institute of CPAs.

Dr. Ajibike O. Akinkoye, Director. Dr. Akinkoye is currently the Chief Executive
Officer of Dove Media Group, Inc. which provides  programming through television
and radio to its member group around the world.  Having studied French,  English
and German for his first degree and obtained a First Class (Honors) in French as
major and German as  subsidiary,  was awarded a scholarship by the University of
Ibadan,  Nigeria,  to study for a Master's and a Doctorate degree in France. For
the Master's  degree,  he wrote his  dissertation on the Sociology of Literature
and Comparative Literature (French and English).He also took specialized courses
in Psychology,  Philosophy, and Communication Arts. As he proceeded to study for
the PhD he was awarded an equivalent of the M.A. in French by the  University of
Pennsylvania  while  doing part of his field work in  Philadelphia,  PA. in 1974
-75. He later  obtained the  "Doctorate"  from the  University of Bordeaux.  His
doctoral  thesis was on French and  English  writers of the Black  Diaspora  was
received  and  registered  at the  University  of  Paris.  He was sworn in as an
American citizen on Saturday, June 21, 2002.

Stanley Woods,  Corporate Secretary and Director.  He has served as President of
Cresson  Investments,  Inc., a corporate  planning and  consulting  firm,  since
October of 2001.  Mr. Woods taught at the junior  college and high school levels
from 1997 to 2001.  He received a Bachelor's  Degree in Business  Administration
from Tarleton State University in 1978.
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Marc Pace,  Corporate  Director.  He presently owns and operates M3X Real Estate
Development  and has been involved in the real estate  development  business for
the past ten years  plus  being  involved  in  several  oil and gas  development
projects. He received a Bachelor's Degree in Business Management from Texas Tech
University in 1976.

Compensation of Directors

The Company  does not pay any cash  compensation  for  attendance  at  directors
meetings or participation in directors' functions.

Committees of the Board of Directors

     Audit Committee

On September 30, 2002, our Board  approved an Audit  Committee  Charter.  During
2003,  the Board of Directors  appointed Marc Pace and Stanley Woods to serve on
the on the audit  committee.  The  audit  committee  will  make  recommendations
concerning  the engagement of independent  public  accountants,  review with the
independent  public  accountants the plans and results of such audit engagement,
approve  professional  services provided by the independent public  accountants,
review the  independence of the  independent  public  accountants,  consider the
range of audit and  non-audit  fees and  review  the  adequacy  of our  internal
accounting controls.

     Compensation Committee

We did  not  have a  formal  Compensation  Committee  during  2006 or  2005.  We
anticipate  forming  such a  committee  to  make  recommendations  to the  Board
concerning compensation of our executive officers.

     Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation
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No executive officer or director of the company serves as an executive  officer,
director or member of a compensation  committee of any other entity for which an
executive officer, director or member of such entity is a member of the Board or
the Compensation Committee of the Board. There are no other interlocks.

     Advisory Committee

The Company has named six  individuals to its advisory  committee (the "Advisory
Committee")  with  additional  individuals to follow as the Company  grows.  Its
members are expected to come from major demographic areas across the country and
Include people from corporate and entertainment  fields.  The advisory committee
members named are as follows:

Michael Gade - Executive in Attendance in Retail Marketing for the University of
North Texas. Past corporate experience includes Regional CEO of Home Depot where
responsible  for complete P/L of 113 stores in the Southwest  region  generating
$4.2 Billion in sales and over 9% profit.  Prior to Home Depot, Mike was the Sr.
Vice  President of  Merchandising,  Marketing  and Business  Development  at the
7-Eleven Corporation with over 5,600 stores and $10.2 Billion in annual revenue.
Other corporate  experience  includes;  the Associates First Capital Corporation
where he increased the asset base from $35 Billion to $98 Billion and introduced
celebrity  Terry  Bradshaw as a company  spokesperson  and grew  revenue by $1.4
Billion;  Former  Chairman  of  Coppers & Lybrand  International  where Mike was
responsible  for growing and overseeing  $860 Million in  professional  services
revenue. Mike has published a number of books and was named the Marketing Man of
the year by the  American  Marketing  Association  in 1987.  Mike also sits on a
number of corporate and charity boards.

Senator  Manny  Aragon - New Mexico  Senator  Aragon has  dedicated  his life to
public service. Senator Aragon brings a lifetime of wisdom and knowledge related
to the needs and desires of the Hispanic and other urban communities in America.
Senator  Manny  Aragon has served in the New Mexico  State  Senate  representing
District  14  Since  1975.  He is  currently  the  Majority  Floor  Leader,  was
previously the President Pro-Tempore, and Chaired the Committees' Committee, the
Judiciary  Committee,  the Rules Committee,  the Council of State  Governments -
West, and the National Energy Council.  He is currently a member of the National
Energy Council,  National  Association of Latino Elected  Officials,  Council of
State Governments - National,  the Board of Directors of the National Democratic
Campaign  Committee,  the Board of the Mexican American State Legislator  Policy
Institute,  the New Mexico Bar Association and the Albuquerque  Hispanic Chamber
of  Commerce.  In June of 2004,  Senator  Aragon was  appointed  by the Board of
Regents to be the new  President  of New Mexico  Highlands  University.  Senator
Aragon has  maintained a private law practice in  Albuquerque,  New Mexico since
1986.  Senator Aragon received a Bachelor of Arts in Political  Science from the
University  of New Mexico in 1970 and a Juris Doctor from The  University of New
Mexico School of Law in 1973.
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Jill Darden - Publisher of the Fort Worth Black News,  a newspaper  highlighting
activities and accomplishments in the local African-American community. She also
produces and hosts a television show that is featured on the local cable system.
Ms. Darden  graduated with a degree in Broadcast  Journalism from the University
of Texas at Arlington. While in college, she was elected Miss UTA and became the
First  African-American  to hold the title.  She was  pictured  in the  national
publication  of Ebony  Magazine  among  black  college  queens.  Ms.  Darden has
received the  Leadership  Award From the U.S.  Department  of Commerce  Minority
Business  Development Agency. She has published a book of poetry call Back Talk,
poetic confessions from the soul and received the Paul R. Ellis Media Award from
the American Heart Association for her story, Search Your Heart.
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After formation,  the Advisory Committee should meet with the Company's Board of
Directors no less than  quarterly  for the purpose of  discussing  the Company's
operations.  The Advisory Committee shall have no binding authority,  but it may
advise and consult with the Chief  Executive  Officer and report to the Board of
Directors.  The Company will reimburse the members of the Advisory Committee for
their expenses,  but they shall not be paid any  compensation for serving on the
Advisory Committee.

     Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

Section  16(a) of the  Securities  Exchange Act of 1934  requires the  Company's
Directors  and  executive  officers,  and  persons  who own more than 10% of the
Company's  Common Stock,  to file with the  Securities  and Exchange  Commission
(a)initial  reports of beneficial  ownership (From 3), (b) reports of changes in
(b) beneficial  ownership of Common Stock of the Company (Form 4) and (c) annual
reports of beneficial  ownership  (Form 5). Copies of those reports must also be
furnished  to us.  Randy  Moseley was late in filing one Form 4 and Form 5. Marc
Pace, Carl Olivieri, Stanley Woods, and Dr. Ajibike Akinkoye were Late in filing
one Form 4 and Form 5 each.

Item 10.  Executive Compensation

Jacob R. Miles III, Chief  Executive  Officer,  received stock (see table below)
issued under the 2003 Non-Qualified Stock Grant and Option Plan discussed below.
Mr. Miles has an employment  agreement as set forth below in this Item 10. There
is no health insurance,  retirement,  pension, profit sharing or similar program
currently in effect.

Randy Moseley, President, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer at
September 30, 2003, and currently  Executive Vice President and Chief  Financial
Officer,  received  stock (see table below) issued under the 2003  Non-Qualified
Stock Grant and Option Plan discussed  below.  Randy Moseley,  President,  Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer has an employment agreement as set
forth below in this Item 10. There is no health insurance,  retirement, pension,
profit sharing or similar program currently in effect.

2003  Non-Qualified  Stock Grant and Option Plan.  The Company is  authorized to
issue up to 6,800,000 shares of common stock under its 2003 Non-Qualified  Stock
Grant and Option Plan (the "Plan") through an S-8 registration,  as amended. The
Board of Directors  has the  authority to determine  the persons to whom options
will be granted, The number of shares to be covered by each option. This Plan is
intended to serve as an inventive to and to encourage stock ownership by certain
directors,  officers,  employees of and certain persons rendering service to the
Company, so that they may acquire or increase their proprietary  interest in the
success  of the  Company,  and to  encourage  them to  remain  in the  Company's
service.  During the period ended  September 30, 2004,  the Company  distributed
1,586,000 of the shares through  grants.  During the period ended  September 30,
2005, the Company Distributed 200,000 shares through grants.

                                       38

The following table provides  information  about our Chief Executive Officer and
each of our executive  officers who received salary and bonus in the years ended
September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2004, that exceeded  $100,000,  these persons being
collectively referred to as "named executive officers."

Edgar Filing: URBAN TELEVISION NETWORK CORP - Form 10KSB

48



                                                            Other Annual      All Other
Name and principal position   Year    Salary        Bonus   Compensation    Compensation
---------------------------   ----    ------        -----   ------------    ------------

Jacob R. Miles
 Executive Vice President     2004   $  6,500         --     $ 25,000(1)        --
    CEO May-Sept)             2005   $ 69,500(2)      --     $150,000(3)        --
                              2006   $141,000(4)      --       42,000(5)        --

Edward Maddox
    President (April-Sept)    2004   $ 30,000         --     $250,000(6)        --
    President (Sept - June)   2005   $ 37,000         --        --              --

Randy Moseley
    Chief Executive Officer   2004   $200,000(7)      --     $250,000(8)        --
    Executive VP/CFO          2005   $200,000(9)      --        --              --
    Executive VP/CFO          2006   $156,000(10)     --       42,000(11)       --

Stanley Woods
    Secretary                 2004   $ 50,000         --     $250,000(12)       --
    Secretary                 2005   $ 50,000         --        --              --
    Secretary                 2006   $ 10,500(13)     --     $ 14,000(14)       --

     (1)  Represents  $25,000 in value for  issuance  of  150,000  shares of our
          restricted common stock to Mr. Miles.

     (2)  This amount includes $34,000 paid and $35,500 accrued but unpaid.

     (3)  Represents  $150,000 in value for issuance of 1,500,000  shares of our
          restricted common stock to Mr. Miles.

     (4)  This amount includes $6,000 paid and $135,000 accrued but unpaid.

     (5)  Represents  $42,000 in value for issuance of  1,500,000  shares of our
          restricted common stock to Mr. Miles.

     (6)  Represents  $250,000 in value for issuance of 2,500,000  shares of our
          restricted common stock to Mr. Maddox.

     (7)  We entered into an Employment Agreement with Mr. Moseley on October 1,
          2003,  however,  no  compensation  was paid under the  agreement as of
          September 30, 2004. We accrued  $200,000 as deferred  compensation for
          services performed for the period ended September 30, 2004.

     (8)  Represents  $250,000 in value for issuance of 2,500,000  shares of our
          restricted common stock to Mr. Moseley.

     (9)  This amount includes $200,000 accrued but unpaid.

     (10) This amount includes $6,000 paid and $150,000 accrued but unpaid.

     (11) Represents  $42,000 in value for issuance of  1,500,000  shares of our
          restricted common stock to Mr. Moseley.

     (12) Represents  $250,000 in value for issuance of 2,500,000  shares of our
          restricted common stock to Mr. Woods.

     (13) This amount includes $2,500 paid and $8,000 accrued but unpaid.

     (14) Represents  $14,000 in value for  issuance  of  500,000  shares of our
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          restricted common stock to Mr. Woods.

Option Grants in Last Fiscal Year

We did not grant any options to our named executive  officers during fiscal year
2006.

Aggregated  Option  Exercises  in Last  Fiscal  Year and Fiscal  Year End Option
Values

                                       39

During fiscal year 2006 no options were exercised.

     Stock Grants in Last Fiscal Year

During  the 2006  fiscal  year the  Company  did not issue any stock  grants for
common  stock  under The 2003  Non-Qualified  Stock  Grant and  Option  Plan for
consulting services.

     Employment Agreements with Executive Officers

Mr. Randy Moseley is employed pursuant to a five-year  employment agreement that
commenced on October 2, 2002.  The  agreement  provides for a base annual salary
equal to $200,000 and a possible annual cash bonus as determined by the Board of
Directors  and/or the  Compensation  Committee.  In October 2003, the employment
agreement  of Mr.  Moseley was extended and amended to allow for the naming of a
new President and Chief Executive Officer for the Company.  Mr. Moseley accepted
the officer position of Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer and
agreed to defer the payment of his salary for the period from October 2, 2002 to
September  30,  2003  with  this  deferred  year  being  added to the end of the
original employment term to make the term of the employment agreement now end on
September  30,  2008.  During the  periods  ended  September  30, 2006 and 2005,
$376,000  and $150,000 of Mr.  Moseley's  annual  compensation  was accrued as a
payable.  At September 30, 2006, a total of $376,000 in compensation was accrued
as a payable to Mr. Moseley.

Mr.  Jacob R.  Miles III,  is  employed  as the  Company's  President  and Chief
Executive Officer pursuant to a three-year  employment  agreement that commenced
effective January 1, 2006. The agreement provides for a base annual salary equal
to $225,000 with a minimum of annual  increases of 5% and a possible annual cash
bonus as determined by the Board of Directors and/or the Compensation Committee.
During the period  ended  September  30,  2006,  $56,250  of Mr.  Miles'  annual
compensation  was  accrued as a  payable.  At  September  30,  2006,  a total of
$121,750 in compensation was accrued as a payable to Mr. Miles.

Item 11.  Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

As of December 29, 2006 we had  92,580,102  shares of common stock  outstanding.
The following table sets forth information  concerning  beneficial  ownership of
shares of our common stock as of December 29, 2006:

     o    each person (or group  within the  meaning of Section  13(d)(3) of the
          (Exchange  Act)  known  to us to own more  than 5% of our  outstanding
          common stock;

     o    each director;

     o    each executive officer; and
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     o    all directors and executive officers as a group.

Except as  otherwise  noted,  the named  beneficial  holder has sole  voting and
investment  power.  The address for all  officers  and  directors  is 2707 South
Cooper Street, Suite 119, Arlington, Texas 76015.

                                                         Shares of Common Stock
                                                         Beneficially Owned (*)
                                                       -------------------------
                                                         Number          Percent
                                                       ----------        -------
Jacob R. Miles III (1) (2) .........................    4,760,000          5.14%
R.J.Halden Holdings, Inc.(2)........................   17,990,825         19.43%
Randy Moseley...(1)(2) (3)..........................    2,220,000          2.40%
Marc Pace (1).......................................    1,000,000          1.08%
Stanley Woods (1)...................................      500,000           .54%
All officers and directors as a group
 (persons)..........................................   26,470,825         28.60%

     (1)  Directors and Officers
     (2)  5% Beneficial shareholder
     (3)  Randy Moseley's  shares  includes  100,000 shares owned by his spouse,
          therefore he is deemed a beneficial  owner of these  shares.  Does not
          include an aggregate of  2,475,000  shares owned by Jonathan  Moseley,
          adult son of Randy Moseley,  who does not reside with him. Mr. Moseley
          disclaims Beneficial ownership of the shares owned by his adult son.
  --------
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(*)  As used in this  table,  "beneficial  ownership"  means  the sole or shared
     power to vote,  or to direct  the  voting  of, a  security,  or the sole or
     shared  investment  power with  respect to a security  (i.e.,  the power to
     dispose of, or to direct the  disposition  of, a security) and includes the
     ownership of a security through corporate,  partnership, or trust entities.
     In  addition,  for  purposes of this table,  a person is deemed,  as of any
     date, to have  "beneficial  ownership" of any security that such person has
     the right to acquire within 60 days after such date.

Item 12.  Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

In January 2002, the Company underwent a change of control with the directors of
the Company  appointing the directors and officers of Urban  Television  Network
Corporation,  a  Texas  corporation,  (Urban-Texas)  as the  new  directors  and
officers of the Company, and at the same time resigning their board positions.

On May 1, 2002,  the Company  entered  into an  agreement  with  Urban-Texas  to
acquire  the rights to the  Urban-Texas  affiliate  network  signal  space which
included  the  assignment  of  the  Urban-Texas   broadcast  television  station
affiliates for 16,000,0000  shares of common stock,  which became 800,000 shares
after the 1 for 20 reverse split in November 2002.

On February 7, 2003, the Company  entered into a Stock  Exchange  Agreement with
the majority  shareholders  of Urban-Texas to acquire  approximately  90% of the
issued and  outstanding  capital stock of Urban-Texas  (13,248,000 of 14,759,000
shares) in  exchange  for the  Company's  issuance of  13,248,000  shares of its
authorized but unissued common stock,  $.0001 par value (the "Exchange Shares"),
to the majority shareholders of Urban-Texas.

Urban-Texas  is  considered  the  accounting  acquirer,   and  the  accompanying
financial  statements  include the operations of  Urban-Texas  from the earliest
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period   presented.   The  transaction  with  the  Company  is  presented  as  a
recapitalization of Urban-Texas.

The consideration  exchanged in Stock Exchange  Agreement was negotiated between
the Company and Urban-Texas in a transaction with management.  The management of
the Company and Urban- Texas,  were the same  individuals.  The transaction does
not represent an arms-length transaction.

On May 7, 2002, the new majority company shareholder,  Urban Television, a Texas
corporation,  authorized an amendment to the Articles of Incorporation  changing
the  corporate  name from Waste  Conversion  Systems,  Inc. to Urban  Television
Network  Corporation.  This authorization was implemented by the written consent
of the majority  shareholders  in lieu of a special  meeting.  The new corporate
name became effective in June 2002 when the Amendment to the Company's  Articles
of Incorporation were filed with the Nevada Secretary of State. This filing took
place after notice to the Company shareholders in accordance with the disclosure
provisions of the Schedule 14C Information Statement.

Urban Television Network  Corporation  (Urban-Texas),  a Texas corporation,  was
organized  in October 2001 for the purpose of  acquiring  the original  American
Independent  Network (AIN) television  broadcast  signal and television  network
affiliate  base from Hispanic  Television  Network,  Inc. AIN provided a general
market,  family-oriented  programming  to its  network  affiliates.  Urban-Texas
changed the AIN  programming  format when it acquired the  broadcast  signal and
affiliate base from HTVN to focus the programming content on the ethnic minority
programming interests of African-American viewers across the United States.

In year 2003, the Company began using the services of Clear Fork Communications,
a company  (in which  Marc  Pace,  a director  of Urban  Television,  owns a 15%
interest),  that  provides the Company  with the  equipment  and master  control
services to put the  Company's  programming  on the  satellite for the broadcast
affiliates to receive and  rebroadcast to their local  markets.  During the year
ended  September  30, 2004,  the total  expense paid out for these  services was
$430,367.

During the year ended  September  2003, the Company  executed  interest  bearing
notes with certain shareholders. The principal borrowed of $168,765 plus accrued
interest of $29,750 were converted to a non-interest payable to the shareholder.
As discussed  below,  the  shareholder  agreed to reduce the Company  payable by
$198,515 to apply  towards the purchase of common stock by Wright  Entertainment
LLC during the year ended  September 30, 2004.  This note was reinstated as part
of the termination  agreement with Wright  Entertainment LLC discussed in Note 5
to the financial  statements included in this 10KSB filing. In February 0f 2005,
the note was converted to 1,000,000  shares of the Company's common stock by the
noteholder.
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The Company  executed an interest bearing note with a shareholder of the Company
during the period ended September 30, 2003 to pay operating expenses. During the
period ended September 30, 2003 the amounts loaned totaled $132,200.  During the
period ended  September 30, 2004, the Company repaid  $130,000 and the remaining
$2,200 was repaid during the year ended September 30, 2005.

The Company  executed  interest  bearing noted with a shareholder of the Company
during the period ended September 30, 2004 to pay operating expenses. During the
period  ended  September  30,  2004 the  amounts  loaned  totaled  $400,000.  In
September  2005,  $228,290 of this note was  converted  to  2,282,900  shares of
common  stock by the  noteholder  and the  remaining  balance  of  $171,710  was
increased to $358,016 at September 30, 2006 as part of an increased  bridge loan
of $492,400 which is associated  with a stock  subscription  agreement with R.J.
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Halden  Holdings,  Inc. to purchase  136,104,486  shares of the Company's common
stock for $1,500,000.  See Note 7 to the financial statements for the disclosure
of terms, interest rate and conversion privileges and Note 9 for the description
of the subscription agreement.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005, Randy Moseley, CFO advanced the
Company $30,900 for operating expenses.

During the fiscal year ended  September 30, 2006,  Jacob R. Miles,  CEO advanced
the Company $30,000 for operating expenses.

During the fiscal year ended September 30, 2006, Randy Moseley, CRO advanced The
Company $43,500 for operating expenses and received reimbursements of $22,000.
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Item 13.  Exhibits, LISTS and Reports on Form 8-K

     (a)  EXHIBITS

Exhibit No.    Description and Method of Filing
-----------    --------------------------------

 2.0           Asset Purchase Agreement w/o Exhibits

10.1           Promissory Note

10.2           Satellite  Transponder  Space Service  Agreement between Hispanic
               Television Network, Inc. and Urban Television Network Corporation
               dated on, or about October 28, 2001

10.3           Agreement  between Hispanic  Television  Network,  Inc. and Urban
               Television Network Corporation dated November 13, 2001

10.5           Satellite  Space  Agreement  with Loral Skynet dated on, or about
               November 22, 2002

10.6           Employment  Agreement  by and  between  Randy  Moseley  and Urban
               Television Network Corporation, dated October 2, 2002.

10.7           Employment  Agreement  by and  between  Stanley  Woods  and Urban
               Television Network Corporation, dated October 2, 2002.

10.8           Bridge Loan Agreement and Promissory Notes with stockholder.

10.9           World One  Media  Group,  Inc.  Subscription  Agreement  with the
               Company
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10.10          World One Media Group, Inc. Promissory Note to the Company

10.11          World One Media Group, Inc. Warrant Agreement with the Company

10.12          Miles  Investment  Group,  LLC  Subscription  Agreement  with the
               Company

10.13          Miles Investment Group, LLC Promissory Note to the Company

10.14          Miles Investment Group, LLC Warrant Agreement with the Company

10.15          Master Service Agreement with Westar Satellite  Services LP dated
               on, or about October 15, 2005.

10.16          Satellite Space Agreement with Intelsat,  Inc. dated on, or about
               December 2, 2005

10.17          Employment  Agreement by and between Jacob R. Miles III and Urban
               Television Network Corporation, dated January 1, 2006.

10.18          R. J.  Halden  Holdings,  Inc.  Subscription  Agreement  with the
               Company

10.19          R.J. Halden Holdings, Inc. Promissory Note to the Company

10.20          R.J. Halden Holdings, Inc. Bridge Loan Agreement with the Company

10.21          Amended Bridge Loan Note with R.J. Halden Holdings, Inc.

31.1*          Certification  by Chief  Executive  Officer,  pursuant  to 18 USC
               Section   1350  as  adopted   pursuant  to  Section  302  of  the
               Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2*          Certification  by Chief  Financial  Officer,  pursuant  to 18 USC
               Section   1350  as  adopted   pursuant  to  Section  302  of  the
               Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1*          Certification  by Chief  Executive  Officer,  pursuant  to 18 USC
               Section   1850  as  adopted   pursuant  to  Section  906  of  the
               Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.2*          Certification  by Chief  Financial  Officer,  pursuant  to 18 USC
               Section   1850  as  adopted   pursuant  to  Section  906  of  the
               Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

21*            Subsidiaries of the Registrant.

-----------------
*Filed herewith.
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     (b)  Reports on Form 8-K.

     On  October  3,  2006,  we filed a Form 8-K  announcing  the  entry  into a
material definitive  agreement with R.J. Halden Holdings,  Inc., the termination
of a material  definitive  agreement with Miles  Investment  Group,  LLC and the
change in control of the Company.

     On November 3, 2006, we filed a Form 8-K announcing the resignation of Carl
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Olivieri as Executive  Vice  President and as a member of the Board of Directors
of the Company.

Item 14.  Principal Accountant Fees and Services

Audit Fees. The aggregate fees billed by our auditors, for professional services
rendered for the audit of our annual  financial  statements  for the years ended
September  30, 2006 and 2005,  and for the reviews of the  financial  statements
included in our Quarterly  Reports on Form 10-QSB during those fiscal years were
$15,637 and $11,577, respectively.

Audited  Related  Fees.  The  aggregate  fees billed for  assurance  and related
services  by  our  principal  accountant  that  are  reasonably  related  to the
performance of the audit or review of our financial statements, other than those
previously  reported in this Item 14, for the fiscal years ended  September  30,
2006 and 2005 were $-0- and $-0-, respectively.

Tax Fees.  The aggregate  fees billed for assurance and related  services by our
principal  accountant  for tax  compliance,  tax advice and tax planning for the
fiscal years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005 were $-0- and $-0-, respectively.

All Other Fees.  For the fiscal years ended  September 30, 2006 and 2005, we did
not incur fees to auditors for services  rendered to us, other than the services
covered in "Audit Fees".

Audit  Committee.  The  Company's  audit  committee  approved  all the  services
described above in this Item 14 for the year ended September 30, 2006.

                                   SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the  requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities  Exchange
Act of 1934,  the  Registrant  has duly  caused  this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

                                            Urban Television Network Corporation

                                            By:  /s/ Jacob R. Miles III
                                               ---------------------------------
                                               Jacob R. Miles III
                                               Chairman of the Board and CEO

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report
has been signed by the following  persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the
capacities indicated on January 12, 2006.

By: /s/ Jacob R. Miles III   Title:Chairman of the        Date: January 12, 2007
   -----------------------   Board
    Jacob R. Miles III

By: /s/ Jacob R. Miles III   Title:Chief Executive        Date: January 12, 2007
   -----------------------   Officer and Director
    Jacob R. Miles III

By: /s/ Randy Moseley        Title:Executive Vice         Date: January 12, 2007
   -----------------------   President Chief Financial
   Randy Moseley             Officer and Director
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By: /s/ Marc Pace            Title:Director               Date: January 12, 2007
   -----------------------
   Marc Pace

By: /s/ Stanley Woods        Title:Secretary, Director    Date: January 12, 2007
   -----------------------
   Stanley Woods
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                              FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our consolidated  financial statements are stated in United States Dollars (US$)
and are prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting  principles of
the United States of America.

The  following  financial  statements  pertaining  to Urban  Television  Network
Corporation and Subsidiaries are filed as part of this 10KSB:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended September 30, 2006 and
2005

Consolidated  Statements of  Stockholders'  Equity for the years ended September
30, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended September 30, 2006 and
2005

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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             REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Management of
Urban Television Network Corporation
Arlington, Texas

We have  audited the  accompanying  balance  sheet of Urban  Television  Network
Corporation as of September 30, 2006 and the related statements of income,  cash

Edgar Filing: URBAN TELEVISION NETWORK CORP - Form 10KSB

56



flows and  stockholders'  equity for the year ended  September  30, 2006.  These
financial  statements are the  responsibility of the Company's  management.  Our
responsibility  is to express an opinion on these financial  statements based on
our audit. The financial  statements of Urban Television Network  Corporation as
of September  30, 2005,  were audited by other  auditors  whose report was dated
December 30, 2005,  and expressed a qualified  opinion as to its continuing as a
going concern on those statements.

We conducted our audit of these  financial  statements  in  accordance  with the
standards of the Public  Company  Accounting  Oversight  Board (United  States).
Those standards  require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance   about  whether  the  financial   statements  are  free  of  material
misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes
assessing the  accounting  principles  used and  significant  estimates  made by
management,  as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion,  the financial  statements  referred to above present fairly, in
all  material  respects,  the  financial  position of Urban  Television  Network
Corporation  as of September 30, 2006, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the period then ended in conformity  with  accounting  principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

The  accompanying  financial  statements  have been  prepared  assuming that the
Company  will  continue  as a  going  concern.  As  discussed  in Note 12 to the
financial  statements,  the Company  has  suffered  significant  losses and will
require  additional capital to develop its business until the Company either (1)
achieves a level of revenues  adequate to  generate  sufficient  cash flows from
operations; or (2) obtains additional financing necessary to support its working
capital  requirements.  These  conditions  raise  substantial  doubt  about  the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern.  Management's  plans in regard
to these matters are also described in Note 11. The financial  statements do not
include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.

The Hall Group, CPAs
Dallas, Texas

January 12, 2007
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                      Urban Television Network Corporation

                           Consolidated Balance Sheets

                               September 30, 2006
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                                                                               2006            2005
                                                                           ------------    ------------

ASSETS

Current Assets:
 Cash and Cash Equivalents                                                 $      3,523    $     40,369
 Accounts Receivable                                                                 -           11,572
                                                                           ------------    ------------
      Total Current Assets                                                        3,523          51,941
                                                                           ------------    ------------

Fixed Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation)                                   40,244          97,520
                                                                           ------------    ------------

Other Assets
  Network Assets (Net of Amortization)                                           38,042          63,082
  Coal Reserves                                                               4,600,000       4,600,000
  Impairment of Coal Reserves                                                (4,600,000)             -

  Deposits                                                                           -            3,600
  Organizational Costs-Net                                                          360             360
                                                                           ------------    ------------
           Total Other Assets                                                    38,402       4,667,042
                                                                           ------------    ------------

           TOTAL ASSETS                                                    $     82,169    $  4,816,503
                                                                           ============    ============

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)

Current Liabilities:
  Accounts Payable                                                         $    977,932    $    403,192
  Due to Stockholders                                                           120,566         151,015
  Notes Payable to Stockholders                                                 742,527         337,367
  Advances                                                                      665,000         665,000
  Accrued Compensation                                                          637,825         341,760
  Accrued Interest Payable                                                       38,905           4,565
                                                                           ------------    ------------
       Total Liabilities (All Current)                                        3,182,755       1,902,899
                                                                           ------------    ------------

Stockholders' Equity (Deficit):
  Preferred Stock, $1 par value, 500,000 shares authorized,
   100,000 outstanding  at September 30, 2006                                   100,000         100,000
  Common Stock, $.0001 par value, 200,000,000 shares authorized,
   77,822,277 and 135,461,277 outstanding at September 30, 2006 and 2005          7,782          13,546
  Additional Paid-in Capital                                                 21,578,185      27,922,051
  Stock Subscription Receivable                                                      -       (6,690,000)
  Accumulated Deficit                                                       (24,786,553)    (18,431,993)
                                                                           ------------    ------------

      Total Stockholders' Equity                                             (3,100,586)      2,913,604
                                                                           ------------    ------------

        TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'EQUITY                          $     82,169    $  4,816,503
                                                                           ============    ============
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              The accompanying notes are an integral part of these
                             financial statements.
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                      Urban Television Network Corporation

                        Consolidated Statements of Income

                 For the years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005

                                                     2006            2005
                                                 ------------    ------------

REVEBUES                                         $     89,716    $    297,954
                                                 ------------    ------------

OPERATING EXPENSES:
 Satellite and Uplink Services                        486,488         360,254
 Master Control, Production                            98,047         267,254
 Programming                                           19,997         215,835
 Affiliate Relations                                   36,271          69,048
 Station Operating Costs                                   -          255,255
 Technology Expenses                                  124,914         215,068

 Administration                                       949,627       1,619,574
 Depreciation and Amortization                         82,307          92,193
                                                 ------------    ------------
 TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES                           1,797,651       3,094,481
                                                 ------------    ------------
NET OPERATING (L0SS)                               (1,707,935)     (2,796,527)

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE)
  Interest Expense                                    (46,791)        (45,032)
  Impairment of Coal Reserves                      (4,600,000)             -
                                                 ------------    ------------
                                                   (4,646,791)        (45,032)
                                                 ------------    ------------

NET (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES                     (6,354,726)     (2,841,559)

  Provision for Income Taxes (Expense) Benefit             -               -
                                                 ------------    ------------

NET (LOSS)                                       $ (6,354,726)   $ (2,841,559)

  Beginning Retained Earnings (Deficit)           (18,431,818)   (15,590,434))
                                                 ------------    ------------

ENDING RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT)               $(24,786,544)   $(18,431,993)
                                                 ============    ============
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Earnings per share:

 Net (loss)                                      $      (0.08)   $      (0.03)

Weighted average number of common
  shares outstanding                               77,822,277      81,426,150

              The accompanying notes are an integral part of these
                              financial statements.
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                      Urban Television Network Corporation

                      Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

                 For the years ended September 30, 2006 and 2005

                                                         2006           2005
                                                     -----------    -----------

Operating activities:
  Net (loss)                                         $(6,354,735)   $(2,841,559)
  Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) to
   net cash provided by operating activities:
    Depreciation and Amortization                         82,316         92,196
    Stock Issued for Services                            190,780        664,500
    Decrease in Accounts receivable                       11,572          3,283
    Decrease in Deposits                                   3,600         (3,600)
    Decrease in Coal Reserves                          4,600,000            --
    Increase in Accounts Payable                         574,740         68,789
    Increase in Other Advances                               --         665,000
    Increase in Accrued Compensation                     296,065        191,760
    Decrease in Deferred Revenue                            --          (67,000)
    Increase in Accrued Interest Payable                  34,340         (5,484)
                                                     -----------    -----------

  Net cash provided (used) by operating activities      (561,146)    (1,232,115)
                                                     -----------    -----------

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
 Purchase of Equipment                                       --         (18,325)
                                                     -----------    -----------
    Net Cash (Used) by Investing Activities                  --         (18,325)
                                                     -----------    -----------
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
 Proceeds from Common Stock Sales                         39,500        460,000
 Proceeds from Shareholders Advances                     508,522        395,515
 Repayments on Shareholder Advances                      (23,722)       (82,250)
 Proceeds from Bridge Loans                                  --         508,549
                                                     -----------    -----------
    Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities            524,300      1,281,814
                                                     -----------    -----------

NET (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS              (36,846)        31,374
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR            40,369          8,995
                                                     -----------    -----------

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR             $     3,523    $    40,369
                                                     ===========    ===========

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES
  Cash Paid During the Year for:
    Interest Expense                                 $    31,500    $    31,500
    Income Taxes                                     $       --     $       --
  Non Cash Transactions:
    Preferred Stock Issued for Coal Reserves         $       --     $ 4,600,000
    Common Stock Issued for Bridge Loan Conversions  $   159,766        428,890
    Common Stock Issued for Services                 $   190,780    $   664,500

              The accompanying notes are an integral part of these
                              financial statements.
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                      Urban Television Network Corporation

                  Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity
                     For the Period Ended September 30, 2006

                                          Preferred Stock            Common          Stock
                                       Shares         Amount         Shares          Amount
                                    ------------   ------------   ------------    ------------

Beginning Stockholders' Equity
(Deficit)                                   --     $       --       67,135,177    $      6,714

Stock Subscription                          --             --       70,000,000           7,000

Stock Subscription Cancelled                --             --      (14,000,000)         (1,400)

Cancelled Management Shares                 --             --       (4,000,000)           (400)

Stock Subscription                          --             --       69,000,000           6,900

Stock Subscription Cancelled                --             --      (67,500,000)         (6,750)

Stock Issued for Services                   --             --        5,250,000             525

Stock Issued for Bridge
  Loan Conversions                          --             --        9,276,100             927

Stock Issued to Vendor                      --             --          300,000              30

Stock Issued for Coal Reserves           100,000        100,000           --               --
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Net (Loss)                                  --             --             --               --
                                    ------------   ------------   ------------    ------------
Balance September 30, 2005               100,000        100,000    135,461,277          13,546

Stock Subscription Cancelled                --             --      (67,000,000)         (6,700)

Issuance of Common Stock
  For  Services                             --             --        6,129,000             613

Stock Issued for Loan Conversions           --             --        3,232,000             323

Payment on Stock Subscriptions

Net (Loss)                                  --             --             --               --
                                    ------------   ------------   ------------    ------------
Ending Stockholders' Equity
(Deficit)                                100,000   $    100,000     77,822,277    $      7,782
                                    ============   ============   ============    ============

              The accompanying notes are an integral part of these
                              financial statements.
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                      Urban Television Network Corporation

                  Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity

                     For the Period ended September 30, 2006

                                     Additional        Stock                           Total
                                      Paid-In       Subscription     Accumulated      Capital
                                      Capital        Receivable        Deficit        Deficit
                                    ------------    ------------    ------------    ------------

Beginning Stockholders' Equity
(Deficit)                           $ 23,677,544    $ (8,800,000)   $(15,590,434)   $   (706,176)

Stock Subscription                     6,993,000      (6,750,000)           --           250,000

Stock Subscription Cancelled          (6,998,600)      6,800,000            --          (200,000)

Cancelled Management Shares           (1,999,600)      2,000,000            --              --

Stock Subscription                     6,893,100      (6,690,000)           --           210,000

Stock Subscription Cancelled          (6,743,250)      6,750,000            --              --

Stock Issued for Services                627,892            --              --           628,417
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Stock Issued for Bridge
  Loan Conversions                       935,995            --              --           936,922
Stock Issued to Vendor                    35,970            --              --            36,000

Stock Issued for Coal Reserves         4,500,000            --              --         4,600,000

Net (Loss)                                  --              --        (2,841,559)     (2,841,559)
                                    ------------    ------------    ------------    ------------
Balance September 30, 2005          $ 27,922,051    $ (6,690,000)   $(18,431,993)   $  2,913,604

Stock Subscription Cancelled          (6,693,800)      6,650,500            --           (50,000)

Stock Issued for Services                190,167            --              --           190,780

Stock Issued for Loan Conversions        159,767            --              --           160,090

Payments on Stock Subscription            39,500          39,500

Net (Loss)                                  --              --        (6,354,735)     (6,354,735)
                                    ------------    ------------    ------------    ------------
Ending Stockholders' Equity
(Deficit)                           $ 21,578,185    $       --      $(24,786,553)   $ (3,100,586)
                                    ============    ============    ============    ============

              The accompanying notes are an integral part of these
                              financial statements.
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                      Urban Television Network Corporation
                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
                           September 30, 2006 and 2005

1.   Significant Accounting Policies

     Description of Business

     Urban  Television  Network  Corporation  (the "Company")  formerly known as
     Waste Conversion Systems, Inc. was incorporated under the laws of the state
     of Nevada on October 21, 1986. The principal  office of the  corporation is
     2707 South Cooper Street, Suite 119, Arlington, Texas 76015.

     In January  2002,  the Company  underwent a change of control in connection
     with  Urban   Television   Network   Corporation,   a  Texas   corporation,
     (Urban-Texas) agreeing to deposit $100,000 into an attorneys escrow account
     in return for receiving a balance sheet with no assets and no  liabilities.
     The directors of the Company appointed Urban-Texas officers as new officers
     of the Company,  and at the same time  resigned  their board  positions and
     appointed  the  directors  of  Urban-Texas  as the  Company's  new board of
     directors.  Urban-Texas  agreed to deposit  300,000 shares of the Company's
     common stock into the attorney's escrow account after the completion of the
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     Stock Exchange Agreement described below, dated February 7, 2003.

     On May 1, 2002, the Company  entered into an agreement with  Urban-Texas to
     acquire the rights to the Urban-Texas  affiliate network signal space which
     included the assignment of the  Urban-Texas  broadcast  television  station
     affiliates  for  16,000,0000  shares of common stock,  which became 800,000
     after a 1 for 20 reverse stock split.

     On February 7, 2003, the Company  entered into a Stock  Exchange  Agreement
     with the majority  shareholders  of  Urban-Texas.  Among other things,  the
     Agreement  provided for the Company's  purchase of approximately 90% of the
     issued  and  outstanding  capital  stock  of  Urban-Texas   (13,248,000  of
     14,759,000  shares) in exchange for the  Company's  issuance of  13,248,000
     shares of its authorized but unissued  common stock,  $.0001 par value (the
     "Exchange Shares"),  to the majority  shareholders of Urban-Texas.  In June
     2003, the remaining 10% of Urban- Texas was acquired by Company.

     Urban-Texas  is considered the accounting  acquirer,  and the  accompanying
     financial  statements  include  the  operations  of  Urban-Texas  from  the
     earliest  period  presented.  The  Company  operated  from  May 1,  2002 to
     February 7, 2003 as a 71% subsidiary of Urban-Texas,  a predecessor  entity
     to the existing business. The May 1, 2002 and February 7, 2003 transactions
     with the Company are presented as a recapitalization of Urban-Texas.

     The Company is authorized to issue  200,000,000  shares of $.0001 par value
     stock and 500,000 shares of $1.00 par value preferred stock.

     The  Company  is  engaged  in the  business  of  supplying  programming  to
     broadcast  television  stations and cable  systems.  Formerly the Company's
     business  had been the  marketing  of thermal  burner  systems that utilize
     industrial and agricultural  waste products as fuel to produce steam, which
     generates electricity, air-conditioning or heat.

     On September 30, 2005,  the Company  entered into an agreement  with GeoTec
     Thermal Generators,  Inc. to acquire 200,000 tons of mined coal in exchange
     for 100,000  shares of Preferred  Stock,  which may be  converted  into the
     Company's  Common  Stock,  at the sole  discretion  of the  GeoTec  Thermal
     Generators,  Inc., at any time in an amount equal to the purchase  price at
     the stock bid price of $.10 on September 30, 2005.

     The Company is  actively  pursuing  the sale of the mined coal  reserves to
     utility companies and other companies that use coal as an alternative fuel.
     Also the coal reserves have related  federal  income tax credits  resulting
     from the Super Fund established by The Federal  Government that can be sold
     to other  companies and the Company is actively  pursuing  buyers for these
     tax credits.  See  impairment  of assets  disclosure  below for  impairment
     provision against the coal reserves.

     Accounting Method

     The Company records income and expenses on the accrual method.
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                      Urban Television Network Corporation
                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
                           September 30, 2006 and 2005
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1.   Significant Accounting Policies - continued

     Revenue Recognition

     The Company's  sources of revenues include the sale of short-form  national
     and local spot advertising and long-form  program time slots. The Company's
     policy is to recognize the revenue associated with these sources of revenue
     at the time that it inserts the  short-form  advertising  spots or airs the
     long-form program at the network or local level.

     Principles of Consolidation

     The consolidated  financial  statements include the accounts of the Company
     and its subsidiaries.  All material  intercompany accounts and transactions
     are  eliminated.   The  Company  owns  100%  of  Urban  Television  Network
     Corporation,  a  Texas  corporation  and  Urban  Records,  Inc.,  a  Nevada
     corporation , which has no assets or operations.

     Coal Reserves

     The Coal reserves owned by the Company are recorded at lower of cost or net
     realizable  value. Net realizable value is the estimated price at which the
     coal reserves can be sold in the normal course of business  after  allowing
     for the cost of processing and sale.  Such cost will be  depreciated  using
     the  units-of-production   method  as  the  coal  reserves  are  sold.  See
     impairment of assets disclosure below for impairment  provision against the
     coal reserves.

     Non Goodwill Intangible Assets

     Intangible assets other than goodwill consist of network assets acquired by
     purchase. They are being amortized over their expected lives of 5 years and
     are reviewed for  potential  impairment  whenever  events or  circumstances
     indicate that carrying  amounts may not be recoverable.  No impairment loss
     was  recognized  during the  reporting  periods.  On  January 1, 2002,  the
     Company  adopted  Statement  of  Financial  Accounting  Standards  No. 142,
     Goodwill and Intangible Assets. This provides that a recognized  intangible
     shall be amortized over its useful life to the reporting entity unless that
     life is determined to be indefinite.  The amount of an intangible  asset to
     be amortized shall be the amount initially  assigned to that asset less any
     residual value.

     Impairment of Assets

     The Company has adopted SFAS No. 144,  "Accounting  for the  Impairment  or
     Disposal  of  Long-Lived  Assets."  SFAS No. 144  addresses  the  financial
     accounting and reporting for the impairment of long-lived assets, excluding
     goodwill  and  intangible  assets,  to be held and used or disposed  of. In
     accordance with SFAS No. 144, the carrying values of long-lived  assets are
     periodically reviewed by the Company and impairments would be recognized if
     the expected  future  operating  non-discounted  cash flows derived from an
     asset were less than its carrying  value and if the carrying  value is more
     than the fair  value of the asset.  At  September  30,  2006,  the  Company
     concluded  that the coal reserves  acquired for 100,000 shares of preferred
     shares and valued at  $4,600,000  was  impaired  and recorded a loss in the
     statement of operations.

     Issuance of Common Stock

     The issuance of common stock for other than cash is recorded by the Company
     at  management's  estimate  of the fair  value of the  assets  acquired  or
     services rendered.

Edgar Filing: URBAN TELEVISION NETWORK CORP - Form 10KSB

65



     Income (Loss) Per Share

     Income (loss) per common share is calculated in accordance  with  Statement
     of Financial  Accounting  Standards ("SFAS") No. 128, "Earnings per Share".
     Basic Income  (loss) per share is computed by dividing net income (loss) by
     the  weighted  average  number of common  shares  outstanding.  Diluted net
     income (loss) per share is computed  similar to basic net income (loss) per
     share,  except that the  denominator  is increased to include the number of
     additional  common shares that would have been outstanding if the potential
     common  shares had been  issued and if the  additional  common  shares were
     dilutive.  Stock options and warrants are  anti-dilutive,  and accordingly,
     are not included in the calculation of income (loss) per share.
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                      Urban Television Network Corporation
                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
                           September 30, 2006 and 2005

1.   Significant Accounting Policies - continued

     Comprehensive Income

     Comprehensive  income  (loss)  and net  income  (loss) are the same for the
     Company.

     Cash

     For  purposes  of the  statement  of  cash  flows,  the  Company  considers
     unrestricted cash and all highly liquid debt instruments  purchased with an
     original maturity of three months or less to be cash.

     Concentration of Credit Risk

     The Company at times maintains cash in excess of federally  insured limits.
     The amount in excess of the federally  insured limits at September 30, 2006
     was $-0-.

     Advertising Costs

     The Company expenses non-direct  advertising costs as incurred. The Company
     did not incur any direct response  advertising  costs for the periods ended
     September 30, 2006 and 2005.

     Stock Based Compensation

     The  Company  accounts  for  equity  instruments  issued to  employees  for
     services  based on the fair  value of the  equity  instruments  issued  and
     accounts for equity instruments issued to other than employees based on the
     fair value of the  consideration  received  or the fair value of the equity
     instruments, whichever is more reliably measurable. The determined value is
     recognized  as an expense in the  accompanying  consolidated  statements of
     operations.

     Use of Estimates

     The  preparation  of financial  statements  in  conformity  with  generally
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     accepted  accounting  principles  requires management to make estimates and
     assumptions  that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
     disclosure  of  contingent  assets  and  liabilities  at  the  date  of the
     financial  statements  and the  reported  amounts of revenues  and expenses
     during  the  reporting  period.  Actual  results  could  differ  from those
     estimates.

     Recent Accounting Standards

     In December 2004,  the FASB issued SFAS No. 153,  "Exchanges of Nonmonetary
     Assets - an amendment of APB Opinion No. 29." This Statement eliminates the
     exception  for  nonmonetary  exchanges  of  similar  productive  assets and
     replaces it with a general  exception for exchanges of  nonmonetary  assets
     that  do  not  have  commercial  substance.   A  nonmonetary  exchange  has
     commercial substance if the future cash flows of the entity are expected to
     change  significantly  as a  result  of the  exchange.  This  Statement  is
     effective  for  nonmonetary  asset  exchanges  occurring in fiscal  periods
     beginning  after June 15, 2005. The Company does not expect  application of
     SFAS No. 153 to have a material affect on its financial statements.

     In December 2004, the FASB issued a revision to SFAS No. 123,  "Share-Based
     Payment." This Statement  supercedes  APB Opinion No. 25,  "Accounting  for
     Stock Issued to  Employees"  and its related  implementation  guidance.  It
     establishes  standards  for the  accounting  for  transactions  in which an
     entity  exchanges  its equity  instruments  for goods or services.  It also
     addresses  transactions  in which an entity incurs  liabilities in exchange
     for  goods or  services  that are based on the fair  value of the  entity's
     equity  instruments  or that may be settled by the issuance of those equity
     instruments.  This Statement  does not change the  accounting  guidance for
     share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees provided
     in Statement  No. 123 as originally  issued and EITF Issue No. 96-18.  This
     Statement  is effective  for public  entities  that file as small  business
     issuers as of the  beginning of the first  fiscal  period that begins after
     December 15, 2005.  The Company has not yet  determined  the impact of SFAS
     No. 123 (revised) on its financial statements.
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1.   Significant Accounting Policies - continued

     In May 2005,  the Financial  Accounting  Standards  Board  ("FASB")  issued
     Statement of Financial  Accounting  Standard ("SFAS") No. 154,  "Accounting
     Changes and Error  Corrections."  SFAS 154 changes the requirements for the
     accounting  for  and  reporting  of  a  change  in  accounting   principle,
     requiring,  in  general,   retrospective   application  to  prior  periods'
     financial  statements of changes in accounting  principle.  The Company has
     adopted the  provisions of SFAS No. 154 which are effective for  accounting
     changes and  corrections of errors  beginning  after December 15, 2005. The
     adoption did not have a material effect on the results of operations of the
     Company.

     In February 2006, FASB issued SFAS No. 155,  "Accounting for Certain Hybrid
     Financial  Instruments".  SFAS No. 155 amends SFAS No 133,  "Accounting for
     Derivative   Instruments  and  Hedging  Activities",   and  SFAF  No.  140,
     "Accounting   for  Transfers   and   Servicing  of  Financial   Assets  and
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     Extinguishments   of  Liabilities".   SFAS  No.  155,  permits  fair  value
     remeasurement for any hybrid financial instrument that contains an embedded
     derivative  that  otherwise  would  require  bifurcation,  clarifies  which
     interest-only  strips  and  principal-only  strips  are not  subject to the
     requirements  of SFAS  No.  133,  establishes  a  requirement  to  evaluate
     interest in  securitized  financial  assets to identify  interests that are
     freestanding  derivatives  or that are hybrid  financial  instruments  that
     contain  an  embedded  derivative  requiring  bifurcation,  clarifies  that
     concentrations of credit risk in the form of subordination are not embedded
     derivatives,  and amends SFAS No. 140 to eliminate the  prohibition  on the
     qualifying  special-purpose  entity  from  holding a  derivative  financial
     instrument  that  pertains  to a  beneficial  interest  other than  another
     derivative  financial  instrument.  This  statement  is  effective  for all
     financial  instruments  acquired  or  issued  after  the  beginning  of the
     Company's first fiscal year that begins after September 15, 2006.

     In March 2006,  FASB issued SFAS 156 `Accounting for Servicing of Financial
     Assets'.  This  Statement  amends FASB  Statement No. 140,  Accounting  for
     Transfers  and  Servicing  of  Financial  Assets  and   Extinguishments  of
     Liabilities,  with  respect to the  accounting  for  separately  recognized
     servicing assets and servicing liabilities. This Statement:

          1.   Requires an entity to  recognize a servicing  asset or  servicing
               liability  each time it  undertakes  an  obligation  to service a
               financial asset by entering into a servicing contract.

          2.   Requires all separately recognized servicing assets and servicing
               liabilities   to  be  initially   measured  at  fair  value,   if
               practicable.

          3.   Permits an entity to choose `Amortization  method' or `Fair value
               measurement  method'  for  each  class of  separately  recognized
               servicing assets and servicing liabilities:

          4.   At its initial adoption,  permits a one-time  reclassification of
               available-for-sale  securities to trading  securities by entities
               with recognized  servicing rights,  without calling into question
               the  treatment  of  other  available-for-sale   securities  under
               Statement 115,  provided that the  available-for-sale  securities
               are identified in some manner as offsetting the entity's exposure
               to  changes  in fair  value  of  servicing  assets  or  servicing
               liabilities  that a servicer  elects to  subsequently  measure at
               fair value.

          5.   Requires separate  presentation of servicing assets and servicing
               liabilities  subsequently measured at fair value in the statement
               of  financial   position  and  additional   disclosures  for  all
               separately recognized servicing assets and servicing liabilities.

     This  Statement  is effective as of the  beginning of the  Company's  first
     fiscal year that  begins  after  September  15,  2006.  The  management  is
     currently   evaluating  the  effect  of  this  pronouncement  on  financial
     statements.
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1.   Significant Accounting Policies - continued

     In July  2006,  the FASB  issued  Interpretation  No. 48,  "Accounting  for
     Uncertainty in Income Taxes" (FIN 48), effective for fiscal years beginning
     after December 15, 2006.  FIN 48 requires a two-step  approach to determine
     how to recognize tax benefits in the financial statements where recognition
     and  measurement  of a tax  benefit  must be  evaluated  separately.  A tax
     benefit  will  be  recognized  only if it  meets  a  "more-likely-than-not"
     recognition threshold.  For tax positions that meet this threshold, the tax
     benefit  recognized  is based on the largest  amount of tax benefit that is
     greater than 50 percent likely of being  realized upon ultimate  settlement
     with the  taxing  authority.  We are  currently  evaluating  the  impact of
     adopting FIN 48, and have not yet determined the  significance  of this new
     rule  to our  overall  results  of  operations,  cash  flows  or  financial
     position.

     In September  2006,  FASB issued SFAS 157 `Fair Value  Measurements.'  This
     Statement  defines fair value,  establishes a framework for measuring  fair
     value in  generally  accepted  accounting  principles  (GAAP),  and expands
     disclosures  about fair value  measurements.  This Statement  applies under
     other  accounting   pronouncements   that  require  or  permit  fair  value
     measurements,  the Board having  previously  concluded in those  accounting
     pronouncements  that  fair  value is the  relevant  measurement  attribute.
     Accordingly,   this   Statement   does  not  require  any  new  fair  value
     measurements. However, for some entities, the application of this Statement
     will change  current  practice.  This  Statement is effective for financial
     statements  issued for fiscal years  beginning after November 15, 2007, and
     interim  periods  within those fiscal  years.  The  management is currently
     evaluating the effect of this pronouncement on financial statements.

     In September 2006, FASB issued SFAS 158 `Employers'  Accounting for Defined
     Benefit  Pension  and  Other  Postretirement  Plans--an  amendment  of FASB
     Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R)' This Statement  improves  financial
     reporting by  requiring  an employer to recognize  the over funded or under
     funded  status of a  defined  benefit  postretirement  plan  (other  than a
     multiemployer  plan) as an asset or liability in its statement of financial
     position  and to  recognize  changes in that  funded  status in the year in
     which the changes occur through  comprehensive  income of a business entity
     or changes in  unrestricted  net assets of a  not-for-profit  organization.
     This Statement also improves  financial  reporting by requiring an employer
     to  measure  the  funded  status  of a plan as of the date of its  year-end
     statement of financial position, with limited exceptions.  An employer with
     publicly  traded equity  securities is required to initially  recognize the
     funded status of a defined benefit  postretirement  plan and to provide the
     required disclosures as of the end of the fiscal year ending after December
     15, 2006. An employer without publicly traded equity securities is required
     to recognize the funded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan and
     to provide the required disclosures as of the end of the fiscal year ending
     after June 15, 2007.  However,  an employer  without publicly traded equity
     securities is required to disclose the following  information  in the notes
     to financial  statements  for a fiscal year ending after December 15, 2006,
     but before June 16, 2007, unless it has applied the recognition  provisions
     of this Statement in preparing those financial statements:

          a)   A brief description of the provisions of this Statement
          b)   The date that adoption is required
          c)   The date the employer plans to adopt the  recognition  provisions
               of this Statement, if earlier.

     The  requirement  to measure plan assets and benefit  obligations as of the
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     date of the employer's fiscal year-end  statement of financial  position is
     effective for fiscal years ending after  December 15, 2008.  The management
     is  currently  evaluating  the effect of this  pronouncement  on  financial
     statements.

     In September  2006,  the Securities  and Exchange  Commission  issued Staff
     Accounting Bulletin ("SAB") No. 108, "Considering the Effects of Prior Year
     Misstatements  When Quantifying  Current Year  Misstatements."  SAB No. 108
     requires   analysis  of  misstatements   using  both  an  income  statement
     (rollover)  approach  and  a  balance  sheet  (iron  curtain)  approach  in
     assessing  materiality and provides a one-time cumulative effect transition
     adjustment.  SAB  No.  108 is  effective  for  the  Company's  2006  annual
     financial  statements.  The Company is currently  assessing  the  potential
     impact  that  the  adoption  of SAB No.  108  will  have  on its  financial
     statements.  The  adoption  of SAB No. 108 is not  expected  to  materially
     impact the financial statements.
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1.   Significant Accounting Policies - continued

     Other recent  accounting  pronouncements  issued by the FASB (including its
     EITF),  the AICPA, and the SEC did not or are not believed by management to
     have a  material  impact  on the  Company's  present  or  future  financial
     statements.

     Stock Options

     The Company accounts for non-employee stock options under SFAS 123, whereby
     option costs are recorded at the fair value of the  consideration  received
     or the fair  value  of the  equity  instrument  issued,  whichever  is more
     reliable measurement,  in accordance with EITF 96-18 "Accounting for Equity
     Instruments  That Are Issued to Other Than  Employees  for  Acquiring or in
     Conjunction with Selling Goods or Services".

     Reclassification of Prior Year Amounts

     Certain prior year amounts have been  reclassified  to conform with current
     year presentation.

2.   Accounts receivable

     Accounts  receivable  consists  of normal  trade  receivables.  The Company
     assesses the collectibility of its accounts receivable regularly.  Based on
     this  assessment,  an  allowance  for  doubtful  accounts is  recorded.  At
     September  30, 2006 and 2005,  an allowance  for doubtful  accounts was not
     considered necessary.

3.   Network Assets - Amortization

     Network assets consist of intangibles other than Goodwill. These assets are
     recorded  at cost and  consist of amounts  paid to acquire  the  television
     network affiliate base from Hispanic  Television  Network,  plus technology
     consulting  directly  related to setting up the  affiliate  network.  These
     assets  automatically  renew every year unless either party  terminates the
     agreement by such  notification  to the other party.  A useful life of five
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     (5) years is estimated for the assets. These agreements are not expected to
     be  terminated  by either  party  prior to its useful  life  period.  Total
     amortization of these assets has been $157,586 and the amortization for the
     periods  ended  September   30,2006  and  2005  was  $25,040  and  $35,258,
     respectively.

     Future  amortization  of the Network  assets at September  30, 2006 will be
     $38,042 and on an annual basis be as follows:

               Year ended September 30, 2007              $25,040
               Year ended September 30, 2008              $13,002

4.   Coal Reserves

     By agreement dated September 30, 2005 with GeoTec Thermal Generators, Inc.,
     the Company  acquired  200,000  tons of mined coal in exchange  for 100,000
     shares of preferred Stock, which may be converted into the Company's common
     stock,  at the sole discretion of the GeoTec Thermal  Generators,  Inc., at
     any time in an amount equal to the purchase  price,  which based on the bid
     price of $.10 price on September 30, 2005, was valued at $4,600,000. GeoTec
     Thermal  Generators,  Inc. has other coal in other  locations in the United
     States and the  agreement  allows the Company to  substitute  coal in these
     other  locations,  which the  Company  may  exercise  this  right if it for
     example would expedite the delivery process.  In evaluating the coal assets
     in accordance  with SFAS No. 144 "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal
     of  Long-Lived  Assets"  as  discussed  in Note 1  -Significant  Accounting
     Policies,  the Company has  recorded an  impairment  expense of  $4,600,000
     against the coal assets.
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5.   Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment

     Furniture,  fixtures and  equipment,  their  estimated  useful  lives,  and
     related  accumulate  depreciation  at  September  30,  2006  and  2005  are
     summarized as follows:

                                            Range of
                                            Lives in
                                              Years         2006         2005
                                            ---------    ---------    ---------

     Master Control, Editing Equipment         3-5       $  84,074    $  84,074
     Studio and Production Equipment           3-5          60,500       60,500
     Production Van                              5          45,000       45,000
     Affiliate Receiver Equipment                5          20,247       20,247
                                                         ---------    ---------
                                                         $ 209,821      209,821
     Less: Accumulated Depreciation                       (169,577)    (112,301)
                                                         ---------    ---------
                                                         $  40,244    $  97,520
                                                         =========    =========
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     The  Company  acquired  equipment  totaling  $18,325  during the year ended
     September 30, 2005.  Depreciation  expense for the periods ended  September
     30, 2006 and 2005 was $57,276 and $56,935, respectively.

6.   Related Party Transactions

     In May 2002,  the Company  issued  16,000,000  (800,000  after the 1 for 20
     reverse)  shares  to  Urban  Television   Network   Corporation,   a  Texas
     corporation for asset purchase of network assets - See footnote 1.

     The Company has leased office space from one its  shareholders and director
     for $2,000 per month. The total rental expense for the year ended September
     30, 2004 $24,000.

     In year 2003,  the Company  began using the services of a company  owned by
     shareholders,  one being a  director  of the  Company,  that  provides  the
     Company with the equipment and master control services to put the Company's
     programming  on the satellite  for the broadcast  affiliates to receive and
     rebroadcast to their local markets.  During the periods ended September 30,
     2004 and 2003 the total  expense  paid out for these  services was $430,367
     and $345,081, respectively.

     The Company uses the services of a company owned by shareholders to provide
     it with technology  services  including  Internet and affiliate  relations.
     During the years ended  September 30, 2006 and 2005, the total expense paid
     out for these services was $124,914 and $215,068, respectively.

     During the period ended  September  2003, the Company  executed an interest
     bearing note with a  shareholder.  The principal  borrowed of $168,765 plus
     accrued interest of $29,750 were converted to a non-interest payable to the
     shareholder.  As  discussed  below,  the  shareholder  agreed to reduce the
     Company  payable by $198,515 to apply  towards the purchase of common stock
     by Wright  Entertainment LLC during the period ended September 30, 2004. In
     December  2004,  this  payable  was  reinstated  in  conjunction  with  the
     termination of the Wright Entertainment LLC subscription  agreement and the
     execution  of the  World  One  Media  Group,  Inc.  subscription  agreement
     discussed later in this Note 6. This note was converted to 1,000,000 shares
     of common stock in February of 2005.

     The Company  executed an interest  bearing note with a  shareholder  of the
     Company  during  the  period  ended  September  30,  2003 to pay  operating
     expenses.  During the period ended  September  30, 2003 the amounts  loaned
     totaled  $132,200.  During the period ended September 30, 2004, the Company
     repaid  $130,000 of the note principal and the remaining  $2,200 was repaid
     during the year ended September 30, 2005.
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6.   Related Party Transactions -continued

     The Company  executed an interest  bearing note with a  shareholder  of the
     Company  during  the  period  ended  September  30,  2004 to pay  operating
     expenses.  During the year ended  September  30,  2004 the  amounts  loaned
     totaled $400,000. In September 2005, $228,290 of this note was converted to
     2,282,900  shares  of  common  stock by the  noteholder  and the  remaining
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     balance of $171,710 was  increased to $358,016 at September  30, 2006.  See
     Note 7 for disclosure of terms, interest rate and conversion privileges.

     On  October  30,  2003,  the  Company  entered  into a  stock  subscription
     agreement  with  Wright  Entertainment,  LLC,  a Nevada  limited  liability
     company,  whose owner and managing  director is Lonnie G. Wright,  Chairman
     and Chief  Executive  Officer of the  Company.  Wright  Entertainment,  LLC
     entered  into  the  stock  subscription   agreement  for  Fourteen  Million
     (14,000,000) common shares for Seven Million  ($7,000,000) Dollars or Fifty
     ($0.50) Cents per share.  The stock sale was  structured as an  installment
     stock sale with the terms being as follows:  $500,000  down, the $6,500,000
     balance  payable  on a  promissory  note  at  $875,000  Dollars  quarterly,
     including 6% interest on the declining balance. A portion ($200,000) of the
     $500,000  down  payment  was  satisfied  by one of  the  Company's  lenders
     forgiving  $198,515  of  advances  due the  lender  and  $1,485 of  accrued
     interest  on a note  payable  to the  lender.  As  part  of the  definitive
     agreement,  between the  Company,  Wright  Entertainment  LLC and World One
     Media Group, Inc. discussed in the next Paragraph,  this stock subscription
     agreement for 14,000,000  shares was  terminated  and the 4,000,000  shares
     that had been issued to Wright  Entertainment LLC's for management services
     and to be vested upon Wright  Entertainment LLC's completed the payment for
     its subscription agreement were cancelled.  The definitive agreement called
     for the Company to pay Wright Entertainment LLC, owned by Lonnie G. Wright,
     $300,000  ($60,000 at the signing and $15,000 per month for sixteen  months
     beginning  January 15, 2005) and issue Wright  Entertainment  LLC 1,000,000
     shares  of  the  Company's  restricted  common  stock.  In the  year  ended
     September 30, 2006, Wright  Entertainment LLC converted $75,000 of the note
     to 750,000 shares of the Company's restricted common stock. The balance due
     on the note at September 30, 2006 is $90,000.

     On December 13, 2004, we entered into a definitive agreement with World One
     Media Group, Inc. (name later changed to Dove Media Group,  Inc.), a Nevada
     corporation.  The  definitive  agreement  called for World One to  purchase
     70,000,000  restricted  common  shares  for  $7,000,000.  The  subscription
     agreement  signed on  December  23,  2004 set the terms of the  installment
     purchase at $100,000  being paid on December 23, 2004 and with a promissory
     note bearing no interest  being  executed for the remaining  $6,900,000 and
     being paid at the rate of $150,000  every 45 days  beginning on January 31,
     2005 until promissory note has been paid in full.

     All the shares were pledged as collateral for the promissory  note and were
     physically  held by the Company.  Additionally,  World One was to be issued
     warrants  for  30,000,000  (reduced by mutual  agreement  from the original
     80,000,000  warrant)  shares of common stock that can be exercised for $.01
     per share at any time after the Company's  stock price has maintained a $10
     bid price for 20 consecutive trading days.

     On July 26, 2005,  the Board of Directors  voted to (1) terminate the stock
     subscription agreement with Dove Media Group, Inc. (formerly known as World
     One  Media  Group,  Inc.) due to its  nonpayment  of  required  installment
     payments,  (2) cancel the 70,000,000  shares issued and held by the Company
     as  security on the stock  subscription  agreement,  (3) reissue  2,500,000
     shares to Dove Media  Group,  Inc.  for  $250,000  that it paid towards the
     stock  subscription  agreement and (4) cancel the 5,000,000 shares that had
     been authorized for Dr. Ajibike Akinkoye for services to be rendered.

     On July 29, 2005, we entered into a stock subscription agreement with Miles
     Investment Group, Inc., a Texas limited liability company owned by Jacob R.
     Miles III, a shareholder  and the Company's Chief  Executive  Officer.  The
     agreement  called for Miles Investment  Group,  LLC to purchase  69,000,000
     restricted  common shares for $6,900,000 on an installment  basis over a 28
     month  period with the terms being  $100,000 as a down payment and $250,000
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     per  month  beginning  on  September  1,  2005  and the  first  each  month
     thereafter until the total of $6,800,000 has been paid in full. The Company
     had deferred payments on the stock subscription  agreement at various times
     with the final deferment being August 15, 2006, in consideration  for Miles
     Investment
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6.   Related Party Transactions - continued

     Group LLC bringing the coal  reserves  deal to the Company.  All the shares
     were pledged as collateral for the promissory note and were physically held
     by the Company. Additionally,  Miles Investment Group, LLC was to be issued
     warrants for 30,000,000  shares of restricted  common stock that could have
     been  exercised  for $.01 per share in  various  amounts  depending  on the
     future stock price of the Company's stock.

     During the  fiscal  year ended  September  30,  2005,  Randy  Moseley,  CFO
     advanced the Company $30,900 for operating expenses.

     During the fiscal  year ended  September  30,  2006,  Jacob R.  Miles,  CEO
     advanced the Company $30,000 for operating expenses.

     During the  fiscal  year ended  September  30,  2006,  Randy  Moseley,  CRO
     advanced  the  Company   $43,500  for   operating   expenses  and  received
     reimbursements of $22,000.

     On September 29, 2006, the Board of Directors  voted to terminate the stock
     subscription agreement and warrants with Miles Investment Group, LLC due to
     non-performance  on the  payment  terms as called  for in the  subscription
     agreement, after allowing Miles Investment Group, LLC a number of extension
     to come into compliance with the subscription agreement. The impact of this
     action was to (1) remove  67,000,000  shares  from the issued  $0.0001  par
     value common stock, which reduced the number of issued and outstanding from
     144,822,277  shares to  77,822,277  shares and (2)  cancel  the  30,000,000
     warrants.

7.   Notes Payable and Advances

     Notes payable at September 30, 2006 and 2005 consist of:
                                                            2006         2005
                                                         ----------   ----------
     Note payable to stockholder at 20%
      interest payable on or before
      September 20, 2008 (1)                                358,016      172,367

     Notes payable to stockholders at 6% due
      Upon sale of coal reserves                            231,000         --

     Note payable to stockholder at no
      Interest, payable $15,000 per month,
      on 15th of the month, final payment
      due April 15, 2006 (2)                                 90,000      165,000

     Note payable to vendor at 12% interest
      (18% on past due amounts) payable on
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      April 30, 2006 (3)                                     63,511         --

     Advances from shareholders (4)                         120,565      151,015

     Advances from a non-related party that has
      Been assumed by a receiver (5)                        665,000      665,000
                                                         ----------   ----------
                                                         $1,528,093   $1,153,382
                                                         ----------   ----------
     (1) The  holders of the March  2006 note and vendor  note have a UCC-1 lien
     against the Company's assets.  The March 2006 note originally due on August
     31, 2005 was extended by the  noteholder to June 30, 2006 in  consideration
     for the Company  issuing the  noteholder  200,000  shares of common  stock,
     which the  Company  valued at $20,000  and the  conversion  ratio from five
     shares to ten shares of common  stock for each  dollar of loan  amount plus
     accrued interest through the date of conversion. In September 2006 the note
     was made part of an increased bridge loan of $492,400 of which $358,016 had
     been  advanced at September 30, 2006.  The note is associated  with a stock
     subscription agreement with R.J. Halden Holdings, Inc. discussed in Note 9.

     (2) The holder of the $165,000 note  converted  $75,000 of the note balance
     into 750,000 shares of the Company's common stock in October 2005.
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7.   Notes Payable and Advances -continued

     (3) Westar  Satellite  Services was granted 100,000 warrants at an exercise
     price  $0.12 per share for a period of three  years from  November 7, 2005.
     The  noteholder has filed suit against the Company for payment of this note
     and accrued  interest.  See Note 11 - Commitments and  Contingencies  for a
     discussion of this liability.

     (4) The  advances  from  shareholders  are due on  demand  and do not  bear
     interest.

     (5) See Note 12 - Commitments  and  Contingencies  and Note 13 - Subsequent
     Events for a discussion of this liability.

8.   Income Tax

     The Company  accounts for income taxes under the provisions of Statement of
     Financial Accounting Standards No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes". This
     standard   requires,   among  other  things,   recognition  of  future  tax
     consequences,  measured  by enacted tax rates  attributable  to taxable and
     deductible temporary differences between financial statement and income tax
     bases of assets and liabilities. Valuation allowances are established, when
     necessary,  to reduce  deferred  tax  assets to the amount  expected  to be
     realized.  Income  tax  expense is the tax  payable  for the period and the
     change during the period in the deferred tax asset and liability.

     Temporary  differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and
     tax  basis of  assets  and  liabilities  did not give  rise to  significant
     portions of deferred taxes at September 30, 2006 and 2005.
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     The (provision) benefit for income tax consist of the following:

                                           2006         2005
                                          ------       ------
                 Current                  $  -0-       $  -0-
                 Deferred                    -0-          -0-
                                          ------       ------
                                          $  -0-       $  -0-
                                          ======       ======

     The Company's utilization of any tax loss carryforward available to it will
     be  significantly  limited under Internal  Revenue Code Section 382, if not
     totally, by recent stock issuances and changes in control.  The Company has
     established  a 100%  valuation  allowance  until such time as it is decided
     that any tax loss  carryforwards  might be  available  to it.  The  Company
     accounts for income taxes pursuant to the Statement of Financial Accounting
     Standards  No.109.  The  Company  has no  current  or  Deferred  income tax
     component.  For the year ended September 30, 2006, the valuation  allowance
     increased by approximately $350,000.

9.   Capital Stock

     The Company has  authorized  200,000,000  common shares with a par value of
     $0.0001 per share.  Each common share  entitles the holder to one vote,  in
     person or proxy,  on any matter on which action of the  stockholders of the
     corporation is sought.

     The  Company  began  operations  by  completing  the  acquisition  of Urban
     Television Network Corporation,  a Texas corporation,  in two steps; (1) in
     May of 2002 the Company issued  16,000,000  shares (800,000 after the 1 for
     20  reverse)and  (2) in  February  of 2003,  the  Company  entered  into an
     Exchange  Agreement  with the  majority  shareholders  of Urban  Television
     Network  Corporation,  a Texas corporation  (Urban-Texas) to acquire 90% of
     the issued  and  outstanding  capital  stock of  Urban-Texas  in return for
     13,248,000 shares of the Company's common stock - See footnote 1.

     In September  2002,  the Company  issued  100,000 (5,000 after the 1 for 20
     reverse) shares to Hispanic Television Network,  Inc. as part of the mutual
     settlement  agreement  between the two  companies  to cancel the  Satellite
     Transponder Service Agreement and notes payable/receivable.

     On November 21, 2002 the Company  completed a 1:20 reverse  stock split and
     amending its Articles of  Incorporation  to increase its authorized  common
     shares to 200,000,000 and adjust its par value to $0.0001 per share.
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9.   Capital Stock - continued

     During the year ended  September  30, 2003,  the Company  issued  7,275,000
     shares of its common stock to for consulting, legal and management services
     which the company valued at $811,250.
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     During the year ended  September 30, 2004,  the Company  issued  21,308,000
     shares of its common stock to for  consulting,  legal,  vendor payments and
     management services which the company valued at $4,771,450.

     During the year ended  September  30, 2005,  the Company  issued  4,150,000
     shares of its common stock to for  consulting,  legal,  vendor payments and
     management services which the company valued at $427,000.

     During the period ended  September 30, 2003, the Company  issued  1,957,300
     shares of its common  stock to Bridge  Loan  Lenders who elected to convert
     $978,650 of bridge  loans to common  stock at the rate of 2 shares for each
     dollar of bridge loan converted.

     During the period ended  September 30, 2004, the Company  issued  4,135,441
     shares of its common  stock to Bridge  Loan  Lenders who elected to convert
     $1,852,648 of bridge loans to common stock at an average  conversion  price
     of $.45 per share.

     During the period ended  September 30, 2005, the Company  issued  9,276,100
     shares of its common  stock to Bridge  Loan  Lenders who elected to convert
     $936,922 of bridge loans to common stock at an average  conversion price of
     $.10 per share.

     In the fiscal years ended September 30, 2004, 2005 and 2006 the Company has
     entered into four stock subscription  agreements,  of which three have been
     terminated,  of which  three  were with  different  minority  groups  for a
     majority ownership  interest in the Company's common stock.  Following is a
     summary  of  the  three  terminated  stock  transactions  involved  in  the
     terminated  agreements,  which or more fully  described in Note 6 - Related
     Party Transactions;

                                       Number of       Value
 Date of                                Shares        Assigned          Note         Warrants
Agreement   Name of  Group              Issued        To Shares         Value         Issued
---------   ----------------------   ------------    ------------   ------------   ------------

10/30/03    Wright Entertainment       18,000,000    $  9,000,000   $  6,800,000
12/13/04    Wright Entertainment      (18,000,000)   $ (9,000,000)  $ (6,800,000)
12/13/04    World One Media Group      70,000,000    $  7,000,000   $  6,750,000     30,000,000
 7/26/05    World One Media Group     (67,500,000)   $ (6,750,000)  $ (6,750,000)   (30,000,000)
 7/29/05    Miles Investment Group     69,000,000    $  6,900,000      6,690,000     30,000,000
 9/29/06    Miles Investment Group    (67,000,000)   $ (6,700,000)    (6,690,000)   (30,000,000)
                                     ------------    ------------   ------------   ------------
Net Effect at 9/30/06                   4,500,000    $    450,000   $        --             --
                                     ------------    ------------   ------------   ------------

     In February 2005, the Company issued  1,000,000  shares of its common stock
     to a bridge loan holder who converted a $200,000 bridge loan at the rate of
     5 shares for each $1.00 of bridge loan.

     In September 2005, the Company issued 200,000 shares of its common stock to
     the noteholder of the $171,710 note payable  discussed in Note 5 as part of
     the consideration  for the noteholder  agreeing to extend the note to March
     31, 2006.

     In October 2005, a stockholder  who had a note balance of $165,000 due from
     the  Company  converted  $75,000  of the note  into  750,000  shares of the
     Company's restricted common stock.

     In December  2005,  the Company  issued  100,000  shares of its  restricted
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     common stock for  consulting  services  rendered to the Company,  which the
     Company valued at $10,000.

     In February  2006,  the Company  issued  750,000  shares of its  restricted
     common stock to management for services rendered,  which the Company valued
     at $22,500.
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9.   Capital Stock - continued

     In March 2006, the Company issued 4,000,000 shares of its restricted common
     stock to management and the board of directors for services rendered, which
     the Company valued at $120,000.

     In March 2006, the Company  issued 809,000 shares of its restricted  common
     stock to  consultants  for services  rendered,  which the Company valued at
     $24,270.

     In March 2006, the Company  issued 205,000 shares of its restricted  common
     stock to  employees  for  services  rendered,  which the Company  valued at
     $6,150.

     In March 2006, the Company issued 2,482,000 of its restricted  common stock
     to lenders who elected to convert $85,000 of loans to the Company's  common
     stock.

     In June 2006, the Company  issued  265,000 shares of its restricted  common
     stock to  consultants  for services  rendered,  which the Company valued at
     $7,950.

     On September 29, 2006, the Board of Directors  voted to terminate the stock
     subscription agreement and warrants with Miles Investment Group, LLC due to
     non-performance  on the  payment  terms as called  for in the  subscription
     agreement, after allowing Miles Investment Group, LLC a number of extension
     to come into compliance with the subscription agreement. The impact of this
     action was to (1) remove  67,000,000  shares  from the issued  $0.0001  par
     value common stock, which reduced the number of issued and outstanding from
     144,822,277  shares to  77,822,277  shares and (2)  cancel  the  30,000,000
     warrants.

     On September  29, 2006,  the Board of  Directors  approved  effective as of
     September 23, 2006, a subscription  agreement R. J. Halden  Holdings,  Inc.
     ("RJHH").  RJHH is one of the largest,  if not largest  shareholders in the
     Company.  The Subscription  Agreement calls for RJH to fund $1.5 million on
     or before  January 31,  2007.  RJHH is entitled to purchase 64% interest in
     the Company,  or a total of 136,104,486  shares. The subscription vest with
     pro rata advances in increments of a minimum of 500,000 shares as paid. The
     Company's  currently  authorized  shares  of  200,000,000  will  have to be
     amended in the  future to allow for the full  issuance  of the  136,104,486
     shares, should R.J. Halden Holdings, Inc. fund the entire $1,500,000.

     Warrants

     In  connection  with a vendor  converting  a payable to note  payable,  the
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     Company  issued the vendor  100,000  warrants that can be exercised  over a
     five year period at the exercise price of $.25 per share.

     The  Company  issued  management  950,000  warrants in March 2006 which are
     vested  Immediately  and  exercisable  at $0.05  per  shares  on or  before
     December  31, 2007 in return for loans made to the  Company  for  operating
     expenses.  The Company  has not  recognized  any  expense  related to these
     warrants as the market price of the  Company's  stock at issuance was equal
     to the exercise price.

     Non-Qualified Stock Grant and Option Plan

     The Company is authorized  to issue up to 6,800,000  shares of common stock
     under its 2003  Non-Qualified  Stock  Grant and  Option  Plan (the  "Plan")
     through an S-8 registration,  as amended. This Plan is intended to serve as
     an  incentive  to and to encourage  stock  ownership by certain  directors,
     officers,  employees  of  and  certain  persons  rendering  service  to the
     Company, so that they may acquire or increase their proprietary interest in
     the  success  of the  Company,  and to  encourage  them  to  remain  in the
     Company's  service.  During the year ended  September 30, 2003, the Company
     had  distributed  1,900,000 of the shares through  grants.  During the year
     ended  September  30, 2004,  the Company had  distributed  1,586,000 of the
     shares  through  grants.  During the year ended  September  30,  2005,  the
     Company distributed 200,000 of the shares through grants.
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10.  Preferred Stock

     The  Articles  of  Incorporation  of the  Company  authorize  issuance of a
     maximum of 500,000 shares of nonvoting  preferred stock with a par value of
     $1.00 per share. The Articles of Incorporation grant the Board of Directors
     of the Company  authority to determine the designations,  preferences,  and
     relative  participating,  optional or other special rights of any preferred
     stock issued.

     On September 30, 2005,  the Company  entered into an agreement  with GeoTec
     Thermal  Generators,  Inc. to acquire  200,000 tons of coal in exchange for
     100,000  shares  of  preferred  Stock,  which  may be  converted  into  the
     Company's  common  stock,  at the sole  discretion  of the  GeoTec  Thermal
     Generators,  Inc., at any time in an amount equal to the purchase  price at
     the stock bid price of $.10 on September  30, 2005.  The 100,000  shares of
     preferred  stock do not have any voting rights or  preferences,  except for
     the conversion privilege.

11.  Commitments and Contingencies

     Satellite Transponder Lease

     In December 2005, the Company  renewed its Satellite  space segment service
     agreement with Intelsat,  Inc. for 6 MHz of satellite bandwidth on Intelsat
     5 for a period of five  years  ending on  October  31,  2010 at the rate of
     $17,850 per month.  This  agreement was  terminated by Intelsat in April of
     2006 for  non-payment by the Company.  For the periods ended  September 30,
     2006  and  2005,   the  amounts   expensed   were  $326,638  and  $215,516,
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     respectively.

     Signal Uplink Lease

     The Company renewed its Full Time Broadcast Agreement with Westar Satellite
     Services,  LP on October 15,  2005 for a full time  redundant 6 MHz digital
     C-band uplink service for a period of five years ending on October 31, 2010
     at the rate of $8,800 per month plus taxes. For periods ended September 30,
     2006 and 2005 the amounts  expensed for uplink  services  were $159,850 and
     $96,000, respectively.

     Westar Satellite Services,  LP has sued the Company for non-payment of this
     contract.  Future lease  payments due during the term of the master service
     agreement  ending on October  31,  2010 will equal  $413,600  and be due as
     follows:

          Year ended September 30, 2007            $105,600
          Year ended September 30, 2008            $105,600
          Year ended September 30, 2009            $105,600
          Year ended September 30, 2010            $ 96,800

     Facilities Space Lease

     The Company  entered  into a lease for office and uplink  space on March 1,
     2004 for a period of one year ending on  February  28, 2005 and renewed the
     lease  through  February  28,  2007 at the rate of $2,569  per  month.  For
     periods  ended  September 30, 2006 and 2005,  the amount  expensed for this
     office space lease was $33,720 and $22,491, respectively.

     The Company entered into a lease for additional  space at the its corporate
     headquarters  facilities  on April 1, 2005 for one year ending on March 31,
     2006, at the rate of 4,100 per month.  The Company  exercised its option to
     terminate this lease on its March 31, 2006 anniversary date. For the period
     ended  September  30, 2006 the amount  expensed for this office space lease
     was $24,600.

     Future  lease  payments due in the year ending  September  30, 2007 for the
     term of the lease ending on February 28, 2007, equals $21,414.
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11.  Commitments and Contingencies - continued

     Employment Agreements

     Mr. Randy Moseley is employed pursuant to a five-year  employment agreement
     that commenced on October 2, 2002. The agreement provides for a base annual
     salary equal to $200,000 and a possible  annual cash bonus as determined by
     the Board of Directors and/or the Compensation  Committee. In October 2003,
     the  employment  agreement of Mr. Moseley was extended and amended to allow
     for the  naming of a new  President  and Chief  Executive  Officer  for the
     Company.  Mr.  Moseley  accepted  the officer  position of  Executive  Vice
     President  and Chief  Financial  Officer and agreed to defer the payment of
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     his salary for the period from October 2, 2002 to  September  30, 2003 with
     this deferred year being added to the end of the original  employment  term
     to make the term of the employment agreement now end on September 30, 2008.
     During the periods ended September 30, 2006 and 2005, $175,000 and $150,000
     of Mr. Moseley's annual compensation was accrued as a payable. At September
     30, 2006, a total of $376,000 in  compensation  was accrued as a payable to
     Mr. Moseley.

     Mr. Jacob R. Miles III, is employed as the  Company's  President  and Chief
     Executive  Officer  pursuant  to a  three-year  employment  agreement  that
     commenced  effective  January 1, 2006.  The  agreement  provides for a base
     annual  salary equal to $225,000  with a minimum of annual  increases of 5%
     and a possible  annual cash bonus as  determined  by the Board of Directors
     and/or the  Compensation  Committee.During  the period ended  September 30,
     2006,  $56,250 of Mr. Miles' annual  compensation was accrued as a payable.
     At September 30, 2006, a total of $121,750 in compensation was accrued as a
     payable to Mr. Miles.

     Legal Matters

     The  Company's  motion to dismiss was  granted on February  23, 2006 by the
     United States District Court,  Central District of California,  Los Angeles
     Division  In a  legal  action  styled  Walter  E.  Morgan,  Jr.  vs.  Urban
     Television  Network  Corporation  et  al.  The  Company  claimed  that  the
     Plaintiff  claims  should have been brought in a previous  case wherein the
     Company took a judgment  against Mr. Morgan in excess of $1,500,000 in June
     2204 in the U.S.  District Court for the Northern  District of Texas,  Fort
     Worth Division. Mr. Morgan and his related companies appealed the judgment,
     which was dismissed  sua sponte by the U.S.  Court of Appeals for the Fifth
     Circuit.  The  Company  has made the  decision  not to record  the  default
     judgment as an asset until at such time as it is confident that asset value
     can be recovered from the defendants.

     The Company is party to legal action pending in the United States  District
     Court for the Northern  District of Texas. The Company has been served with
     a summons in a civil case styled Michael J. Quilling, Receiver For MegaFund
     Corporation and Stanley A. Leitner vs.Urban Television Network Corporation.
     The Receiver has filed complaint against the Company to recover advances in
     the amount of $665,000 to the Company by Mega Fund Corporation on behalf of
     Dove Media Group,  Inc. related to its stock  subscription  agreement.  The
     Company  has  recorded  these  advances  as a  liability  on its  financial
     statements  and  believes  that the  ultimate  disposition  will not have a
     material adverse effect on the Company's  consolidated  financial position,
     results of operations and liquidity.  See Note 13 - Subsequent  Event which
     discloses that this suit was dismissed without prejudice.

     The Company is party to legal action pending in the 162nd  District  Court,
     Dallas,  Texas.  The Company has been served with a summons in a civil case
     styled  Westar  Satellite   Services,   L.P.  vs.Urban  Television  Network
     Corporation.  The  Plaintiff  has filed  complaint  against  the Company to
     Recover  amounts due Plaintiff  under a promissory  note and Master Service
     Agreement.  The  Company  has  recorded  the  related  liabilities  for the
     promissory  note and master service  agreement on its financial  statements
     and believes that the ultimate disposition will not have a material adverse
     effect  on  the  Company's  consolidated  financial  position,  results  of
     operations and liquidity.
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12.  Going Concern

     The Company has suffered recurring losses from operations and has a deficit
     in both working capital and stockholders'  equity. In order for the Company
     to sustain operations and execute its television  broadcast and programming
     business plan , capital will need to be raised to support operations as the
     company  executes its business plan.  These  conditions  raise  substantial
     doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.

     The Company may raise additional  capital through operating cash flows, the
     sale of its equity securities,  or debt securities.  Subsequent to year end
     the Company has raised  additional  capital of  approximately  $65,000 from
     collections on the stock subscription agreement.

13.  Subsequent Events

     On December 6, 2006,  presiding  judge for the United States District Court
     For the Northern District of Texas, Dallas Division, signed an Agreed Order
     Of Dismissal  that  dismissed  without  prejudice the lawsuit of Michael J.
     Quilling,  Receiver for Megafund  Corporation  and Stanley A. Leitner which
     Sought to have the  Company  disgorge  $665,000  advanced to the Company by
     Megafund Corporation.
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